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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Group”; SEHK stock code: 1929) was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong in December 2011. The Group's vision is to become the most trusted jewellery group in the world.

Founded in 1929, the Group's iconic brand “CHOW TAI FOOK" is widely recognised for its trustworthiness and authenticity,
and is renowned for its product design, quality and value. A long-standing commitment to innovation and craftsmanship has
contributed to the Group's success, along with that of its iconic retail brand, and has been embodied in its rich 90-year
heritage. Underpinning this success are our long-held core values of “Sincerity ® Eternity”.

The Group's differentiation strategy continues to make inroads into diverse customer segments by catering to a bespoke
experience for different lifestyles and personalities, as well as customers’ different life stages. Offering a wide variety of
products, services and channels, the Group's brand portfolio comprises the CHOW TAI FOOK flagship brand with curated
retail experiences, and other individual brands including HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE.

The Group’s commitment to sustainable growth is anchored in its customer-centric focus and strategies, which are in place
to promote long-term innovation in business, in people and in culture. Another asset underpinning sustainable growth is a
sophisticated and agile business model. This supports the Group by fostering excellence and extending opportunities along
the entire value chain to communities and industry partners across the world.

With an extensive retail network in Greater China, Japan, Korea, Southeast Asia and the United States, and a fast-growing
e-commerce business, the Group is implementing effective online-to-offline (“020") strategies to succeed in today's omni-
channel retail environment.
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ANNUAL RESULTS AT A GLANCE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
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Net gearing ratio As at 31 March Dividend per share for the year @
FERARLE M3A31A8 BREFRKRE®
) w 90%
2021 2020 HK$ BT 82.7%

19.4%  57.4% 0.40

Net assets per share As at 31 March Full year dividend payout ratio
BREEFH MN3A318 2EREE

HK$
2021

- )

2020

3.2 2.7 66.4%

(1)

Core operating profit, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of gross profit and other income,
less selling and distribution costs, general and administrative expenses and unrealised loss (gain)
on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of
its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

(2)  Included the proposed final dividend of HK$0.24 per share which is subject to the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
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As at 31 March 2021
2021538318

Retail network and performance
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Major platforms included Chow Tai Fook eShop, Tmall, JD.com, Vipshop
020 distribution (i.e. routing online orders to POS for delivery service), CloudSales 365 and Cloud
Kiosk included

Chow Tai Fook employees
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Number of employees by reportable segment
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

W P5 B e iE i

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March BE3A3MALEE BEAR BEER ER- - BEAER BEART
Revenue - 51,246 59,156 66,661 56,751 70,164
Gross profit ESl 14,963 16,213 18,602 16,096 20,075
Core operating profit™® FEREEER M 4,649 5,606 6,972 5,687 8,630
Profit for the year FEEF 3,151 4,203 4,684 2,983 6,176
Profit attributable to shareholders AR &) B BR {5 A 3,055 4,095 4,577 2,901 6,026
of the Company
Earnings per share (HK$) BRAEF (BT 0.31 0.41 0.46 0.29 0.60
Dividend per share (HK$) SRS (BT)
Full year dividend (HK$) 2FERE (BT 0.16 0.27 0.35 0.24 0.40
Special dividend (HK$) BRIAR S (BoT) 0.35 0.30 0.30 - -
Gross profit margin EF = 29.2% 27.4% 27.9% 28.4% 28.6%
Adjusted gross profit margin@ ERAEENENEQ 28.5% 27.2% 27.9% 29.6% 28.2%
Core operating profit margin” F AL RER M 9.1% 9.5% 10.5% 10.0% 12.3%
Net profit margin o A K 6.1% 7.1% 7.0% 5.3% 8.8%
Full year dividend payout ratio® 2ERBERE 52.3% 66.0% 76.5% 82.7% 66.4%
(1) Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of (1) FEEEGEF RN X GHRRABRMERELLE) - BEHREN
adjusted gross profit and other income, less selling and distribution costs and general and EFREAMBFEOE O REERDERAUAR—RRITHAX - AAF]
administrative expenses, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete HEHSERENE AN T HARERAREBNER B
understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses
(2)  Adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised loss (gain) (2) REARENEF R GHRBERMBREEAGE) MR TESEEORE
on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of BEB (W) MEE  AREEHBEEDHEARTRAKERBERE
its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses BH BB
(3)  Special dividend excluded (3) TBREHIRE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
As at 31 March R3HA31H BHEAERT HEET HEER BEERT BEBERT
Non-current assets ERBEE 7,133 8,258 8,459 10,038 9,065
Current assets MEVEE 42,269 49,312 53,778 55,205 55,243
Current liabilities mENAE 15,788 20,719 27,471 35,627 29,142
Net current assets MEEEFRE 26,480 28,593 26,307 19,579 26,101
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 1,112 2,753 3,363 2,626 3,598
Net assets BEFH 32,502 34,098 31,403 26,991 31,568
Total assets BERT 49,402 57,670 62,237 65,243 64,308
Inventories FE 29,259 34,929 39,486 42,538 43,011
Cash and cash equivalents®” RekBALEEYW 7,943 7,944 7,641 7,219 6,032
Bank borrowings RITER 6,793 7,923 10,057 11,431 6,418
Gold loans HEEE 3,216 5,335 8,012 11,280 5,725
Net debt® BIBFE 2,066 5,314 10,428 15,492 6,111
Net assets per share (HK$) BREEFE(ET) 3.3 3.4 3.1 2.7 3.2
Net gearing ratio® FEARBELER® 6.4% 15.6% 33.2% 57.4% 19.4%
Inventory turnover period (day)” FERAEH(KEH)D 294 296 299 381 312
Return on equity® N EE R 9.7% 12.3% 14.9% 11.1% 19.6%
(4)  Bank balances and cash included (4) BERTEHRRAS
(6)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of cash and cash equivalents (5) MITERRESHEZBEHBRALRRASEED)
(6)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of cash and cash equivalents, divided by total equity (6) WITERLRSSBREZATHBASLRSEEY) RAERRE
(7)  Being inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, at the end of the reporting period divided (7) BHEHRGFELEHR(TRERLEDHBRAFENESRA - BFELA365

by cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366
Being profit for the year divided by total equity at the end of the year
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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

For the year ended 31 March BE3A3MALEE BEAR BEER ER- - BEAER BEART
Operating cash flows before BEECEHI LR 5,702 6,879 7,774 9,912 11,572
movements in working capital Bean=s
Net cash from (used in) RS (FTA) 6,252 2,851 8,431 8,364 10,476
operating activities Re R
Net cash from (used in) BEERBAE(FTA) (1,147) (1,577) (1,222) (1,025) (693)
investing activities ReFHE
Net cash from (used in) BREEEN TS (FTH) (9,771) (1,753) (7,212) (7,653) (11,188)
financing activities e FE
Net increase (decrease) in HeKREEEY (4,667) (479) (3) (314) (1,404)
cash and cash equivalents O A) F 8
Capital expenditure BARRE (862) (1,084) (1,392) (973) (839)
Pro forma free cash flows® HEERIRESRO 1,989 3,019 4,100 5,208 6,646
(9)  Net cash from (used in) operating activities less leases paid, purchase of jewellery collectibles, 9) ®EESFME(AA)RSFERDHNHEE BEUHRBLE  B4AHIERE
capital expenditure and net movements for gold loans SHEEFES
For the year ended 31 March HZ3A31MHLLEE 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Mainland China R A it
SSSG G HEE K (5.2)% 8.0% 3.4% (15.1)% 31.9%
SSS volume growth FEHEER (15.8)% 1.2% (3.3)% (24.0)% 8.2%
Hong Kong and Macau BEBRAM
SSSG G HEE K (12.4)% 10.2% 8.7% (38.7)% (41.3)%
SSS volume growth FEHEER (18.8)% 6.1% 1.3% (43.5)% (42.9)%
Retail sales volume (unit) HE (HE)
Mainland China R A 3 12,004,000 13,416,000 14,518,000 12,699,000 15,893,000
Hong Kong, Macau and &5 BMK 3,152,000 3,169,000 3,390,000 2,392,000 1,189,000
other markets HEMmis
As at 31 March A3A31H 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
POS distribution"® ZEHS M0
Mainland China A b 2,246 2,449 2,988 3,701 4,452
Hong Kong, China FEREES 83 80 82 87 82
Macau, China AR P 19 19 19 18 18
Taiwan, China FEEE 22 22 22 18 18
Cambodia e - - 1 1 1
Japan B - 2 3 3 1
Korea B2 5 7 9 9 7
Malaysia BRFLE 2 2 4 4 4
Philippines JERE _ _ _ 1 1
Singapore H Nk 1 2 4 4
Thailand el - - - 1 1
United States ESE 3 2 1
Vietnam i - - 1 1 1
Total st 2,381 2,585 3,134 3,850 4,591
(10) SIS and CIS excluded (100 TRIEEFRERENEE
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences Mz : B EHERAMEENER
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MAJOR AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
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10™ Asian Excellence Award 2020
B+ ERMNE AL 2020

e Asia’s Best CEO (Investor Relations)
e Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)
e Asia's Best CSR

e Best Investor Relations Company

e Best Investor Relations Professional — Danita On
o TINEETTHMAH(REERR) — HBE
o LNEEERMBHRE(REERR) — BRAE

o TMBEHERMEDLHE
o RERAEMARLXE
s RERAEWEREER — TBR

A
\:. un "‘:
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VISION 7% AWARDE

— Kent Wong
— Hamilton Cheng

LACP 2019 Vision Awards
Annual Report Competition
LACP 2019 BRFHAE

e Gold Award

e Best Report Financials (Bronze)
e Top 100 Reports Worldwide

e Top 50 Chinese Reports of 2019
e Top 40 Reports (Asia-Pacific Region)
o Gt

o HEMBmME ()

o RIRFZE100 A FH

o HEBOAR2019F EF NF R

o ARMIEAIEAORER

MERCOMM e

INTERNATIONAL AWARDS PROGRAMS

LACP 2019 Vision Awards
Sustainability Report Competition
LACP 2019 R B R AIISEBRMEAE
e Silver Award

e Best Report Financials (Bronze)

e Top 100 Reports Worldwide

e Top 50 Chinese Reports of 2019

e Top 40 Reports (Asia-Pacific Region)
o iR

o HEMBWME ()

o BIRE(E 100 NF R

o HfEBOAR2019F EH NF R

o TDAMBHRELORFR

hk# *
IR Awards 2020

The International Annual Report

Design Awards 2020

2020 BB} F SRR 5H A 2R

e Silver Award (Overall — Integrated
Presentation: Sustainability Report)

e Bronze Award (Retail — Integrated
Presentation: Annual Report)

o RV(ZILEHR —FRAET : AIFHE
BRRE)

o MR(TEEW —FEET W)

magazine

iNOVA Awards 2020

iNOVA K #2020

e Grand Award (Best of Sustainability
Report)

e  Gold Award (Online Annual Reports:
Sustainability Report)

o HEBANB(HEMHELERRSE)

o SE(BLFR: AIFBERERE)

ARC Awards 2020

ARC X #2020

e Gold Award (Traditional Annual
Report: Jewelry)

o TR(EMFR: UE)

Overview

B

6" Investor Relations Awards 2020
2020 FEREREEREARER

e Best Annual Report (Large Cap)

e Best ESG (Governance — Large Cap)

o EEFHE(KRARK)

o REFFFEBEFRE(MEEL — KARKR)

IR Magazine Awards Greater China 2020

IR Magazine K#& — KH & 2020

e Certificate for Excellence in Investor
Relations

o REEFWREMRINESE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BARBHREEBEBRAA
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LISTED COMPANY
2020 AWARDS OF EXCELLENCE

(15 YT

Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2020
EHARSEMALE2020
e Main Board (Large-Cap)

o FR(KMME)
‘, CPA Hong'K_ong Institl.:te of
ek Cengjedflngllc Accountants
e - TEEHELE
Asia Responsible Enterprise 2020 HKMA Best Annual Reports Best Corporate Governance
Awards 2020 Awards Awards 2020
DM EEEEEE 2020 BEREEEXEHE 2020 FRIEFR BEERARE 2020
e Asia Responsible Enterprise Awards [i—3 o Corporate Governance Awards
(Corporate Governance Category) e Honourable Mention — H-share Companies and Other
o mMNEMEEMRE(DERER) o EEFIR Mainland Enterprises Category:
Gold Award
o MEERE —HRAFEEMPERNM
REAER - S8

Outs tanding

Partnership Project Award

ERUKPE ikt 122 T

A ft Outstanding Partnership Project Award 2019/20
o SR mesieee eSS B HH 4K 4 5 8122 2019/20
7 T Ik A (R RIAR ) .
i Outstanding Partnership Project Award 1
. 2 - MR- 58 T |
| Do Good ~ Caring Action -
| L]
-

Annual Report 2021 Major Awards and Recognitions
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JNA Awards 2020
2020 FE UNA K%

e Lifetime Achievement Award — Kent Wong

o REMIME —HME

DHL / SCMP Hong Kong Business
Awards 2020

DHL/ BBERRE BRI 25 2020

e Executive Award — Kent Wong

o HHERE —FRAE

The Chinese Brand of the Year 2020

2020 H [ o b5 K8

e China’s Top 10 Influential Brands
(Jewellery Category)

e China’s Top 10 Influential Brands
(Public Welfare Category)

o FEKETAXEZNmE

o FEAHTAXE M

Overview
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Forbes

Forbes 2020 Global 2000 World’s
Largest Public Companies
2020 B ETZ IR £ A ®] 2000 58

The World's 500 Most Influential
Brands 2020
R M 500582020

Five Star Diamond Brand
2020 - Luxury
2020 E 5 MITHEREEARK

2020 JNA AWARDS CEREMONY

+Cotime Achievement Award

%
1

7 LICENSING
\ INTERNATIONAL

Licensing International Asian
Awards 2020
DR RS =R ER 2020

e |icensee of the Year — Apparel /

Footwear / Accessories
o FEWERER — RE/ EE/ B

The BrandLaureate Awards — The

World's BESTBRANDS e-Branding

Award 2020

The BrandLaureate K& — 2HREE

EFmEKRE2020

e Brand of the Year — Most Prominent
Award for Chow Tai Fook in Lifestyle
— Premium Jewellery

o FEMM — RAEHEITRHE
(AXE) — aMKREHE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXERESEEERAF



InfluentifiBrands: R
TOP BRAND '§

2020 T',J

2020 Asia’s Top Influential Brands

2020 FEE N A E MR

* Most Trustworthy Brand — Premium Jewellery
o SRKEE —HESEERE

& ‘P E] ;iiﬁ éi % +’# /é\ 15) 5 Social Capital Builder Awards @f‘

CCFP\. china Chain Store & Franchise Association C" F E il % E Z'K g jj ig -
Top 100 Chinese Fashion Retailers Social Capital Builder Awards 2020 Consumer Caring Scheme 2020
2019-2020 - First place HEEARE S 2020 B EE TS 2020
2019-2020 & HE I i BE B & 4% e Social Capital Builder Logo Award e Consumer Caring 5 Years+ Award
— %1z o MEERENTFHLE o BRLMERF+E

EEE Ty ]

Quality Service Programme Quality E-Shop Recognition Scheme Mall China 2020 Commercial Brands
BE RS2 BEREAETE PR 2020 £ M I8
e 2020 Quality Service Retailers of the e 2020 Top 10 Quality E-Shops Awards e Qutstanding Young Brands
Year of Chain Stores — Bronze Award - Bronze Award o MINE R/
o 2020 REBEMRBTEHALE — EH * 2020 T KREHEMWE — i
JE— iR
Annual Report 2021 Major Awards and Recognitions
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AWARDS
2020

Best HR Awards 2020
BREADERKLE2020

e Best Innovative HR Initiative Award — Platinum
e Best Management Trainee Programme Award — Gold

o REANBRAFEZIAE —ALR
o REEEBIEHIAZE —2K

|'1 HREDISTINCTION
AWARDS 202

HR Distinction Awards 2020

ANEREHAE 2020

e Excellence in Organisation
Development — Gold

e Excellence in Crisis Management
- Gold

e Excellence in Graduate Recruitment /
Development — Silver

e Excellence in Innovative Business
Solutions — Bronze

o MEIFRAMWAR — S

o EHMERSHAE —

o BEAPR/ BRIMAE —RE

o BIEBMAAREMALE — ik

SILVER Corparatiom
Bt e s

et Eatedy duars
Hong Kong Green Awards 2020

Hong Kong Green Awards 2020
EBEELEKRE2020
e Environmental, Health and Safety
Award (Large Corporation) — Silver
o BERRTIBEI(KRAMLHE)
— %

Overview
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China Talent Development Awards
2019-2020
HEIA T B RE I 2019-2020

A K g

- . ;
-~ Q £Hom TAr FOQull e

Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index
Series Member 2020-2021

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Index Series

BAEABERROXERRS

e Elite Award e Achievement Category e Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability

— Middle and Senior Management
Training Award

o FHBeRA —FPaEEES
EEE

s

Good MPF Employer 2019-2020
B2 1F{EE2019-2020

e Good MPF Employer Award

e e-Contribution Award

e MPF Support Award

o BERIFEE

o B

o HEEHEEE

Benchmark Index
e Hang Seng ESG 50 Index
o EAEFMHERRLFELIER
o f84 ESG50 fEEX

Good Employer Charter 2020
FEELE 2020

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BARBHREEEBRAA



Chuk Kam Jewellery Design Competition 2020
B2 EH R E 2020
e QOpen Group - Liu Yi-Shi, Pan Hsin-Yu

e Fashionable 18K Group — Huang Yu-Wen, Liao Shu-Fen, "393 J i“
Lidat 7 PN
Wang Hao-Chen _5 S ‘&ﬁ \
o AP — BIEH  EWL o .
o FIHMKEMHE — BWME - BRE - THEIE . &‘5
-
3
Design Business i L
. China Gold Association
Chamber Singapore
Singapore Good Design Mark 2020 9" National Professional Skills Competition of Gold
— Interior Design FNEZEESTERERERE
N3 37 5 FT RS 88 2020 — EARET e Precious Metal and Gemstone Test s ECEEMHEELILBRAERSE 2R
— Enterprise Award — 2" place e ESEEMEERARMAEEEIR
® Precious Metal and Gemstone Test o ELBEMEBELIARAMEASE S
— Enterprise Award - 3 place —FxE

e Precious Metal and Gemstone Test

— Individual Award — 15 place — Li
Jia-Wei

BAZAAR Jewelry Award 2020
B HRE S NRE FERTKE 2020
e Year of Jewelry Design Excellence

o FEMHLHRERIT AL

Annual Report 2021 Major Awards and Recognitions ’I 'I
2021 F 4R T EBIFNERT



Market volatilities in the past year presented opportunities
for innovators to maintain competitive advantage. In
pursuit of long-term and steady business development,
the Group accelerated digital transformation efforts in
the smart retail arena and expanded its retail network
across online and offline channels.

A X — AR DLy - HAE AT - MERLRTE Iy RELR ST
A o GEEER 7 PR BRI AL A 204K - AR A 1R A Gt oK
R0 - INAS B AR LA ISP HIRE - R e SR s R
TR 58 i

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry B8R 4518 +
Chairman £ /&

1 2 Chairman’s Statement Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
FEHEE ARBRHREEEBRAA



DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

Despite a challenging business environment brought about by the
pandemic and macroeconomic uncertainties, we see opportunities
for an unprecedented transformation. In previous years, Chow Tai
Fook Jewellery Group not only took strategic steps to integrate
innovative technologies into key areas of our business, but also
spared no effort to deliver a consistent and seamless customer
experience across multiple touchpoints, including physical stores,
e-commerce and online-to-offline (“020") channels. Notably, the
Group has achieved better customer engagement across
geographical areas and demographic groups. As a result, the
Group's business managed to maintain a steady and
healthy growth.

Our operations in Mainland China, which have been driven by a
solid recovery in consumer spending and our steadfast penetration
into lower tier cities, continue to be an important arena of growth
for the Group. During FY2021, the Group's revenue rose by 23.6%
year-on-year to HK$70,164 million. Core operating profit surged
51.7%. Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company grew by
107.7% to HK$6,026 million, while earnings per share was
HK$0.60. The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$0.24 per
share; full year dividend amounted to HK$0.40. Full year payout
ratio approximated 66.4% in FY2021.

OUTLOOK

To thrive in turbulent market conditions, the Group needs to
identify growth opportunities and prioritise resources for it.
Mainland China is now the world’s second largest consumer
market. According to the statistics from the Chinese Ministry of
Commerce, the total retail sales of consumer goods reached
RMB39.2 trillion in 2020. While the pandemic has shaken markets
around the globe, Mainland China’s jewellery market saw a swift
rebound in 2HFY2021 thanks to the resilience of the
Chinese economy.

The Group is optimistic about the mid-to long-term growth of the
Mainland China market. We believe that under Mainland China's
“dual circulation” strategy, domestic consumption will continue to
drive consumer demand and the overall economy. As a testament
to the success of revitalising the rural economy, the disposable
income per capita and standard of living have been improving in
recent years. Consumers in Mainland China is expected to spend
more and trade up to higher-priced jewellery and watch products.
We are looking to further expand our retail network in
Mainland China.
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The Group strives to accelerate the adoption of smart retail
technologies and omni-channel retailing, echoing the Chinese
government's advocates for innovation and technological
development as detailed in its Five-Year Plan. We believe that the
move would enable the Group to gain market share and build
customers’ loyalty to our brands.

The Hong Kong and Macau market may face headwinds in the near
term, but when cross-border travel resumes, business is expected
to pick up gradually. The Group will exercise vigilant cost control
and keep working on maximising operational efficiency as we
prepare for a future recovery.

UPHOLD OUR CORE VALUES FOR SUCCESS

Short-term macroeconomic variables may affect the magnitude
and speed of market recovery. Regardless of the challenges ahead,
the Group will continue to offer quality products and sincere
services to our customers. We work hard to help our customers
celebrate life's important moments and share their joy and love
through our products. While we stay agile to respond
to market changes, the Group upholds our core values of
"Sincerity ® Eternity” and adapt our philosophy to formulate
business strategies to benefit our stakeholders.

From the three-year “Smart+ 2020" strategic framework, which
emphasised retail experience enhancements through technological
innovations, to the Dual-Force Strategy from 2021, the Group’s
customer-centric philosophy is the key to our continual success.
The Dual-Force Strategy consists of retail expansion and smart
retail, two major drivers of our future growth. These customer-
centric initiatives aim to deliver exceptional customer experience
and create long-term brand differentiation and loyalty.

Last but not least, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to
my fellow Board members for their wise counsel and invaluable
contributions. | thank all staff of Chow Tai Fook for their dedication,
commitment and flexibility in tackling the challenges in the past
year, as well as our customers and business partners for their trust
and unwavering support. As we continue to dedicate ourselves to
the Group's long-term growth, we will also explore and seize new
business opportunities to further create value for our shareholders.

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman
Hong Kong, 8 June 2021
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Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

MANAGING DIRECTORS’
STRATEGIC REPORT

i -

HRESKE

Managing Director,
Corporate and HK,
Macau & Overseas

FY2021 is a year full of unprecedented challenges as well as
unparalleled opportunities. The outbreak of COVID-19 accelerated
the pace of digitalisation at all levels globally and altered consumers’
buying habits fundamentally. We believe that physical stores and
online platforms should still co-exist to create greater synergy for a
more complete and multi-faceted experience for customers.

With a solid foundation that has already been built through our
"Smart+ 2020" strategic framework, we are pleased to move
forward with our Dual-Force Strategy. Our Dual-Force Strategy will
steer us towards the continual expansion of physical footprint and
digital empowerment in order to continue delivering exceptional
customer experience that creates long-term brand differentiation
and loyalty.

Managing Directors’ Strategic Report
ERREEREERS

A A8 ORI W B

PRttt S 5EE

Managing Director,
I\/Ialmldnd China
I8

2021 FEFRFZFRIPTARA BBREL - [FII 75 s 2R 4
LEEV B - 2019 BB EREE - TEINRT 2B

XE%EE’]%@%{E*& PR E TIERE MR
WEE - BMRE ERERRLFAEAFES
EEE%?M BEE - ZUNER AEEANKR
Rk ©

FE [Smart+ 2020 RESHEZR A R ISE C BAPIRA

%E%Eﬁébﬁﬁﬂiuméﬁﬁu o BH KA %H S HA IF
BRERERENORE  FASESRREE  BEGE

3ETLEE%‘E‘:%$ RENREZZR(CNEZTLRE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAREHRESEBRA

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong



MARKET REVIEW

With the adoption of effective public health measures, China is one
of the earliest countries to recover from the impacts of COVID-19.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the total
retail sales of consumer goods decreased by 3.9% year-on-year
in 2020, while the retail sales of gold, silver and jewellery also
decreased by 4.7%. Yet, there have been signs of improvement
in these categories since August 2020. In the first 3 months of
2021, a strong growth was recorded in both retail sales figures
due to the low baseline for 2020. An increment was also
recorded as compared to the same period in 2019.

Against the background of “dual circulation” strategy, the
directives of the 14" Five-Year Plan, and in particular, the
guidance of “stimulation of consumption in all sectors” in the
Five-Year Plan, we expect that sales in the consumer market in
Mainland China will surge rapidly in coming years.

Developments in lower tier cities and rural areas are expected
to present huge potential as government policies and
infrastructure improvements will favour their growth.

Consumption upgrade is the key driver of growth, and
alternative consumption patterns such as livestreaming and
online social networking are expected to grow fast. Driven by
the new duty-free retail strategy in China, duty-free shopping
will also thrive in the coming years.

With favourable fundamentals including urbanisation, the growth
of middle and upper classes, and the support of government
policies, the retail and jewellery markets are expected to
continue to grow in the coming years.
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e The closure of major border crossings has affected the retail

environment of Hong Kong and Macau in FY2021. As shown in
industry data, retail sales performance of jewellery industry in
Hong Kong recorded a 38.4% decline year-on-year from April
2020 to March 2021.

We believe that the domestic market has bottomed out as we
recorded a better business performance since 2QFY2021.
When the major border crossings reopen, the number of visits
made and retail market would recover gradually.

The travel retail business in different Asia-Pacific countries has also
been affected throughout the year due to the shutdown of
international travel. However, we believe there are great expansion
potentials in the region with the Regional Comprehensive
Economic Partnership (“RCEP") between China and a number of
Asia-Pacific countries signed in 2020; and the Hong Kong-ASEAN
Free Trade Agreement (“FTA") and Investment Agreement (“I1A")
came into full effect in February 2021. We shall monitor the
development closely and take timely actions.
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DUAL-FORCE STRATEGY
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Deploy “Dual Forces” to develop a jewellery ecosystem
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We will focus more on the Mainland China market. On one hand,
we implement our retail expansion strategy to get closer to our
customers. To that end, we continue to strengthen our brands and
product offerings, and grow through opening POS in Mainland
China. On the other hand, we carry out our smart retail strategy. It
centers on digital empowerment, allowing us to cater to
customers’ needs as we continue to streamline our order fulfilment
process. We will leverage smart retail applications and smart
manufacturing to offer services from the heart and speed to
customers. We hope that our Dual-Force Strategy will ensure our
customers can enjoy a more complete, multi-faceted, and
seamless shopping journey and experience a blissful fulfiiment
through jewellery.
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MAINLAND CHINA

Brands and products

As Mainland China’s jewellery market has been reshaping in
recent years, we continue to execute differentiation strategy to
make inroads into diverse customer segments.

We offer curated retail store experiences under our flagship
brand, such as CTF JEWELRIA, CTF WATCH and experience
stores, to cater to different shopping environment and consumers’
needs. Our individual brands including HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO,
MONOLOGUE and SOINLOVE, serve our consumers with
different lifestyles and personalities.

CTF JEWELRIA, one of our initiatives in enhancing store
experience, continues to roll out more product offerings from
select international designers and jewellery brands on top of its
signature collections to cater to more sophisticated customers.
In FY2021, CTF JEWELRIA accounted for 6.0% of the RSV of
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY®™ in Mainland China. Gem-set
jewellery ASP was around HK$10,000, which was around 40%
higher than overall Same Store ASP of gem-set jewellery in
Mainland China.

Apart from enhancing the quality, craftsmanship and innovation
of our products, we also strive to promote product collections
featured with appealing stories.

CTF ® HUA Collection contributed to 39.5% of our gold jewellery
and products RSV in FY2021.

Our Guardian of Life Collection helped us gain market share in
the diamond engagement rings market. It contributed to 8.7%

of our diamond products RSV in FY2021.

CTF Watch excluded
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"Inspired by CTF JEWELRIA" art exhibition
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CTF * HUA Collection promotion
ARXBERRINEE

Collaboration with Korean artist Hyun Bin for the Hyun Bin 925 Collection
B A ZWA FHEL 2 925 25

e In FY2021, T MARK products accounted for 24.7% of the RSV of
our diamond products and increased by 60.7% in Mainland China.
We will distribute more T MARK products in Mainland China for
valued customers who embrace authenticity and technology.

Retail network

e \We strive to gain market share in the Mainland China market.
Hence, we focus on implementing our two-pronged strategy.

e Qur diversified product offering laid a foundation in expanding
our retail network in different cities in Mainland China. Key
elements including city’s economic indicators, government
policy and peers’ distribution network are essential in
implementing our retail expansion strategy.

e For Tier | and Il cities, we continue to offer curated retail
experiences through upgrading our stores and enhancing store
experiences of our flagship brand to fulfil the needs of more
sophisticated customers. We also expand our individual brands
in locations that fit the brand image for customers who share
the same personalities or values.

Managing Directors’ Strategic Report
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e For lower tier and county level cities, we would penetrate
further into the market by leveraging our franchisees’ local
knowledge and access.

e |n FY2021, there were 669 net POS openings of CHOW TAI
FOOK JEWELLERY"™, of which 64 net POS openings were
CTF JEWELRIA.

e |n view of the excellent performance of our watch business,
which was supported by the strong domestic demand, we will
continue to identify opportunities to expand our network in the
high premium watch business.
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Experience store in Wuhan K11
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Smart retail strategy

Every customer expects nothing less than being treated as the
single most important person by us. To that end, our omni-channel
retailing aim to offer customers wider array of choices and greater
convenience. Our staff provide people-to-people engagement with
digital tools and data to engage customers, helping them enjoy
their seamless shopping experience.

We also double down on increasing public domain visibility. More
contact points, together with a more diversified smart retail
experience could bring new customers and business opportunities
to us.

Meanwhile, a streamlined supply chain is key to our smart retail
strategy. Not only that it improves our customisation capabilities
but also drives higher operational efficiency that would differentiate
us in the jewellery industry.

(1) CTF Watch excluded
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E-commerce

We continued our close collaboration with various renowned
e-commerce platforms in Mainland China, such as Tmall,
JD.com and Vipshop, thus gaining more access to our
customers. While our e-commerce business is gradually getting
more mature in Mainland China’s retail landscape, it serves as
the main portal for our public domain.

We ride on current trends, such as direct sales via livestreaming
and short videos in third-party marketplaces, such as TikTok, in
order to expand and enhance our engagement with customers.
This allows us to better understand the customers’ needs and
preferences on our products as well as their spending pattern,
which will be useful for launching more successful products in
the future.

We are actively exploring changes in our sales models to cope
with the emerging trend of livestreaming. For example, we
introduced jade finished products and customised products
livestreaming on e-commerce platforms since December 2020
to meet diversified customer needs.

Smart retail applications

Leveraging both our omni-channel capabilities which we actively
developed in the past and our extensive retail network, we
continue to push forward our smart retail applications.

Our staff cemented their success with our smart mobile tool,
CloudSales 365. In FY2021, more than 40,000 staff in our self-
operated and franchised stores used CloudSales 365 to reach
more than 3.7 million customers. Not only did it attract new
customers, CloudSales 365's ASP and sales conversation rate
were about 80% higher than and around 10 times the
e-commerce platforms’ performance respectively.
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As at 31 March 2021, over 40% of our POS in Mainland China
have installed Cloud Kiosks. While at a physical store, customers
can use Cloud Kiosks to explore or look up a wide product
selection online and shorter transaction time. A gamified
experience is also offered at the Kiosks.

We introduced D-ONE, our digital jewellery customisation
platform, as one of our Consumer to Manufactory (“C2M")
initiatives to cater to the customer demands for customised
products and exclusive experiences.

With D-ONE, most customised products are ready for delivery
within 24 hours as committed. Incredible fulfilment speed is the
signature of this platform.

Various brands and products, such as HEARTS ON FIRE and
T MARK, were introduced to D-ONE in FY2021. In February 2021,
we have also launched CHOW TAI FOOK TIAN HUANG DI LAO
Collection on D-ONE, featuring rings that transform the
reflection of light into personalised messages, thanks to our use
of the innovative laser diffraction technology.

In FY2021, we recorded a RSV of HK$133 million through
D-ONE. It is encouraging to see that the ASP of these
customised products was more than double the gem-set
jewellery ASP at Same Store level in Mainland China.

Together with the initiatives to enhance the automation level of
our supply chain and establish various digital platforms, we
strive to deliver unparalleled customer experience.
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Newly launched CHOW TAI FOOK TIAN HUANG DI LAO Collection touting the
innovative laser diffraction technology
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Customer engagement

Mainland China

E A i

As at 31 March 2021

2021538318 FY2021

3,035,000 29.4%

Number of members Members' repeat purchase

2888 as a % of respective RSV
EEBEHELER
ZEEZAESL

e We understand that customer relationship management
("CRM") is one of the success factors of our businesses.

e Not only did we invest in branding and large-scale product
promotion, but we also leveraged the strength of social media
influencers — Key Opinion Leaders (“KOL") and Key Opinion
Consumers (“KOC") to attract our target customers.

e Currently, CloudSales 365 is integrated with our CRM system
so that our frontline staff are armed with timely information to
offer more targeted services to customers anytime, anywhere.

HONG KONG, MACAU AND OTHER
MARKETS

Brands and products
e |n Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, we shall focus on
promoting our services and products through our flagship brand.

e \We continue to offer products in different segments and to fulfil
customers’ needs throughout their journey. We also bring
exclusive products with localised features in order to create
product differentiation.

e |n FY2021, T MARK products accounted for 31.6% of the RSV
of our diamond products and dropped by 13.8% in Hong Kong
and Macau.
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Retail network

In FY2021, we closed a net of 6 CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY
POS in tourist areas in the Hong Kong and Macau markets as
the number of tourists from Mainland China declined. Further
POS consolidation will depend on expected border reopening
and the rental market condition of retail real estate. However,
we continue to strive to maintain our leadership in both markets.
For this reason, we shall not hesitate to expand in strategic
locations. For instance, we recently opened our new POS in the
Castle of Magical Dreams in Hong Kong Disneyland.

In FY2021, a net of 4 POS in Asia-Pacific area were closed as
business was affected by the pandemic. However, we will
continue to identify opportunities in Asia-Pacific and may
continue our expansion when international travel resumes.

Five duty-free POS were opened in Hainan, Mainland China during
the financial year in order to serve our travel retail customers who
have been affected by the suspension of international travel. We
will continue to expand in this market along with the development
of duty-free shopping in Mainland China.

Products with Hong Kong local features — TOKEN OF FRIENDSHIP Collection

R2021HBFE - R FEAMKEEHE TR -
BPIREA RRM IR RFEMACERARBRES
EH-ERETEFTEATER  HEORROR
ERNTEFHBEETHOMRR - A RADE
NEFEEMETISNREMW - AER UL - HA
M2 THBRERBIEIETES - Ol BRI
MEEBBETREENTYEBNEFRRMTES -

R0 BFE  TAREBEAZZBZEMF
MEABETER - A RAUISEERTREER
B - R RIFR IR IRIERS - AR g A R
H 90 R SR

APHFE  RHEETFEAMEHRARSEALRT
B URBZEBRRTEEZENRETER
B BETERNMERBYRROER - RS
BRRUITS -

New opening in the Castle of Magical Dreams of Hong Kong Disneyland
EFmTELEFTYBEMENNOIE
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Cloud Kiosks at K11 Musea in Hong Kong
IR EEKIT Musea I EHE A

We will also adjust the implementation strategy of smart
retail applications according to different geographic needs.

In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, the challenging
business environment has prompted us to focus on
transforming our current business model through innovation
and technology in order to enhance retail experience and
improve operational efficiency.

Approximately 22% of our POS in Hong Kong and Macau
installed Cloud Kiosks as at 31 March 2021.

We are also optimising smart tools in the Hong Kong and
Macau markets, hoping that it will help building closer ties
between our staff and customers, and increase traffic both
online and offline.

To better cater to the lifestyle and shopping preferences of
customers in Hong Kong and Macau, we attempted to place
smart vending machines in different shopping malls as a pilot
in FY2021 to create unique shopping scenarios and
experiences, which was successful in attracting different
groups of customers.

In FY2021, we have also started partnership with K Dollar
reward system of New World Development to broaden our
customer base and boost recurring spending.

Managing Directors’ Strategic Report
BEEAKIBRRBE

Smart vending machine in Hong Kong
EEMERER
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Hong Kong and Macau

EERIAM

As at 31 March 2021

72021538318 FY2021

225,000 0

1 . , 44 1%

Number of members Members’ repeat purchase

B8%A as a % of respective RSV
SEBHBLIAR
ZEEZBEDL

SMART MANUFACTURING

The objective of smart manufacturing is to increase the operational
speed of the overall supply chain. To this end, we implement the
C2M initiative, so that production can seamlessly be connected
with customers and the frontline. Meanwhile, we also focus on
enhancing product development capability to better support our
retail expansion strategy in the coming years.

e We adopt the Industry 4.0 framework to transform the
conventional manufacturing model into C2M of which D-ONE is
one of our implementation measures.

e \We make full use of the Internet of Things (“loT") technology in
our production processes, such that equipment is interconnected
and minimum human involvement is required. WWe connect our
highly automated production lines with customers seamlessly via
D-ONE, providing customers speedy services that can fulfil their
needs for customised products.

e \We also apply the “Digital Twin” model to establish a digital
virtual factory through a production simulation system for
performing geometric simulations, and in turn identifying the
optimum production arrangement and resource allocation. At
the same time, we use sensors in each process and equipment
in physical factories to control actual production progress
against simulated estimates in real time, allowing management
personnel to deal with abnormal situations immediately.

Annual Report 2021
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We value our products and services. We are committed to
preserving and reinvigorating traditional craftsmanship. At the
same time, we cultivate the artisanal spirit through promoting
cross-generational craftsmanship, innovation and new
technologies in the industry. With more than 20 years of research
and production experience, the craftsmen of Chow Tai Fook's
Master Studio strive for product improvement by combining
traditional craftsmanship and innovative technologies.

C* Creative Park is designed for startup entrepreneurs to create
an environment for business incubation and to explore
cooperation opportunities among investors, government and
other stakeholders. This incubation space established at Chow
Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan, Mainland China, is to support
startups in four major industries, namely, cultural and creative
design, e-commerce, innovative technology and materials, and
education and training. The Park aims to facilitate development
of a jewellery ecosystem and create synergy within it, which in
turn will benefit the jewellery industry. Meanwhile, we
cooperated with numerous successful startups to adopt their
innovative technology products in our operations.

Managing Directors’ Strategic Report
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Production centres’ positioning

Shunde Artisanal Smart
Manufacturing Centre
JEE RO E

Inheritance of craftmanship
TE&EREM

Shenzhen R&D and
Smart Manufacturing Centre
YNNG S B O

Production technology research and
development

A E R

. . S B1=
Hong Kong Meticulous Manufacturing Centre \ o Shunde JIE%

FBEmREDL

Meticulous production

BamaiE
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Wuhan Smart Manufacturing Centre
HREBEEERO

Ecosystem of jewellery industry, mechanisation and mass production
KREEZEFLBE RS RIS EE
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OPERATIONS

Intellectual capital and corporate culture

Our employees
HBMAMET
81.4%

As at 31 March 2021
202163A31H

Total number of employees FREl R it

=

;En

E
NEFREEZETAL

Number of employees by reportable segment
R 2RSS THEY

18.6%

Mainland China

Hong Kong, Macau
and other markets

BTy =& RMREMTS
Number of employees by function
2 7 9 O O + RIS THY
’ V4 61.2% 17.0% 21.8%

Number of employees
BTI®AE

a»

Sales
HE

Promote a culture of integrity

e Qur colleagues play an important part in living by one of the
Group's key core values, integrity.

e The Group has launched a culture enhancement programme to
uphold our long-established corporate culture of integrity and
promote it among all employees. We expect employees to be
abide by high standards of ethics and integrity in their line of
work. Accordingly, employees’ attitudes and behaviours are
assessed using the following criteria: reasonableness, logicality,
legitimacy, fairness, transparency, and impartiality.

e Both top-down and bottom-up approaches are adopted to promote
and implement the programme, with the support from senior
management and cooperation among different business units.

COVID-19, facts over fear

e |n FY2021, COVID-19 pandemic caused massive disruptions to
offline traffic. Accelerating digital transformation became one of
the top priorities.

e From workforce side, the Group has embraced changes and
challenges, prepared our colleagues to turn adversity to
opportunities, and adopted a “Facts over Fear” attitude. A
command post was established immediately to ensure that
effective communications were maintained, measures and
medical suppliers were in place, and our frontline colleagues
were properly trained by veteran social media influencers to
enable them to engage customers virtually.

32 ‘ Managing Directors’ Strategic Report
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E-Internship, transforming traditional internship

In FY2021, we launched an E-Internship during the pandemic, with
which over 40 interns from renowned local and overseas universities
came onboard and worked with our business teams remotely.

Flexible working arrangements were one of the highlights of our
programme, which granted our interns the freedom to work where
and when it is convenient to them. They can choose to start earlier
or later in the day and work remotely away from the office.

To encourage our interns to be a “slashie” at work and in life,
they were given the opportunities to participate in more than
one innovation projects and co-create innovative ideas. They
could also pursue multiple internships during the summer break
and even continue the internship after returning to studies made
possible by flexible working hours and locations.

Most of these interns rated the programme as “strongly

satisfactory,” which reflects the programme’s success and
popularity among this generation of digital natives.

EREEE AEERNESEIE

RN BFE - ZMEREHMAELERES
HE - BiCE40 B RERMAEIINNERBHEE
£ mBEB TFERMNEGEGAE -

BEEIERHERBMAEINERZ — - HMETE
BAEEHEIEN S MRMIENaH - B84
AETERRFABBMAMBIIE  UREHAEIA
SN 77 8 BE T4 -

RBEEEBEETEMERREA [RIEK] -
AA2E—{ER A EORIFIER - XEHBRZEIHMA
Ee MR EERAERR2ESEEEIRE -
BMEZSRHEETERBMLE - SHhriH2S
BATAEEER -

RBDEBEHZFERT FEEWE] - RBRZ
BRI HETT BOR =8OS R A B

Online kick-off meeting of E-Internship programme

ERE R RING B SR
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An enterprise architecture and application review was carried
out to facilitate the roadmap for and prioritisation of IT
infrastructure and application upgrade, which also ensured IT
systems to align with the Group’s business goals. We
enhanced the Smart Retail Applications, such as Cloud Kiosk,
CloudSales 365 and D-ONE, as network upgrades were
completed with faster network speed and lowered network
costs. Ongoing cloud migration improved browsing speed
and enhanced access stability.

Data is important in today’s digital era and is a vital asset to
us. To make it work for our digital needs, data stewardship
practice has been incorporated into our day-to-day operation
to ensure the quality of data for our analytics use. In our
view, both people and tools are critical success factors.
Therefore, we established the roles of data steward in
business units and a centralised metadata repository to
manage our data asset across businesses.

Distribution of electronic coupons and livestreaming were
also offered to our valued members for their online or offline
consumption. Natural Language Processing (“NLP") search
technology was rolled out in selected stores to improve
product search efficiency.

Intelligent control system was introduced and implemented
in our production lines to achieve better alignment with the
Group’'s C2M initiative. The system enhances workforce and
order management and provides timely production
management information as well.

Managing Directors’ Strategic Report
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

In FY2021, despite a challenging business environment brought
about by the pandemic, our Mainland China business continued to
deliver strong growth performance.

With the Chinese government’s “dual circulation” strategy, we
believed that jewellery industry could benefit from the growth in
domestic consumption. As we are optimistic about the mid-to long-
term growth in the Mainland China market, we will focus on our
Mainland China’s business development in the coming future. On one
hand, we will continue our retail expansion strategy through
penetrating into lower tier cities and leveraging franchisees’ local
knowledge. On the other hand, we would push forward our smart
retail strategy through enhancing the retail experience and focusing on
020 channel integrations to take advantage of digital transformation.

Though Hong Kong and Macau markets are facing multiple
challenges currently, we believe that the domestic market has
bottomed out as the pandemic situation is expected to become
more stable. When the major border crossings reopen, the number
of visits made and retail market would recover gradually.

For other markets, we will focus on countries with a higher
domestic consumption, and continue our expansion strategy when
international travel resumes.

When it comes to smart manufacturing, in order to cope with
future development and C2M in particular, we will further enhance
our automation levels to meet the product needs. In the future, we
will enhance the development of our Wuhan centre to support the
rapid development of the frontline as Wuhan's advantageous
geographical location can help accelerate the overall logistics.

We are delighted to report that we are moving steadily towards our
four long-term goals, namely, (1) to strengthen our market leader
position as we seek further market penetration; (2) to develop a
comprehensive jewellery ecosystem; (3) to be a tech-savvy
jewellery company by harnessing innovation and technology; and

(4) to improve operational efficiency through digital transformation.

Annual Report 2021
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Going forward, we believe that our Dual-Force Strategy will enable RERR  BMEEED IXRREBERTENBAKSE

our customers to experience a blissful fulfilment through jewellery. BEEREETER -

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong EFE EFELIE
Managing Director, Managing Director, (12 REREGINFEF) (FE A )
Corporate and HK, Mainland China ERELE BRitt 8 4

Macau & Overseas

Hong Kong, 8 June 2021 B 2021F6 A8H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & B & & & 5L 4> thr

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

OVERVIEW

The business environment was challenging in FY2021 amid the
pandemic and macroeconomic uncertainties. Yet, the Group's
business maintained a steady and healthy growth, driven by our
retail expansion in Mainland China with net openings of 746 POS
and a solid recovery there backed by an improving consumer
sentiment and softened gold price in 2HFY2021. Our strategic
steps on smart retail also helped us achieve better customer
engagement and boosted our e-commerce and 020 related sales
in Mainland China during the financial year. On the other hand,
business in Hong Kong, Macau and other markets was stagnant as
major border crossings remained closed.

The Group's adjusted gross profit margin was benefitted during
THFY2021 as gold price surged, yet, such effect faded in
2HFY2021. Coupled with a higher sales contribution from
wholesale business in Mainland China and a less favourable
product mix, adjusted gross profit margin declined year-on-year
during the financial year. Nevertheless, thanks to our well
contained SG&A, operating leverage and government subsidies
and reliefs granted, the Group's core operating profit increased by
51.7% year-on-year in FY2021.

With the COVID-19 related rent concession, unrealised gain on
gold loans as well as foreign exchange gain, netting off impairment
on assets and goodwill, profit attributable to shareholders was
elevated by 107.7% compared to the low base in FY2020 while
comparing to FY2019, it rose by 31.3% on a two-year basis.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENWEST
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Revenue by reportable segment X5 27 EREI5HE LR
For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31 BILFE
(HK$ million B&#&T)

YoY change
Bt 21t
80,000
70,164 A 23.6%
70,000 66,661
60,000 59,156 56,751
' 51,246
50,000 63.7%
62.2% 85.1% 46.5%
40,000 60.5% 71.8% “
30,000 —
Mainland China F g it
20,000 -
B % 3% Hong Kong, M d
10,000 30.5% e o 28.2% s v s othermarkets o
0 : ' BB RPFIREMTS
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
MBFE MBFE
g T¥E
Revenue (HK$ million) EER(FEET) 1HFY2020 2HFY2020 1HFY2021 2HFY2021 El%-214 El>%-X(4
Mainland China B i 20,224 20,539 21,216 38,482 Aa49% a87.4%
Hong Kong, Macau and BE ORI REMTIS 9,309 6,679 3,457 7,009 ¥ 62.9% A 4.9%
other markets
Overall ®ee 29,633 27,218 24,673 45491 < 165% 4 67.1%

e The Group's revenue was up by 23.6% to HK$70,164 million in .
FY2021. Versus FY2019, revenue was up by 5.3% on a two-
year basis.

e Revenue from Mainland China jumped 46.5% during the .
financial year, supported by new openings, improving consumer
sentiment and a softened gold price in 2HFY2021 as well as a
low base of comparison. Its contribution to the Group's revenue
was 85.1% in the financial year.

e |n Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, revenue shrank 34.5% i
year-on-year as the challenging macros, pandemic and closure
of major border crossings weighed on consumer spending.
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Revenue by product!” (excluding jewellery trading and service
income from franchisees)
RESVESHEEE (FTEEKEE SR MEEMRBEKN)

For the year ended 31 March #Z=3 A31 AILFE

(HK$ million B&7#7T)

YoY change
B4 214
69,289 A 23.2%
70,000 65,966
57,892 24.1% A 84%
60,000 28.3% 56,250
50,821
50,000 | 30.0% 27.4%
o |
40,000 1.8% Gem-set, Platinum and
K-gold jewellery
30,000 o 68.2% A 26.3% BREER S RKESEN
64.1% o 66.5% -
20,000 62.4% Gold jewellery and products
ECHMRER
10,000
I
o 0 57% § 6.0% I 55% §61% 7.7% A 55.4% Watches 554
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
% of Revenue EEEMAL 1HFY2020 2HFY2020 1HFY2021 2HFY2021
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery TREER A RKEEH 29.1% 25.5% 30.1% 20.9%
Gold jewellery and products B H N NE S 64.5% 68.7% 60.9% 72.2%
Watches Bk 6.4% 5.7% 9.0% 6.9%

e Revenue of gold jewellery and products was up by 26.3% in
FY2021. Despite that international gold price hike deterred retail
demand during 1THFY2021, sales of this product category
rebounded and grew at 74.9% in 2HFY2021. Its contribution to
the Group's revenue expanded 170 basis points to 68.2% in the
financial year. Within the product category, contribution of fixed
price gold products was 9.1% (FY2020: 10.9%).

e \Watches also registered a strong revenue growth of 55.4% in
FY2021, fuelled by a buoyant domestic demand in Mainland
China amid the international travel restrictions.

(1) Starting from FY2021, we re-classify our products into 3 categories namely gem-set, platinum and
k-gold jewellery, gold jewellery and products, and watches, which the Company believes is
appropriate in reflecting its performance

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

(1)
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9.1% (2020 FBFE © 10.9%) °
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SSSG by major market EREEMIBEIFHEIEHEER

141.2%
L
12.2% 31.2%
0, 0/
10..5A> 3% 11an p .
¥ 6;/ '\ =
10.9% -6.8% -49.5% T11.29
" 9\42.3;/’3—5.6%\9.5// N ./_31..0%
e ‘?\./&.5%
65.0% -75.5%
—e—
1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q 1Q 2Q 30 4Q Mainland China FEIR it
—
FY2020 FY2021 Hong Kong and Macau & & & 8F9
FY2020 FY2021
SSS volume
SSSG SSSG growth
FEHENE RAEHEEE REHELR
Mainland China B b v 15.1% a31.9% a 82%
Hong Kong and Macau EHE MR w387% w41.3% w429%

¢ In Mainland China, SSS revived and turned positive in 2QFY2021 e BERBEESEN  FREAMARIEHEEK2021

amid an easing pandemic situation there. Coupled with the resilient VHFEF-_FTRERBEBIELE - ARFERE A
demand and an exceptionally low base of comparison, SSSG FUHBREHER BEHESHEER20210KBFE
accelerated to 141.2% in 4QFY2021. As a result, SSS in Mainland FNEEEAZE141.2% - A FEAHEESE
China increased by 31.9% during FY2021. HER2021 HBFE EA31.9% °

e |In Hong Kong and Macau, a muted customer traffic led to a o BEKEBMFMBEHER22NVBHFERRRSE

41.3% drop in SSS during FY2021. Yet, SSS rose 31.2% in M NFE41.3% © A - ARAMEEER - [
4QFY2021 attributable to a recovery of local consumption. JEHER 2021 RFEENEE LA 31.2% ©
Annual Report 2021 Performance Review 4']
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Profitability BFIgED

Group %[E Core operating profit? by reportable segment
BRU 2{RSWEIFHEEEE RN
For the year ended 31 March #Z%E3 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 March #Z%E3 A31 BIEFE

(HK$ million B&#T)

29.6% 10,000
27.9% ° 28.2%
— 8,226
8,000
20.4%
Y 6,000 2H: 4,176
18f,/°_,,// .Ns.s% 5,004 5,096
°
4,000 2H: 2,2
2H: 2,942 5
.
° ° 12.3% 2000 1958 142,843 1H: 4,050
10.5% o 4 . . 14,
% 10.0% 1H: 2,062 2H: 1,042 591 on
0 1H: 926 B 1H: 685 2H: 376
2019 20202H: (94) 2021 1H: 28
2019 2020 2021
— —
Mainland China (2HFY) Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
o . (2HFY)
Adjusted gross profit margin' Core operating profit margin? R (R EE T H4) B RFRAMTS (MBFETHE)
ERBEENER RO FELEEREO — —
—o— Mainland China (1HFY) Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
Selling and distribution costs and general and administrative expenses (THFY) N
("SG&A") as a % to revenue B it (BA R 2 L ) &8 BPIREMT S (MRFEL¥EF)
HERDHRAUR —RRITBEX(MHERTHEMAX At E (BRI
(1) Adjusted gross profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of (1) KERENEFRBEEMNEGEHREERMERESENTE) IR TES
unrealised loss (gain) on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more BENAZEBE (RS OYE  ARAHEGHBEENEEMTRES
complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses ERBREBHERBY
(2)  Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of (2) FELERFIRAEEFEGHRBEREMEREERE) - BEARER
adjusted gross profit and other income, less SG&A, which the Company believes is useful in EFREMBEHET  RBERITHRAY - ARAREGEHSHEEHE
gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of ERTHRALERAREBNERBS
its businesses
1THFY 2HFY

YoY change YoY change
HHREE BHREE

s TaE
(HK$ million) (AEBT) 1HFY2020 2HFY2020 1HFY2021 2HFY2021 G124 22 E1:4-2(4
Revenue 2 29,633 27,218 24,673 45,491 w 16.5% a 67.1%
Adjusted gross profit RABREBHEF 9,064 7,743 8,660 11,127 w 4.5% a 43.7%
Adjusted gross profit margin AR 1R B E TR 30.7% 28.4% 35.1% 245% a 4.4%pts w 3.9% pts
BES# AESH

Other income Hiplg A 213 224 347 345 a 62.7% a 54.4%
SG&A HE RITHRAX (5,750) (5,807) (4,928) (6,921) w143% a192%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERITBES AL 19.5% 21.3% 20.0% 152% a 0.5%pts w 6.1% pts
ERERS 1B 5 7 & 185 7 &

Core operating profit FELEEF 3,627 2,160 4,078 4552 A 156% a 110.8%
Core operating profit margin FELEGFE 11.9% 7.9% 16.5% 10.0% a 4.6%pts a 2.1% pts

R T =P
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Adjusted gross profit margin decreased by 140 basis points in
FY2021, mainly due to a higher sales contribution from
wholesale business, gold jewellery and products and watches in
retail business as compared with FY2020.

Nevertheless, core operating profit margin increased to 12.3%,
thanks to our well contained SG&A and operating leverage. In
FY2021, the Group’s core operating profit increased by 51.7%
year-on-year.

Among the two segments, Mainland China continued to be our
main profit contributor and accounted for over 95% of the
Group's core operating profit in FY2021. Its core operating profit
recorded a robust growth of 61.4% during the financial year.

On the other hand, core operating profit of Hong Kong, Macau
and other markets registered a 31.7% decline in FY2021, yet it
has demonstrated a recovery trend since 1THFY2021.

Profit attributable to shareholders increased by 107.7% in
FY2021, mainly benefitted from one-off rent concession,
unrealised gain on gold loans plus foreign exchange gain,
netting off impairment on assets and goodwill. Comparing to
FY2019, it rose by 31.3% on a two-year basis.

We use adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, for
analysis, which represents gross profit margin generated from
the business after eliminating the effect of unrealised loss (gain)
on gold loans, because this measure better reflects the
operational performance of the Group and is useful for
understanding the underlying trend of its businesses.

R R A ERN RN 2021 BB FE N FE 140 @
T EE2HAMBEER URZEEKETEDE
£l N E m S8 8K BE 10 55 45 B RR AR HL 2 2020 B
FEBMRLET -

SR - R PIE BUE IS R IT B R S B E
= \fgi«‘%/ﬁn%ur;Eﬂ'i']Z 3% ° 722021 HﬁBZ
FE - AEENFELEGENIRF EFA51.7% ©

MED S PEAMESREEEF AR »
202" M EFREEAEE T 2ELEFEBI5% K
TELERNRAMREEEF61.4%MBHER -

S—HH 2021 MBFEEEE  RPIREMTISN
FEESHERIRE31.7% kg - AR 20218
BFEE LLFHREEEBS

2021 TBFE - REEEEMIEM107.7% @ *
EZER—RUEHSESR  E2EERERREN
NEEH WS - BREEKEERE- - 220198
BFEMEL  REEBERFERNFRORE A
31.3% °

HAPIAL T IR EN R (GERR MBS ER G
B)EDH  HMERBEBASNENENRES
fEEMRERER (W) OFE - BABEETERE
FHERREENKLERALBYD TREBHER
B -

Unrealised loss (gain) REFEER (KE)

For the year ended 31 March HE3HAZMBLEE 2019 2020 2021
Gross profit margin E A= 27.9% 28.4% 28.6%
Unrealised loss (gain) on gold loans HEBEARAEBEER (KES) 0.0% 1.2% (0.4)%
Adjusted gross profit margin LB BHERN R 27.9% 29.6% 28.2%

Annual Report 2021 Performance Review 43
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e \We use gold loans (short position in gold) for economic hedge

purpose to mitigate the financial impact of the gold price
fluctuations in our gold inventories (long position). The long-term
effect of long and short positions in gold is expected to net out
each other through the sales of gold inventories. However,
when we take a snapshot position, a short-term timing
difference may arise. The unsettled gold loan contracts are
revalued at market price at the end of the reporting period,
while the gold inventories are not revalued as it is measured at
weighted average cost, unless an impairment indicator exists.

As at 31 March 2021, there was an unrealised gain of HK$288
million arising from such timing difference.

Movements in adjusted gross profit margin $EFAEEMENREEH)
For the year ended 31 March #%3 A31 HILFE

BPMAESERE (FE2AR) AEEERE RN - A
RESEeFE(BE2UR)BRKDNEBTE &
EHRRNRGEYERISSEELEREFERE
B EHBRERRNBARRHE @ AEEL
CEMREZE  NBREPR - KEBNEEEEAS
WERmIZERETERS  MERFLABETR
ADNE IR AT ENESFEY T EETER -

M202143A31H  REBANBEEELNRE
R H288EEBT -

Changes in product mix

33.0% in retail business
ZEEBNERESED
31.0% Changes in gross profit margin
’ by product in retail business
29.6% ZEEBRERIADNENZEE
0.2%
23.0% 0.8% 28.2% Impact from wholesale business
o BEBEEBHTE
27.0% 1.8% Changes in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and other markets mix
PEIRH - B RFR
25 0% HiTHBEARD
’ 2020 2021

e At group level, FY2021 adjusted gross profit margin contracted

by 140 basis points year-on-year.

e The higher contribution from our wholesale business and gold

jewellery and products and watches in retail business led to the

contraction of gross profit margin which was partially offset
by the favourable market mix with promising growth in
Mainland China.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENWEST

MEBEET - 2021 B HRFEEHBREOENEIZF
TR 140 @ -

MEXBRTELEBNESENRERAREBERE
MmO EM EFBBERNKTE - N6 TR
EPEAMSSIBRER THRNBRAENTSES
A Py -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAXEHREEEER AR



London gold price #3&E
(US$ per ounce X8

2,300
2,100
1,900
1,700
1,500

1,300

1,100

London gold price

RAEE

Average of T-180 days!"
T-180KFHIEM

1.4.2019 1.4.2020

(1) Average of T-180 days refers to the average gold price of previous 180 days on rolling basis, being
a proxy of the average price of our hedged inventories. Average of T-180 days was used for
FY2020 and FY2021

FY2021 Closing price YoY change
W ER L (L

London gold price

a2 a 5.1%

SG&A

SG&A by reportable segment XTI 2RI BEFEIHERITHRAS
For the year ended 31 March # =3 A31 HILFE
(HK$ million & &#7T)

YoY change
14,000 Eil:4-X14
12,025 11,849 A 25%
12,000 11,657
10,000
62.3%
8,000 65.9% 75.2% A 17.0%
6,000
4,000
37.7% 34.1%
2,000 ’ 24.8% v 25.4%
0
2019 2020 2021

Annual Report 2021
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31.3.2021

(1) T-180KRFHEHEBEEE1SORNESHE  AERRAMEHIES
FEHFHER - 2020 B EFE K 2021 HBRFEHERT-180 K FHE

Average price YoY change
EHEREEE(L

a 24.6%

HERITHMAX

L ____|

Mainland China B R it

|

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &8 + JBPI Rk Eftb 5
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SG&A to revenue ratio SHER{THEXIGEEHELE
For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31 BILFE
(HK$ million E&7#&7T)

20.4%
{ J
0
mf/ YoY change
14,000 16.9% El4-¥14
( ]
12,025 59
12,000 - 11,849 a 25%
10,000 6.9%
8.0% 6.6% a 1.7%
8,000
6,000 I 2:9% Iz.s% 2.8% A 25.6%
12.7% 1.9% v 15.4%
4,000 |
1.1% 1.2% 0.8% - 15.4%
2,000 0.7% 1.0% 0.8% a 1.1%
2.9% 2.9% 2.5% a 5.4%
0
2019 2020 2021

) Other SG&A mainly represented bank charges incurred for sales transactions settlement, royalty
fees for the sales of licensed products, certificate expenses and utilities

e SG&A expenses was well managed to be increased by 2.5% to
HK$11,849 million.

e SG&A ratio contracted by 350 basis points to 16.9% due to
operating leverage and our effective cost control. In particular,
advertising and promotion expenses was down by 15.4% and
packaging materials was almost flat during the year.

e Analyses of the major SG&A components, including staff costs
and related expenses, concessionaire fees and lease-related
expenses are provided on p.51 to 52 and 63 to 64 of this report.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

—e—
As a % of revenue FT{E& £EE AL

|

Staff costs and related expenses & T 2<% #HRIRI X
I

Concessionaire fees EHES R

|

Rental expenses f &R

|

Depreciation and amortisation (Right-of-use assets, “ROUA”)

ERRE (RAEEE)

Depreciation and amortisation (Property, plant and equipment)
FERBE (W% - BERRE)

I

Advertising and promotion expenses &% R EEMX

I
Packaging materials 25

L
Other SG&A" EAthSHERTHBI X

(1) EMEERTRRXIECRHEXSKREELNORITTHEE HESXHZ
ERNENER FRERKER

e HERITHHYREEESE LA25%%=11,849
BEBT-

o HERTTHAXLLRITHNEEMHRARHRAK
PRI B350 @R F£16.9% - LEHEFAE
ENREEFRND16.4% - MERYHRIEARRT -

s FHAHERITHRAXTIZMEKER(BEEIKA
REBRAX  EESKEEERBR) O THR
MAHREELI E52ER63E64H o

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXBHEEERRAA



MAINLAND CHINA ch B Py 3

Revenue by operation model {ZEZEHER B FHIZLEE
For the year ended 31 March #Z=3 A31 A ItEE
(HK$ million & &#7T)

YoY change
E[i% 27
70,000
59,698 A 46.5%
60,000
50,000
42,432 40,763 59.8% a 333%
40,000 36,804
31,019
30,000 71.7% 65.7%
76.3%
20,000 78.4% —
40.2% a 71.7% Retail &
10,000 o/,
. 23.7% 28.3% 34.3% -
. 21.6% . Wholesale #t 2
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

e In Mainland China, our retail revenue represents sales from self- e RHPEAHM BMNTELEERERBEETE

operated POS, e-commerce and other direct channels, while B ETHBEREMBEERENHERE  mALtEE

wholesale revenue mainly represents sales to franchisees and XA EZEAMNBEEHEEE M RAMNEAFRER

provision of services to franchisees. TEEA ©

e Revenue in Mainland China leaped 46.5% to HK$59,698 million o R2021MEFE  PEIANMAKEEEZH46.5%

in FY2021. On a constant exchange rate basis, revenue rose by £59,698 8B T o IWAREXRE - KA BE
44 5% in the financial year. EEXEFELERIL5% °

e Wholesale revenue soared 71.7% during the financial year, o RERBWMM MBI BERHIIETELMES - it

boosted by new openings in lower tier and county level cities. BEETERATREERATI.7% - RAMKRFE

Its revenue contribution climbed 590 basis points to 40.2% in BT S RN LI N 590 (A2 FE40.2% ©

the financial year. Share of wholesale revenue in Mainland China 2021 B E L FEM2021 BMFE T ¥F

was 36.3% and 42.3% in THFY2021 and 2HFY2021, respectively. B AR EE EBMAL D A A36.3%
FM42.3% °

e As at 31 March 2021, we had 2,659 franchised CHOW TAl o 202143 A31H  H & A 2,659 & F KX 1&E Ik

FOOK JEWELLERY POS. For majority of these POS, we retain ENRTER - RAMBOAREARENESTER
inventory ownership until sales transactions are completed with EMETSEEBE TN BEERSIREGFTERE
retail consumers, upon which wholesale revenue is recognised. T FRHTHE BISERIEEERE - SLEM
These POS contributed approximately 64.1% of the wholesale BEEFNEETEHPR NI B E XTE
revenue in Mainland China. #64.1% °

Annual Report 2021
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SSSG of major products TEELFEHEER

159.8%
J
79.6%
(]
4% o 12.7%
o -3.0% 2.5% 66% 6.2/D "
- o ° 5
3.0% ° 0.9% o 2.5%
’ 1M.7% 9% ’49-2%/% a0 ° 5.2%
o .
-51.0%
10 20 30 4Q 10 20 30 4Q

FY2020 FY2021

Same Store ASP REFHEE

FY2021

Gem-set jewellery
BRTTSHER B B

HK$

7,000

(FY2020": HK$6,500)

Gold jewellery and products

HLEMRER
HK$

5,000

(FY2020": HK$4,100)

Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery BkE $#k - $HE RKES EHHH

—o—

Gold jewellery and products &% & & & E

FY2021
SSS volume
SSSG growth
FEHERE R/EHEER
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery KREER A RKESEH a11.2% a 0.4%
Gold jewellery and products "oy RER a 35.3% a 11.3%
Watches $EIK a 76.0% a 21.8%
Overall e a 31.9% a 82%

(4]

Same Store ASP on FY2021 Same Store basis

In Mainland China, Same Store ASP continued an upward trend
in all product categories during FY2021.

Retail demand for gold jewellery and products was sluggish in
THFY2021. Yet, as gold price softened coupled with a
favourable impact from the appreciation of RMB, demand
picked up in 2HFY2021. This led to a SSSG of 35.3% for full
year. ASP of gold jewellery and products surged from HK$4,100
in FY2020 to HK$5,000 in FY2021, mainly thanks to the
continual strength in CTF e HUA Collection.

SSS of gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery grew 11.2%
during the financial year. Gem-set jewellery ASP went up from
HK$6,500 in FY2020 to HK$7,000 in FY2021.

Watches witnessed a very strong year and delivered a 76.0%
SSSG in FY2021, supported by a buoyant domestic demand.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENWEST

(1) FEFEEA2021 B BEF EH R 5 FEE

o RAPENM - AERBRNNREFSEBER 2021

TR R A

2R EFABE -

s 2B BEE LY FHESEMRERNTESR K
RIg o A - AFEKR 2021 HWHFE THFEEE

Bl R ARETHER KA H

=27
wE

e S5

2FREHEERISI% B RERTHE
B 2020 T L E 94,100 78 7T E3RE 2021 BB
E#5,0008 T TEXERARNEEEARIFE

o KEZH HERKSEHNRAEHERNATHRE
EETH11.2%  TRE ik & 8 60 F 195 B 1 2020
BN E 96,5008 7T T £2021 B E #97,000

BT

o EERBRYIBHOIEFT @ EERIAT - 2021 MK
FEREHEERRT6.0% -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

ARBHREEEFR AT



Mainland China S EAith
For the year ended 31 March =3 A31 AILFE

30.5%

zsff/"N.o%
(]

17.6% .
%
®
14.9%
11.8% 12-5E/—:
° ® 13.8% ——
Adjusted gross profit margin & EZNEFIR
-
SG&A as a % to revenue
HERTHEXMEEEETIL
—.—
Core operating profit margin F E24&&HEFR R
2019 2020 2021
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
HBEE BBEE
t¥xE T¥F
(HK$ million) (EB#T) 1HFY2020 2HFY2020 1HFY2021 2HFY2021 [& b 24t El:4-3i4
Revenue = 20,224 20,539 21,216 38,482 a 4.9% a 87.4%
Adjusted gross profit BABIBNER] 6,445 5,988 7,343 9,368 A 13.9% 4 56.4%
Adjusted gross profit margin S - OESY B 31.9% 29.2% 34.6% 24.3% a27%pts ¥ 4.9% pts
1B a5 % 18855 %
Other income A 121 158 197 228 A 62.4% A 44.6%
SG&A SHE RITHAX (3,724) (3,892) (3,491) (5,420) v 6.2% a 39.2%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERITHEZAE 18.4% 19.0% 16.5% 14.1% ¥ 1.9% pts ¥ 4.9% pts
ERBAHSI 185 5 % 188 5%
Core operating profit TEEE R 2,843 2,253 4,050 4,176 A 425% a 85.3%
Core operating profit margin FEEE R TR 14.1% 11.0% 19.1% 10.9% a 5.0%pts ¥ 0.1% pts

18 5 5 % 181 B 2 %

e Adjusted gross profit margin in Mainland China expanded by d
270 basis points to 34.6% in THFY2021 as like-for-like gross
profit margin improved, especially in gold jewellery and
products. However, in 2HFY2021, adjusted gross profit margin
decreased by 490 basis points to 24.3% as a result of higher
contribution of gold jewellery and products and watches in retail
business, decline in gross profit margin in gold jewellery and
products and impact from wholesale business.

e Yet, core operating profit margin stayed at about 11% in d
2HFY2021, similar to 2HFY2020 level.

Annual Report 2021
2021 F 4§

EEER(FHERSENHLER) ENETAMK
= PEABEHEBREOENER2021 FREFE
FHF EF270H% FE34.6% - ERZTEEKH
MESAMMERTIBEREREREMN B EHH
MEREMETRIMBEEBEROZE KRR
1% 89 £ E 522021 B B F E T F T 490 {6 2
FE24.3% °

R TELLHMER2021 T REE T EE4
B 11% - E2020 HHEE N HEKFHRE -
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e Overall, adjusted gross profit margin contracted by 250 basis
points to 28.0% in FY2021 as a result of higher sales
contribution from wholesale business, gold jewellery and

BEME - L2020 BFE - 2021 HRFEL
SEBIRHERNETEE 260 EH FE28.0% - B
BEBHTEXBNESEHNEMRBRERD

products and watches in retail business as compared

with FY2020.

e SG&A ratio decreased by 380 basis points to 14.9% in FY2021,
thanks to our cost savings, relief received from government on

major expense item and operating leverage.

e Full year core operating profit margin expanded by 130 basis
points year-on-year, demonstrating a continuous improvement

across the previous three financial years.

SG&A

SG&A to revenue ratio SHER{THEXIEE£EILE
For the year ended 31 March =3 A31 AILFE
(HK$ million B&ET)

o 18.7%
17'.6/0_’—.N-9% YoY change
10,000 ° B4 4
9,000 8,910 a 17.0%
8,000 7,487 7,616
7000 5.8% A 14.1%
6,000 6.7% 7.4%
5,000
3.3% A 25.7%
4,000 - 39%
0.9% A 21.4%
3,000
§1.0% 1.1% A 5.7%
2,000 1'30” 0.8% a 0.7%
58? }g; 0.9% a 7.4%
1,000 e '
2.4% 2.4% 2.1% A 29.9%
0
2019 2020 2021

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

HERRBMER -

o REREMIRAREHEH REFEETEMZIAR
EeviF R R 2B - 2021 MRFEHE RTT
B b = TR 380 fEBEF2£14.9% ©

s AEFERVHEMNTRFERISOBHA T £BE
A B ERHENE -

HERITTHBRAX

—o—
As a % of respective revenue Fr{G R £EEA DL

|

Staff costs and related expenses & T AR HER X
I

Concessionaire fees SHED &K

[

Rental expenses &M%

[

Depreciation and amortisation (ROUA)

EREE (EREEE)

|

Depreciation and amortisation (Property, plant and equipment)
EREE (V¥ BREREHE)

I

Advertising and promotion expenses &% &k S8R %

I
Packaging materials B34

I
Other SGRA E A ER1TIRI X

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXBHEEERRAA



Staff costs and related expenses BT RAREREMX
For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31 BILFE
(HK$ million &%)

7.4%
®.
6.7V \
.
5.8% YoY char]ge
o Rtk
a 14.1%
3,500 3,455 °
3,028
3,000 2,852
2500 373% 46.8% A 43.0%
’ 37.3% o
2,000
1,500
1,000 59.1% 59.2% 49.8% v 4.1%
500
0 3.4% A 12.9%
2019 2020 2021

(1) Employees in production function excluded
(2)  Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational expenses, etc.

e Staff costs and related expenses were up by 14.1% in FY2021.
Incremental expenses were mainly attributable to the increase
in variable performance based portion which was in line with
business growth.

e Fixed costs decreased by 4.1% during the financial year as there
was government relief on the social insurance contribution
amounted to approximately HK$40 million due to the COVID-19
situation. In addition, the calculation basis of employer
contribution on the social insurance was adjusted down by the
government as compared to the prior year.

Annual Report 2021
2021 F 4§

FY2021
& 20,290 - 2.3%
Average number of YoY change
‘ ‘) employees™ EEZ- U4
FHEIHA®
—e—
As a % of respective revenue Fi{5EBE £5EH L
|
Variable staff costs JZ &) & T 4
I

Fixed staff costs EE & T 4

|
Other staff related expenses® Hfth 8 THEIRI @

(1) TBRELEMFHNET
(2) EMETHBMAXTIZEEETIERFY BEENHSKES

e 2021 EEME T A RMAREEM LT
14.1% R G INE B ERI[VE BT BARK
BB BT - BIEBIL R -

o ARIFEE2019EMAEZHAEBMIEF L 4,000
BETHERBRBENGEEE - BEETRAR
RFBERRD41% o BEEFRM - K
FFIRAAE T M EERET S RSB EEAE
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Concessionaire fees and lease-related expenses!”
BiESRRESEMEAZ"

For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31 BILFE

(HK$ million B&E#T)

3,000

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

8.3% 8.4%
0/0\8.0%
.
4.8%
¢ 0,
3-2%/ Nl/a
2,528
2,246
2,031
78.7%
84.2% 78.0%
15.8% 22.0% 21.3%
2019 2020 2021

YoY change
B34

A 24.5%

A 25.7%

A 20.0%

e Concessionaire fees rose by 25.7% as retail revenue increased.
The concessionaire fees ratio was lowered to 8.0% mainly due
to the shift of sales mix towards gold jewellery and products

which are generally subject to lower rates.

e | ease-related expenses ratio also went down to 4.1% as a
result of operating leverage.

(1) Under IFRS 16 — leases, depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) and finance costs on leases
replace the majority of rental expenses and therefore we combined these three elements for the
analysis of lease-related expenses

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

—e—
Concessionaire fees as a % of respective revenue
S RFMEHEERBER DL

—e—

Lease-related expenses as a % of respective revenue
BB ML ERE (BT DL

I

Concessionaire fees EHE S B,

_—

Lease-related expenses'" HEHRBER M

o HEDKKETELEBELING LF25.7% « HiES
BRELERTRES 0% TEARNHEEABREIE
DREE-—REENESEHNER °

o ZEMmEHEMRBEASILRTEEL 1% -

(1) REBEFHEHSEANF 165 — HE  HELEH(ERAELE) MEE
BMEARAMRAHHREFAL - KA =ERE A0 AETHEER
B 2 1T

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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POS network

TEMNAS

POS movement by store brand™ — Mainland China Z/E&SEISHTEEESH " — FERM

During FY2021

31.3.2019 31.3.2020 2021 I EFE 31.3.2021

Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total

As at iy st st #hn D IR Ea
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY® FEX&EAE @ 2,807 3,429 833 (164) 669 4,098
CTF WATCH BAXREER 113 116 22 (10) 12 128
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 3 1 - - - 1
ENZO ENZO - 59 25 (9) 16 75
SOINLOVE SOINLOVE 27 43 31 (8) 23 66
MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE 38 51 34 (8) 26 77

(1) SIS and CIS excluded
(2)  CTF WATCH POS excluded

RSV analysis
RSV by product EREREIFHTERE

() TEREETERERNFE
(2) TERERKREZRTEH

TEESH

6.5%

‘ RSV YoY change
25.1% FY2020 FY2021 ZEERLEE
| | Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery A 27.4%
KRB HE RKEEH
| Gold jewellery and products =& &8Nk Em A 57.7%
[ | Watches ik A 84.0%
Overall 242 A 50.1%
RSV by channel ZHEREISTHWTEE
. 4.3%
7.2%
’- RSV YoY change
4.9% FY2020 FY2021 TEERLSE L
5.9%
|| | ] CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY FAXEHKE A 49.0%
[ | Other store brands" H {545 &0 A 83.4%
[ | E-commerce®? &BF % A 30.9%
Overall %82 A 50.1%
88.5%
(1) CTF WATCH, HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE included (1) ®¥EFEAIESER - HEARTS ON FIRE + ENZO - SOINLOVE & MONOLOGUE
(2)  Major platforms included Chow Tai Fook eShop, Tmall, JD.com, Vipshop; 020 distribution (i.e. (2) FEFARERAARPHBEEE X 2R ERE EF2020%

routing online orders to POS for delivery service), CloudSales 365 and Cloud Kiosk excluded
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The following analyses focus on CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY
POS which contributed approximately 90% of the RSV in Mainland China:

ARBRETZEHETEAMZTEELDN 0% @ AT H
SR ZEBIEDN

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS BAXEHEFTEDY
RSV and POS by tier of cities!" ZBHRBEFIWTEERTELN
17.0%
16.4% ‘l-...'
FY2021
— % of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
11.9% TENLL  BEEERL TEERLEL BERFERH
23.7%
[ | [ | Tier | cities —#R¥ T a 45.4% a 77
[ | Tier Il cities — 4 a 47.3% A 268
[ | Tier Il cities =#&3k a 52.7% a 156
|| Tier IV cities and others a 54.1% A 168
DU ARk T B2 B,

18.3%

(4]

As an initiative to better reflect the economic development and strategic significance of cities in
Mainland China, we adopt the city-tier ranking published by Yicai Global. New first-tier cities were
grouped under Tier |l cities in our analysis. Please refer to the ranking released on 29 May 2020

In FY2021, we opened a net of 669 CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY
POS in Mainland China under the continuous execution of our expansion
strategy. Approximately half of these openings were located in Tier lll, IV
and other cities.

Tier lll, IV and other cities achieved stronger RSV growth than
Tier I and Il cities during the financial year, mainly driven by new
openings.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

) REAEBLRRFENBETOLERRMNEEER - RORAE—H
EYBMERT FEIER o M —RATREFAND TP ED B R -
F2512020% 5 A 29 H AMRHEA

o M2021MBFE  HMEEZERTHRER
KRB AFRRE6IERARNBRETER - FH/E
BFBLR= - MR REMRT -

o RABEFEA = HOEEHEMETHEEEER
B Rk _HBETRY  TEXMETEHMTE -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXBHEEERRAA



RSV and POS by operation model ZEEEREXESNTEERTEL

51.5%

FY2021
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
o PEYGL  TEEMGL FEERLSL PELERD
[ ] [ | Self-operated H & A 26.6% w 54
35.1% [ | Franchised Hn& A 78.8% a723
48.5%
e By operation model, all net openings in FY2021 were in o REERNE S 2021 MRFEMEFHAIEAME

franchised format. As at 31 March 2021, approximately 65% of
our POS in Mainland China were in franchised format.

e Franchised POS outpaced self-operated POS in RSV growth and d
shared 51.5% of RSV in Mainland China during FY2021,
underpinned largely by new openings over the past two years.
Growth of franchised POS calculated on same store basis was
32.8% in FY2021.

e Sales per store of franchised POS was generally lower than that d
of self-operated POS located in the same city tier during the
financial year.

RSV and POS by store format #ZEFHEREINTEERTEY

12.5%

JE - #2021 3A31 8 - MEIAMAFE65% HE
EHUMBEAEE -

R2021 M RFE - NMAZEHENTEERRER
HETEH  WHETEARMBLI6%MTEE T8
SBEMEFIBTERH c R2021MBFE -
BEREAENNBETERNHERRR32.8% -

MEZTERNEEHEERN AV RFEEA—RRA
MBTNEETERK -

’

FY2021
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
19.2% TERELE  TEEWGE SEERL#L ZENFLE
[ | [ ] Shopping mall 870 a 62.8% a 301
103 [ | Department store B &R 7] a31.0% a 121
[ | Others EAfth A 84.9% A 247
43.1%
e In FY2021, stores at street level and shopping malls continued e M2021HBFE  HRHANBYPLNTEEER

to have a stronger RSV growth than POS in department stores.

Annual Report 2021
2021 F 4§

EEENBERRNZER -

Performance Review

=IO



56

Self-operated CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS

RSV per store by store age {ZEHESHMEETEHR

AXEXREEETER

140.0%
119.4%
120.0%
98.7%
100.0% =
84.3% FY2021 RSV per same store:
o HK$22.7 million®
80.0% 69.0% 2021 B FERIEEBEE:
— 22 7HEBTO
60.8%
60.0%
40.0%
20.0%
0.0%
Less than 2 years!" 2-4 years 4-6 years 6-8 years 8 years or more Total
Ve 2B45F AZ6F 6Z85F 8FERLE st
3/2013
POS opening date Bi/E B 4/2019-3/2021 4/2017-3/2019 4/2015-3/2017 4/2013-3/2015 or before
3/20133k LA AT
POS T2 115 292 205 177 650 1,439
% of POS ZEEEL 8.0% 20.3% 14.2% 12.3% 45.2% 100.0%
[ ] (1) For POS of age less than 1 year, RSV is adjusted on an annualised basis
Ratio of annual RSV per store to RSV per Same Store ERARIENSEE y TEAERE(HLERR
BEFETEEEREEHTEEZLS) (2)  Value-added tax ("VAT") included
BIEEER
Average quarterly sales F¥FEHEE
(HKS million B &#7T)
37.9%
X
28.5%
N °
26f . / 8.8
Nf " 24.0%
] I
) / FY2020 average quarterly SSS
0-.3 o . 20208 B F P FE R EHED
17.8M 20.3% —
° 5.6 FY2021 average quarterly SSS
e s 5.2 2021 B R EEFHZERIEHE
- 45 — —o—
4.1 FY2020 quarterly SSS contribution
37 to annual SSS"
202081 B F E R E R RS EREE
FEREEHERNERO
—eo—
FY2021 quarterly SSS contribution
to annual SSS
202181 B E R E R SHE R
FERIEHEEHENE R
1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q
(1) SSSon FY2021 Same Store basis (1) FIESSEA2021B R4 B M RS (e

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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e As business in THFY2021 was still recovering from the o HRN2021 MEFE L FREBEL2019F ME

COVID-19 pandemic, average SSS contribution in 2HFY2021 SREBHERH 2021 MRFE T ¥FNFHRE
reached approximately 62% of full year SSS, slightly higher than HEEAEMEN2FREHEENLN62% @ Band
our seasonality under normal course of business. BMERE S THZE KT o

e 4Q, being our peak season as driven by festive occasions such s FNFEHERBNFTRBEANEHELTY 5B
as Chinese New Year and Valentine's Day, usually account for BMNEE  ZZEREFRBRMAEHEET SRS
the highest quarterly SSS contribution. However, with the MEEER - A - XEBEZE 2020 HEFES
pandemic, the SSS contribution for 4QFY2020 was reduced to WEEMREHEERMBEE20.3% ' FRRENST
20.3%, resulting in an abnormal seasonality pattern. B o

E-commerce™ and 020 related business®? EFEEVE 020 HEAERE @

RSV by product REZESHEEHE

0.4%

l RSV YoY change
FY2020 FY2021 ZEERLEL
| | Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery A 43.0%

KRB HE RKEEH
| Gold jewellery and products & & & i & & & A 107.4%
[ | Watches §Zi% A 95.0%
Overall 58 A 91.8%

(1) Major platforms included Chow Tai Fook eShop, Tmall, JD.com, Vipshop ) FEFARERAAXENAEEEL X 2E ERE
(2) 020 distribution (i.e. routing online orders to POS for delivery service), CloudSales 365 and Cloud ) BIFEO020H (AR TSR RETEUURHFTERY) - E365
Kiosk included REEE

o=
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E-commerce and 020 related business performance EF##5E 020 HHLEHRE

FY2021

A/

PV
1%

RSV TE{E 7 1 ()/ 1 4 7()/ ASP E#E{E
91.800 | v A

V' N ° 0 of respective RSV of respective retail
Yo change GHEFATERE sales volume 2 8 O O
R84k (FY2020: 5.6%) {5HERASHE /

(FY2020: 14.8%)

(FY2020: HK$1,400)

( R
E-commerce

EFEH

HK$

1,700

020 related business
O201HEA%T

2.9%

E-commerce

TFEH

4.2%

020 related business
02048FA%
HK$

14,900

e RSV of our e-commerce and 020 related business grew o BEIHMKHEO20HAEKMZTEMEN 2021 BB F
strongly at 91.8% in FY2021, mainly attributable to our sales on EHFAI1.8% + FEHFMAREMEO20TFAMIHE -
020 platforms.

e E-commerce and 020 related business contributed 7.1% to the o TEMNBMOALFTERKER  EFHBFEHEO20
RSV in Mainland China during the financial year, thanks to our HEAEBERAMBFEANSFBE AT EEE R
private domain smart retail applications. ASP of these BT1% BARZEEAFERMEARFPFELERR

WEEFgREL  ALEEFHEBREFEBT

BH=1& -

applications was three times that of the e-commerce platforms
as they enabled a closer connection and a stronger trust with
our customers.

e In terms of retail sales volume, share of the e-commerce and o IREEME  BFHBEO20EEAEBRKF BN
020 related business to the Mainland China's operations stayed G E F—BFEEES -
similar to previous financial year.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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HONG KONG, MACAU AND OTHER MARKETS &i#& + iBfiRHE thHiZ

Revenue

Revenue by operation model

REERXBDHERE

For the year ended 31 March #Z=3 A31 A ItEE

(HK$ million B&#T)

£ 3

YoY change
A2t
30,000 LR
24,229
25,000 22,352
20,226
20,000
15,988
15,000
5
92.3% 95.2% 10,466 v 345%
95.4%
10,000 93.0%
L ____|
0, 0,
5000 872% v 38.7% Rotall TE
5 o |
. 4.6% 77% 4.8% 70% 12.8% A 207% Wholesale 12
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

e In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, our retail revenue o BMMNEE BRFIKAEMTISNEELETERER

represents sales from self-operated POS, e-commerce and other ETEH BEIRABRHEMEERRENHEERE M
direct channels, while wholesale revenue represents sales to MELEEBAERAMBERHESER RZEFHHEE

franchisees, sales to retailers and sales from jewellery trading.

EmMRARELFNIHEER -

¢ Retail revenue declined by 38.7% in FY2021 as customer traffic s HRBEREMARE 2021 HHFENTELERE

remained subdued.
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SSSG of major products TEELFEHEER

62.8%
L ]
14.0% / ,
pe 7.0%
[ ]
a-11.6%
h -26.8%
-15.2% x:37.1% o -37.0%,
o>< o
@
{
-47.8% 66.2% | -65.7% <079
6 1%\. o .AJ %
-66.8% :\. 64.5%
-82.9%
1Q 20 3Q 4Q 10 2Q 3Q 4Q
FY2020 FY2021

Same Store ASP FIEF#EE
FY2021

Gem-set jewellery Gold jewellery and products
BREERHERE A HEHMRER

HK$ HK$

15,600 | 5,500

FY2020‘” HK$11,300) FY2020“7 HK$6,800)

—o—
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery BRET $&#%
o

Gold jewellery and products &£ & 8 &% &R

HERKEEHE

FY2021

Sss

volume

SSSG growth

BEEHERE REHEER

Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery TREEW - HE MK EHEH v 19.3% w 38.7%

Gold jewellery and products HeEMHRER v 55.7% w 45.0%

Watches fid v 7.6% v 20.0%

Overall ®e v 41.3% v 42.9%

(1) Same Store ASP on FY2021 Same Store basis (1) REFHEEEN2021 M BEE R EERLE

e SSS of gold jewellery and products went down by about 56% in e N2021BBFE EcEHMEERMNRBEHEET

FY2021. ASP of the product category reduced from HK$6,800 in
FY2020 to HK$5,500 as sales mix of fixed price gold products
increased.

Despite the challenging business environment, SSSG of
gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery was back to a positive
level since 3QFY2021, thanks to our promotional efforts. This
successfully attracted big ticket transactions, leading to 38.7%
increase in ASP of gem-set jewellery during the financial year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENWEST

BRA)56% © % AR Bl A F 15 65 8 i1 2020 H B
E#6,800% 7R £ 5,500 T IR EEE
SERMNEEEAIEINME -

s BELHREAMUE  BERMEZRHEIY <
KESH  HekKEEMHONFREHSERE 2021

PRFEE=FEREEZIEZUKY - BLITHE
BRCIER N D REHE  EAMBFEANKESR

BT EEEN38.7% -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAXEHREEEER AR



Hong Kong, Macau and other markets & -

For the year ended 31 March =3 A31 AILFE

AP R HE TS

29.4%

2749 o
26.3% r

E————
L]
L]

8.1%

L]
\7%

24.7%
18.7%
o

3.9%

—o—
Adjusted gross profit margin &R ENEF R
o

SG&A as a % to revenue
HERTHRAXIEEXERDIL

—.—

Core operating profit margin I B4 & 5 F=

2019 2020 2021

1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
BBEE BHEE
b¥E T¥E
(HK$ million) (B8#BT) 1HFY2020 2HFY2020 1HFY2021 2HFY2021 El:4 114 El:4--3i4
Revenue 2] 9,309 6,679 3,457 7,009 v 62.9% a 4.9%
Adjusted gross profit LRBEHEF 2,619 1,756 1,316 1,760 v 49.7% a 0.2%
Adjusted gross profit margin A R 1B | &K 28.1% 26.3% 38.1% 25.1% a 10.0% pts w 1.2% pts
= BE 5%
Other income Hip A 92 66 149 117 A 63.0% a 78.0%
SG&A HERITHAX (2,026) (1,915) (1,437) (1,501) v 29.1% v 21.6%
SG&A as a % to revenue PHERITIH S B 21.8% 28.7% 41.6% 21.4% a 19.8% pts w 7.3% pts
ERHEASI 168 7 % e85 %
Core operating profit TEELEF 685 (94) 28 376 v 95.9% N/ATEH
Core operating profit margin TEEERFE 7.4% (1.4)% 0.8% 54% w 6.6%pts N/ATEH

BE 5%

e In THFY2021, adjusted gross profit margin improved significantly by

1,000 basis points to 38.1%, driven largely by the surge in gold price

and some improvement in gross profit margin of our jewellery
trading business. In 2HFY2021, adjusted gross profit margin
decreased from 26.3% to 25.1% due to impact from wholesale
business which was partially offset by like-for-like margin

improvement and a more favourable product mix in retail business.

e As a result, in FY2021, adjusted gross profit margin expanded by

200 basis points t0 29.4%.

Annual Report 2021
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02V MBEELYE  X2ERNALKEEHEH
EMNRBEMTY  CHABROENERRE L7+
1,000 1825 FZE38.1% ° 2021 BBFE N FF4H
BEMENEHR263%EE25.1% ARIHE X
BERyE BN ERTEXBNEREMNE
ERRENREREMNMERMBS MK

Eit » 2021 B R F EEFHBEZHERN EE K 20018
HFZE29.4% °
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e SG&A ratio increased by 340 basis points to 28.1% in the
financial year due to operating deleverage especially in
THFY2021, yet thanks to effective cost control, SG&A ratio was

back to 21.4% in 2HFY2021.

e Core operating profit dropped significantly by 31.7% in FY2021.
Yet, a core operating profit of HK$376 million was recorded in
2HFY2021, demonstrating a sequential improvement from
2HFY2020 and 1THFY2021. Its corresponding margin was slightly
up by 20 basis points to 3.9% during the financial year,
benefitted from the government subsidies received which we

recorded as other income.

SG&A to revenue ratio SHER{THEIGEEELE

For the year ended 31 March # =3 A31 AILFE
(HK$ million BE&ET)

28.1%
24.7% .
{ ]
18.7V
5,000 °
4,538
4,000 3,941
7.3%
5
3,000 | P 9.6% 2,938
f; 0.0% 1.3%
2,000 8 7.1% 0.0%
b2 o 76%
1,000 0:3% 1345
5 1.1
3.8% 4.2% I 3%
. 45%
2019 2020 2021

Management Discussion and Analysis
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YoY change
[Eil:4-X(4

v 25.4%

v 22.7%

v 78.6%
v 29.3%

v 49.2%
v 47.5%
v 30.4%

o RAMBFEERN  THEHR2021HHFE LFFH
REBBRWE  SHERTHRAX L E LT 340
S F2=28.1% @ BHEBHRAES EHERITR
SRR 2021 MBREFERE T HFEEE21.4% -

o FTEKEHMN2021 M BEE 7<¢ETE§E31 7% °
AT - 2021 MEFE T HFHEEBELZEN 376
BEEIL REE 2020 BFE T ¥4 %2021 8
BFE ¥ FEBEFISHE - RERRMEE MU
AR B RE - EAR RS A R RN A R E
7t 2025 F=3.9% °

As a % of respective revenue Fr{GHRBE £EEA DL

|

Staff costs and related expenses & T AN AR X
I

Concessionaire fees SHED &K

[

Rental expenses &M%

[

Depreciation and amortisation (ROUA)

EREE (EREEE)

Depreciation and amortisation (Property, plant and equipment)

WEREE (W% - BREKXRE)

I

Advertising and promotion expenses &% &k S8R
[

Packaging materials B3 ¥

[
Other SG&A EAtis ERATHA X

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXBHEEERRAA



Hong Kong and Macau

Staff costs and related expenses BT RAREMMAX

For the year ended 31 March =3 A31 AILFE

(HK$ million B&#ETT)

11.8%
9.2% °
2,000 6.9% —
>
1,551
1,500 1328
40.8%
34.8% 1,048
1,000
31.8%
500 52.4% 58.2%
61.3%
0 6.9%
2019 2020 2021

) Employees in production function excluded
2)  Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational expenses, etc.

YoY change
ElE4:- 214

v 21.1%

v 278%

v 16.9%

w 22.5%

e Staff costs and related expenses was down by 21.1%. The
variable staff costs shrank by 27.8% year-on-year in FY2021,
largely in line with the drop in revenue.

e Fixed staff costs also declined by 16.9% due to attrition and
reduction on certain allowances.

e During FY2021, we received HK$160 million from Employment

Support Scheme which was recognised in other income.

Lease-related expenses®

HEHERRZ®

For the year ended 31 March # =3 A31 AILFE

(HK$ million B&EET)

0y
7.3%’/:§A
4.9V.
1,500 °
1,146 1,126
8.5%
1,000
774
16.6%
500 87.6%
80.1%
0 3.3%
2019 2020 2021

YoY change
Eil%-214

v 31.2%

(3)  Under IFRS 16 — leases, depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) and finance costs on leases
replace the majority of rental expenses and therefore we combined these three elements for the

analysis of lease-related expenses

Annual Report 2021
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FERIAM

FY2021

. 3,050 +53%

YoY change
El:%-2(4

Average number of

““) employees!”
FHEIHEO

—.—
As a % of respective revenue Fi{hiEBIE £ H L
I

Variable staff costs 28 & T A7

I

Fixed staff costs EE 8 T {74

|

Other staff related expenses? Hfth & TR =@

(1) TERELEMFNET
(2) EMETHBMYTIZRFEETEREMN BREBIHEKES

o BIRARMBEAIRD21.1% < FHE TRAR
2021 I F EIRFR D 27.8% - B EFIRIEKR
BUATT -

e HMEBIMENURETRIRD - EEEIKATR
EfE216.9% -

o M2021MBFE - HIAVERILE ] FTEIE K160
BEET  SHECHI/EMLA -

—o—
As a % of respective revenue FT{5 BRI 23R DLt

I

Rental expenses &I

I

Depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) & R i#es (FAEEE)
|

Finance costs on leases & &1E A7

() REREFBHREEANE 165 — HE HEREH(EAREE) REE
BMARARRARBHESEL - RMFMUK=EEE A0 ETHEEMR
FARAZ 2 o
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e | ease-related expenses fell by 31.2% due to consolidation of POS
and rental renewal reduction. Yet its corresponding expenses ratio
expanded by 100 basis points to 8.3% in FY2021 due to operating
deleverage. The average reduction on lease renewal during FY2021
relative to the last leases was around 40%.

e During FY2021, COVID-19-related rent concession of HK$128
million was recognised in other gains.

POS network

g

POS movement by store brand” — Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

RERREINSHTEREHY — FE  EFIREBHS

HRTEMES REMEES TR HEMBEMSON
131.2% - A - HAERAXELEEEAEER
& 72202181 B % B £ FH1001E B F £8.3% -
202" B FEAEEeER E—EBRH 2 FI9EkE
H540% °

2021 MR EFE - 2019 BR B SHREENESE
ERI12BEET  HCERAEMUE -

R

During FY2021

31.3.2019 31.3.2020 2021 B BFE 31.3.2021
Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total
As at iy FChy HEt #n A B At
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY  EAXBHE 131 138 8 (12) (4) 134
Hong Kong, China FEES 81 83 3 (7) (4) 79
Macau, China AR 19 18 1 (1) - 18
Other markets Ehmig 31 37 4 (4) - 37
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 15 10 1 (3) (2) 8
SOINLOVE SOINLOVE - 1 - - -
MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE - 2 1 - 1 3
(1) SIS and CIS excluded (1) TBREEREREANEE
RSV analysis TEEW
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets FE B REMTHIS
RSV by product ZEREIFHETEE
9.7%
28.8% RSV YoY change
FY2020 FY2021 TEERLE
| ] [ | Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery v 21.0%
KEER HERKESEH
| Gold jewellery and products =4 & i & & & ¥ 39.3%
[ | Watches §&#% v 8.6%
Overall %82 v 32.6%

64 ‘ Management Discussion and Analysis
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RSV and POS by geography ZiEZSHTEERTEDR

8.6%

FY2021
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
TEMEL ZEEGL ZEEBL# ZENTFEH
[ ] [ ] Hong Kong &7 v 30.9% w5
[ | Macau 2P v 47.7% =
[ | Other markets EM 15 v 9.6% =

In FY2021, RSV recorded a 32.6% decline in Hong Kong, Macau and
other markets as the pandemics weighed on international travel and
tourist related consumption.

Customer traffic at POS in Hong Kong and Macau dropped by
40.3% vyear-on-year during the financial year. Whereas the
percentage of RSV settled by China UnionPay, Alipay, WeChat
Pay or RMB to the total RSV of Hong Kong and Macau market
dropped to 18.2% in FY2021 from 36.9% in FY2020.

In Hong Kong, we consolidated our retail network and closed
a net of 5 POS in FY2021, mainly in touristic areas such as
Tsim Sha Tsui and Causeway Bay.

In other markets, we opened 5 duty free POS in Hainan,
Mainland China and closed a net of 5 POS in other locations.
RSV decline in other markets was softer than that in Hong Kong
and Macau, thanks to the robust performance of duty free POS
in Hainan.

Annual Report 2021
2021 F 5

R2021 M RFE - RIGE BB RE R EEH
EXR ARES BFIREMTESNTEETE
32.6% -

BEZEHNETRERAMBRFENLREFE T K
40.3% o BIRTIG AP BIERE - XAE  BUEXN
FIANRBEE 2T EEGLA2020 HEEH
36.9% TFEZE 2021 MBFEMN18.2% °

ERE BAR0NMBEEEATERS
FEMLETER  TRUNRPERRAREEED
B -

FEHEM TS - ROV B A a8 R b E R
TEH - UEHMEFHMSETER - 8%
MEEHNERRRY  EEMETENTEERER
BB FRPTES -

Performance Review

=IO



Hong Kong and Macau

Average quarterly sales T¥FEHEE
(HK$ million B&&7T)

33.1% 33.0%
o

FERIAM

33.1%

28.0%
o

24.1%
®

19.8%
o

45.7
1/ 387
L)

33.3

26.7

16.0

14.7%
° —
FY2020 average quarterly SSS™"
202081 U F EE 19 FE R ESHEM
I
26.8 FY2021 average quarterly SSS
2021 FE VP EEREHE
—o—
204 FY2020 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS™
2020 M F E R 5 E RS
FEREHEHENTRO
—e—
FY2021 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
2021 F EEER & H SR
FEREHERNERE

1Q 20 3Q

(1) SSSon FY2021 Same Store basis

e 3Q, being the peak season for the industry as driven by Christmas,
usually accounted for the highest quarterly SSS contribution and
average SSS for our Hong Kong and Macau market.

* Nevertheless, seasonality in both FY2021 and FY2020 deviated
from that under our normal course of business. The lingering
pandemic severely affected our business in THFY2021 whereas
our promotional efforts helped boost sales in 2HFY2021, lifting
SSS contribution of 2HFY2021 to 66.1% of full year SSS.

e While the situation in Hong Kong since 2QFY2020 and the
outbreak of pandemic in 4QFY2020 heavily weighed on our
business performance, quarterly SSS contribution skewed
towards the first quarter during FY2020.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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R $865 bA 2021 81 IR A FE 0 R I R R

F=FEEEENE  BEANEST  HERMEE
FORFIMISMEEREHE MM T HREHER

EREFRS

SR - 2021 FIEREE R 2020 T E B EE S 150
R TRMAEFESNFTHAMER - RERERE
FERMR2021 B HEE LEFONESL - MR
BHRIEE IR 2021 FEREE TLENHESE -
L2 REETEFNEAEHEERREAZS
FRIEHEN66.1% °

&8 B 2020 B B FE 8 — FE RN 2020 81 K
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OTHER FINANCIAL REVIEW
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2019 2020 2021
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March BZE3A3MALEE BEAER BEERT BEER El4:-314
Other income H bl A 396 437 692 a 58.4%
Other gains and losses s REsE (276) (147) 431 N/ATEH
Other expenses HipFA (57) (146) (664) a 353.9%

Other income mainly arose from the government grants
received in Mainland China and Hong Kong, commission
income, other income received from franchisees and other
interest income. In FY2021, approximately 34% of other income
were one-off in nature.

Other gains and losses mainly represented a net foreign
exchange gain of HK$336 million (FY2020: loss HK$234 million)
due to the appreciation of RMB, COVID-19-related rent
concession of HK$128 million (FY2020: HK$16 million) and gain
on surrender of ROUA of HK$2 million (FY2020: HK$79 million).

Other expenses mainly represented the assets impairment (including
property, plant and equipment and ROUA) of HK$382 million
(FY2020: HK$63 million), the goodwill impairment of HK$232 million
(FY2020: HK$26 million) and the amortisation of other intangible
assets of approximately HK$40 million (FY2020: HK$36 million)
arising from the acquisition of Hearts On Fire Company, LLC several
years ago. We decided a repositioning on HEARTS ON FIRE so
as to maintain the identity and heritage of the brand while better
serve the need for us to penetrate into the high-end segment.

Annual Report 2021
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H WA 222K 8 B B A R E B E SR
B BN - 2R B 00 BE 7 0 E A M A K B A B
WA o 122021 BARFE » £934% W0 E b U A B —
IRIE

HpWwahBETI2ERARETEMELMERL
FUW 336 B E AT (2020 M LFE - F1E234 8
AL 2019ERAESHEENESEE1288
SABT(020MBFE 16A8BT) MREFER
BEENKZ2ABETQ0200RFE 7988
ABIT) °

HMHAZEFEZREAERE(REDE  BERER
NFEREEE)382E BB L (2020 B FE : 63
BEHBT) AR F AU EHearts On Fire
Company, LLCE4A v & RE2328 &#7t(2020
MERE 26888 T) REMERAE#HL40
BEBIT(20200BFE :36E@&EBE L) - HRMA
FEEHEMHEARTS ON FIRE @ LARFBZ MK
FUHNES  ANERERME2ESRMBENRE -
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2019 2020 2021

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March BE3A3MALEE BEERT BHEERT BEER El4:-314
Interest income from banks RITFBUA 83 78 82 a 45%
Finance costs on bank borrowings IRITE B E KA (209) (284) (132) v 53.7%
Finance costs on gold loans HEEERMEKAKN (161) (207) (197) v 4.6%
Finance costs on lease liabilities HEEGBEREKAK - (69) (48) w 30.8%
Taxation 18 (1,668) (1,221) (2,219) a 81.6%

e Finance costs on bank borrowings decreased by 53.7%, mainly
due to a relatively lower average bank borrowing interest rate

and bank borrowing balance during FY2021.

e Effective tax rate decreased from 29.0% in FY2020 to 26.4% in
FY2021 as the profitability of Hong Kong, Macau and other
markets segment, which is subject to relatively lower tax rates,

improved in FY2021.

e \We use return on equity ("ROE") to measure the efficiency of
generating profits from each unit of shareholder equity.

e Net profit margin increased to 8.8%. ROE was up by 850 basis
points to 19.6% while the equity multiplier decreased.

ROE
IrAEEHRE

8.8%

Net profit margin @ F|Z=
(FY2020: 5.3%)

/F

Net profit jEi#kF

Net profit %t Fl

Total equity #EZ54858

Revenue %33

68 Management Discussion and Analysis
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1 .1 times &

Assets turnover & & FiE

(FY2020: 0.9 times &

T

Revenue %3

K202V FHRFE » TEARBYHEENFHIRT
BA R RERITE AR - BURTTE RN E AR

DB3.7% °

BHRAERERENEE  RFIREM TSR 2021
MIFE R EE D BE - #2021 B FE R
ERBEB 2020 I RFER 29.0% BE26.4% -

HAVE B AR @ R E G 8 B 5 R A a1 Uk A

B o

FEMETTE8.8% o I AME I E LT+ 850 [ HiF
£19.6% @ MEREHARD -

19.6%

Total assets & E

4 85% pts EEH DB
(FY2020: 11.1%)

2 .O times &

T

Total assets & E

Equity multiplier #EzZ{Z#
(FY2020: 2.4 times 1)

Total equity #E#x48%8
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Inventory balances by product” {REZEIDHEELEHR
As at 31 March %3 A31H
(HK$ million BE&E7T)

YoY change
Eil:4-414
45,000 42,343 42,792 a 1.1%
39,327
40,000
35,000
55.8% 55.2% 0.0%
30,000
59.1%
25,000
20,000 Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery
15,000 HREEH - HERKEEE
o 40.6% A 1.9% - -
10,000 36.7% 40.3% Gold jewellery and products & & i K &
5,000 ——
0 0 43% i 3.9% 4.1% a 77% Watches 5%
2019 2020 2021
(1) Packaging materials excluded 1) TeEBREDE

Inventory turnover period by category? {REERIEIFHEL EAEL @
For the year ended 31 March #Z=3 A31 AILFE

(Day X#)
YoY change
450 Eil4-414
400 381
350 299 312 v 69 days X
300
250 297
200 239 234 w 63 days X
150
100
Finished goods &6 F
50 84 -
60 78 w 6 days X .
0 Raw materials E##}
2019 2020 2021
(2)  Being inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, at the end of the reporting period divided (2) BUREMARFELS (TRIEBRYE) RIAFANHEEKA - BIRIA3655%366

by cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366

e Inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, increased by o M2021F3A3NA FEEH(TEESEYR)
1.1% and reached HK$42,792 million as at 31 March 2021. FA11% E42,7928 8% T -

e |nventory turnover period shortened by 69 days when compared o FEREEHE 2020 MEEERGIK -
to that of FY2020.

e As at 31 March 2021, approximately HK$7,280 million or 16.9% o M2021F3A3MH  MEZTEURERMEFTE
of our total inventory balances were held by franchised POS (31 EERHIT7,280 B BB L5 16.9% (2020F3 A31H -
March 2020: approximately HK$5,440 million or 12.8% were MBTEFEN5440EEHETLK12.8%) °
held by franchised POS).

e |f the inventory balances held by franchisees were excluded, o MBRNMEEBFENGTFELEY 2021 TREFENTFE
inventory turnover period in FY2021 would reduce to 259 days AEEE T ZE 259K (2020 M BFE : 322K) °
(FY2020: 322 days).

Annual Report 2021 Other Financial Review
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Increase

% to % to (decrease)
31.3.2020 total equity 31.3.2021 total equity 3ZiN(H4) Denominated Interest rate
HKS$ million {5###% HKS$ million {5REFEMAE  HKS$ million currency'" structure®
As at i BEET Aot BEET Aot BEET SFEE®O FREEO
Non-current assets  FERB) & & 10,038 37.2% 9,065 28.7% (973) N/ATERA NATEA
Inventories FE 42,538 157.6% 43,011 136.3% 473  N/ATERE NATEA
Cash and cash BekRE 7,219 26.7% 6,032 19.1% (1,187) Mainly Mainly
equivalents®? ZEYy HKD, RMB variable
and USD interest
TER rate
BT FER
AR R FENF
E
Total borrowings® — #2E K © 22,711 84.1% 12,143 38.5% (10,568)
Bank borrowings RITER 11,431 42.3% 6,418 20.3% (5,013)  HKD BT Variable
interest
rate
P B
Gold loans BRfEE 11,280 41.8% 5,725 18.2% (5,655)  RMB and Fixed
usb interest
ARB X rate
%5 EEHE
Net debt® BIEFEY 15,492 57.4% 6,111 19.4% (9.381) N/ATEM NATEH
Working capital® EEE O 19,579 72.5% 26,101 82.7% 6,522 N/ATEA NATEA
Total equity B 26,991 100.0% 31,568 100.0% 4,577 N/AT@EA  N/ATERH
(1) Information about denominated currency and interest rate structure related to the condition as at (1) AEESBRAELEBHERA2021F3 A31 ANER
31 March 2021
(2)  Bank balances and cash included (2 BERTEHRERS
(3)  As at 31 March 2021, bank borrowings amounted to HK$4,619 million and all the gold loans would (3) R2021F3A31H 4619EEFTHRTEREFEESEEBR12
be matured within 12 months while bank borrowings amounted to HK$1,799 million would be BAREE - M1,799 B BB THERITERBRBBIFETZR2FR
matured in more than 1 year but not exceeding 2 years FIH
(4)  Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net of cash and cash equivalents (4) RITEFK 22RE2ETR(CNBRRERRESED)
(5)  Being net current assets (5) MEEEFE
70 Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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e \We principally meet our working capital and other liquidity

requirements through a combination of capital contributions,
including cash flows from operations, bank borrowings and gold
loans. Gold loans are also used for economic hedge purpose to
mitigate the financial impact of the price fluctuations in the
Group's gold inventories.

The Group's daily operation was mainly financed by operating
cash flows, and mainly relied on short-term borrowings to satisfy
inventory financing needs during peak seasons, working capital
for future expansion plans and unexpected needs. The Group has
not experienced any difficulties in repaying its borrowings.

e The Group's income and expenditure were mostly denominated

in HKD and RMB, while its assets and liabilities were mostly
denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. No hedging instrument is
deployed against RMB fluctuation as most of the daily receipts
and payments for our Mainland operations are both made in
RMB, which do not pose a substantive currency exposure to
our business.

It is our treasury policy to maintain high liquidity in response to
the requirement of operating cash flows; and to upkeep financial
prudence by not engaging in highly leveraged or speculative
derivative products.

Annual Report 2021
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BMETEEERELEHERE RTEFEES
EEMNBEARRENZEESREMRDEST
Ko BeEEMBELCERRBOIVREREEE
EHEEERRDOIBEZE

AEBEAEEXEBHFTECTIERALERERE
NETBAEHEERREFERNGFEESH R
ARRBERAEMFLEESRAHZIMEFER - K
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AREBEZBARAXEEUBTRAREE @
EERBBREZENET  ARBKETHE- - H
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HPWBEBBREE ERBRSNRDES - LEN
HBERSRENENR ARETREMNMBEE
RPN BERIIRMMEITEER °

Other Financial Review

HoAth B 75 12 R

71



72

As part of our business operation is in Mainland China, the
fluctuation in RMB would post some impact on our performance.

Transactions entered by the Hong Kong entities but
denominated in RMB, including the inter-group transactions
with the Mainland China subsidiaries, are converted into HKD,
the functional currency of the Group, initially using the spot rate
at the date of transaction and the unsettled transactions are
retranslated at closing exchange rate at the balance sheet date.
Such translation differences between the spot rate and closing
exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss, negatively
affecting our profit for the year when RMB depreciated.

Exchange difference also arises when i) incomes and expenses
of the Mainland China segment are translated into HKD, the
presentation currency of the Group, at the average exchange
rate, while the corresponding assets and liabilities are translated
at closing exchange rate and ii) change in closing exchange
rates at the current financial year of the net assets of the
Mainland China segment from the closing rates at the previous
financial year. Such differences are recognised in the translation
reserve in equity.

The table below illustrates the fluctuation of RMB and the
impact on our financial performance:

FY2021 Closing exchange rate YoY change
W EER R LL 1L

RMB to HKD

ARME AT a 8.1%

HREMEBOEBETBEAEE - ARBHIK
PEBRMORBEBRETEE -

FERRAAARBENR S (B P B R K
BRAAETHEERNRZ) ERIFERNREE
RHMBET  IASENNEER  MALER
RHAUGUETERREEAENHE - REEX
B THERNBREERNESERTER  MARE
RESHHRMNFRENERXEERTZE

Ubsh - BE R IR 1) B B A 53 B A M SR T 19
[ERB|ELET NAKEE5EHE  MEENE
ERBERETERBE  Li) PEALS EHNE
BEVFHE A B I 6 2 o A 7 B 3R e ) B B SR TR Y
WHEXERES EHZRRERTNRERE
NIERBAE -

TERABIIRARERBIA L LS HMHBERIFN

B4 .
2

Average exchange rate YoY change
FEER LS

a 1.4%

2020 2021
Constant Constant
exchange exchange
As reported rate basis As reported rate basis
ZiEE ZiEE
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A3NALEE 28 EEGH 28 EEH
Revenue YoY change EEEE L wv149% w124% a236% a222%
Core operating profit YoY change F EL S FIR b v 184% w155% a51.7% a49.8%
Changes in inventory balances FEESE al7% alld% a1.1% v 3.6%
Changes in cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEMEL v 55% v34% w16.4% v 20.1%

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENWEST

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAXEHREEEER AR



Cash flows He&EReE
2019 2020 2021
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March HBE3AZMABLEE BHEAR BEERT BEERT
Operating cash flows before movements CEESEHA KERERE 7,774 9,912 11,572
in working capital
Leases paid™ BfEg" - (1,263) (1,182)
Net cash used in inventories? FEFRARSFE (2,911) (3,427) (4,669)
Net cash from other operating HEi & mBMSH e FE 629 959 1,764
activities
Capital expenditure &N (1,392) (973) (839)
Pro forma free cash flows HZEHRELRE 4,100 5,208 6,646
Net change in bank borrowings WITERFEY 2,133 1,362 (5,016)
Dividends paid B E (6,081) (6,243) (2,853)
Other movements Hin &g (455) (749) 36
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BR&RBESZEWRL BE (303) (422) (1,187)

Major cash flows items for FY2021 2021 EEEERE&FEEB

(HK$ million B&#7T)

Pro forma free cash flows #5ZBHABLHE

A 6,646
I

20,000

18,000

=

16,000
14,000
12,000
10,000
8,000 7,219
6,000
4,000

2,000

5,016

36 6,032

As at %
31.3.2020

m

@
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With adoption of IFRS 16, leases paid was included in financing activities
Net cash used in inventories included net change in inventories and repayment of gold loans

As at A
31.3.2021

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
EELESEDACKERERE

Leases paid" E{tHEEM

Net cash used in inventories®?

FEMAREFE?

Net cash from other
operating activities

Hih Q& EB SRS EE
Capital expenditure E7<Bix
I

Net decrease in bank borrowings
SBITEFFRD

Dividends paid 2{f& 2

Other movements H{th %)

O RMBEPBREEAFE16%KE  CNEEFAREDTD
o FEAARSFEEEFEIEDRMEERICHE
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Capital expenditure

e The Group's capital expenditure incurred during FY2021
amounted to HK$839 million (FY2020: HK$973 million).

Capital expenditure by nature R E S HNERFAR
For the year ended 31 March =3 A31 AILFE
(HK$ million B&HT)

1,500

1,392
1,000 973
5
66.8% 839
500 88.0% 88.0%
28.6%
8.6% 7.2%
0 4.6% 3.4% 43%
2019 2020 2021

Capital expenditure by function IZThEEEI S EIE AR

For the year ended 31 March #Z3 A31 BILFE
(HKS$ million B&EH7T)

1,500
1,392
13.7%
1,000 9736 o
e 839
8.1%
72.3%
76.3%
500 73.9%
75% 9.2% 2.3%
0 6.5% 7.9% 15.5%
2019 2020 2021

Contingent liabilities

e The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at

31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Capital commitments

e Details of the Group's capital commitment as at 31 March 2021
and 31 March 2020 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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BEXRFAX

o AEEMN202MMHREENEARMLRBI0BES
(2020 BEE - 973 EERET) -

I

Furniture, fixtures and equipment and leasehold improvements
B HRERRBENEEDREE

I

Land and buildings and construction in progress
THREFHNEETR

I

Plant and machinery and motor vehicles

BE R RN E

Projects I2 B

1:‘I

0S ZTEH

4

Productions 4 &
-
Offices D ZE

BAREHE
o 52021438318 £202043 4318 ¥
BAEMERKAELE -

EX iz
e REBEMN202143A31H &2020F3A31H
BARAEHERNRA SIS RRM 2 -
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

H

Jnl

b A BN B i

Executive Directors $i{TE$

Responsibilities B &

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry#*, GBM, GBS (Chairman)
HR4EE 17 (GBM, GBS)(EF)

2 Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent (Managing Director,
Corporate and HK, Macau & Overseas)
ERELEE(ESRLE(DERBREFINET))

3 Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong
(Managing Director, Mainland China)

PRt S 5 A (2 S 4R 45 12 (P B A 3))

4 Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian*, JP
EERIE L (UP)

5 Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy*

SR S

6 Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia*
AT L

7 Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson*
ERERIT 5t

8 Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
B RER 5 A

9  Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
BREREE

10 Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Governance

NN

E/D

Strategic direction and overall performance of the Group
REBORK T REBERR

Overall corporate management of the Group and
development in Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
AEBEBMEEERBSREGIERE

Strategic planning and overall management of
Mainland China business
PR A EE T Y SR R B R BB IE

Strategic investment and smart retail
KRRENBEETE

Diamond and gemstone raw materials
EAMERRE

High jewellery business

= Ui R B BE 7S

Bank and landlord relationship management
RITMETERERE

Finance and information

MR A&

Hong Kong, Macau and overseas business

& BRMNEINET

Retail technology applications and production management
ZEMRERAMEEER

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAREHRESEBRA
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Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHITEE

Responsibilities &

11 Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, GBM, GBS, CBE
B E L (GBM, GBS, CBE)

12 Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP
/5 E1E 1+ (SBS, JP)

13 Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon
BP 558 5t

14 Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul, JP
EREAFI S A& (JP)

15 Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP
22 %4 (GBS, JP)

16 Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert

Independent Non-executive Directors ("INED", or
“INEDs"” in the plural) serve a significant role in the Board
to bring independent judgment on the performance,
development and risk management of the Group. As
chairmen or members of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and / or Audit Committee, they
also undertake detailed governance work under the
respective terms of reference of the committees.

BN TESNESTGAREZERE  RAKENRRA - &
ERERERGTEIER ERIELZES FMWEES N/
KEZZBEENERINE T RESZBESHENEER
HEITARMERTE -

EmELL
17 Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily
BEmut
NC = Nomination Committee member AC = Audit Committee member
REZEEKE EREEENKER
RC = Remuneration Committee member * Committee Chairman
FMEEEKE ZEELE
# Five of our directors are family members related to the Company’s major shareholders. Apart from them, all other directors of the Company are not related to each other.

IREERAARATERREBNZTIERE - Bt 25 AABMEEMER 2RI EMEES -
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CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Aged 74, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as Chairman
and an executive Director in July 2011 and is a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Dr. Henry Cheng is responsible for the strategic
direction and overall performance of the Group.

Dr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is
also a director of several substantial shareholders of the Company,
including Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings Il) Limited and Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited.

In addition, Dr. Cheng is chairman and an executive director of
New World Development Company Limited and NWS Holdings
Limited, chairman and a non-executive director of FSE Lifestyle
Services Limited (formerly known as FSE Services Group Limited),
and vice-chairman and a non-executive director of i-CABLE
Communications Limited, all of which are listed public companies
in Hong Kong.

He was a non-executive director of SUM Holdings Limited until his
retirement on 11 June 2019; a non-executive director of DTXS Silk
Road Investment Holdings Company Limited until his resignation
on 19 March 2021; and chairman and a non-executive director of
New World Department Store China Limited until his resignation
with effect from 13 May 2021, all of the foregoing companies are
listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng is chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong
Kong Foundation. He was a Standing Committee Member of the
Twelfth Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference.

Dr. Henry Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy,
a cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy,
and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Governance

RN
‘BoA

ERRPITES

WETAE MI197TVFEMAREERE - 20011 F7 R EZ
TEERMATEEZ  WAARAIRBZES LHH
ZEGKE - BRABLIEBEAEEMRE FH LE

HETARNEEETHBRARES - thBEARAZH
FZEJEE Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited -
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited %1
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 9 & = -

o - BE LA RERER AR LFAZEER
BRAFEFEHRUTES  SRAEERBERAF (A
HMERRBEEEFRIR) TERFQTEE  LAR
RHBAARARBIFERIENTES  ZFQFY
REBLEMRRATE e

b EEERPIBEERBERAPFNTES  BEE
201956 411 HRME  ABRAMHBIREERERR
RIFEITES - EE2021F3 A 19 HEHE : bARH
REETEERAREIERFUITES  EE2021F
5A13AEHE - AR ARARFTE LM ARAF

BETR[FERREFES | EHEEGIF -G
RET-_EZEBRBEBES -

BREBLIABEMBELIMNBEZTLLHNR
BFEERENAR  BRFLERBHBELENEL
AR BHEFRENER -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ARXEHREEEERAR



EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Aged 65, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as Managing
Director of the Company in July 2011 and re-designated as
Managing Director, Corporate and HK, Macau & Overseas, of the
Company in April 2021, being responsible for the Group's overall
corporate management and its development in Hong Kong, Macau
and overseas. He is a member of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wong has diverse experience in business development as
well as in operations and management. His far-reaching insight
has been proven by the solid foundation built through the
"Smart+ 2020" strategic framework he led to deliver exceptional
customer experiences underpinned by commitments to innovation,
technology and sustainability.

Mr. Wong is a member of the 2021 Fair Organising Committee of
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council for its Hong Kong
International Jewellery Show and Hong Kong International
Diamond, Gem and Pearl Show. He is a council member of The
Hong Kong Management Association, chairman of executive
committee of the Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths' Association
Ltd, chairman of the supervising committee of the Hong Kong &
Kowloon Jewellers” & Goldsmiths’ Employees’ Association Ltd, a
permanent honorary president of the Kowloon Gold Silver and
Jewel Merchants' Staff Association, a board member of the World
Diamond Council, and a member of the Anhui Provincial Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is
also a board member of Diamonds Do Good and president of the
executive committee 2020/2022 of Youth Outreach.

Mr. Wong has been feted with the highest accolade of the JNA
Awards 2020, the “Lifetime Achievement Award"”, for his
outstanding lifetime achievements and contributions to the global
jewellery community. He was named as “Asia’'s Best CEO
(Investor Relations)” by Corporate Governance Asia, an
authoritative regional journal on corporate governance, at its Asian
Excellence Awards for four consecutive years from 2017 to 2020.
Mr. Wong was also named as “CEO of the Year / Luxury / Asia” at
the 2016 IAIR Awards presentation ceremony held by the
International Alternative Investment Review and awarded Director
of The Year Awards 2015 by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
in December 2015.

Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director of Crystal
International Group Limited (appointed on 4 June 2021), which is a
listed public company in Hong Kong.
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Aged 58, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011 and re-designated as Managing Director,
Mainland China, of the Company in April 2021, being in charge of
the strategic planning as well as the overall management of the
Group’s business in Mainland China. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Chan has extensive knowledge and experience of the market
in Mainland China and has been in the jewellery industry for 40
years. He is a senior adviser of the Gems & Jewelry Trade
Association of China, a member of National Technical Committee
256 on Jewelry and National Technical Committee 298 on Jewelry
and Jade of Standardization Administration of China, a member of
the standing council of China Gold Association, an executive vice-
chairman of the Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery Chamber of
Commerce, a vice-chairman of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery
Association, a general vice-chairman of Gold Association of
Guangdong Province, a vice-chairman of the Guangdong Golden
Jewellery and Jade Industry’'s Association, and a director and
visiting professor of the China University of Geosciences (Wuhan).
He is also a member of the Liaoning Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference.

Mr. Chan is also a non-executive director of Giordano International
Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.
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Aged 41, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Dr. Adrian Cheng is responsible for the
strategic investment and smart retail of the Group. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. Cheng is an executive vice-chairman and chief executive officer
of New World Development Company Limited, overseeing the
strategic direction for its property development and investment
activities. He is also an executive director of NWS Holdings
Limited, a non-executive director and chairman of New World
Department Store China Limited (re-designated with effect from 13
May 2021), and a non-executive director of Giordano International
Limited and New Century Healthcare Holding Co. Limited, all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He was a non-
executive director of i-CABLE Communications Limited until his
resignation on 2 July 2019, which is a listed public companies in
Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng is the chairman of New World Group Charity Foundation
Limited, a member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference, the chairman
of the China Young Leaders Foundation and the honorary chairman
of K11 Art Foundation. He was the vice-chairman of the 11th and
12th committee of the All-China Youth Federation. He was
acknowledged by Fortune as one of “40 Under 40" global business
stars and a “Young Global Leader” by the World Economic Forum
in 2012. Dr. Cheng is a Justice of Peace appointed by the
Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region since
2016 and was made an Officier in the Ordre des Arts et des
Lettres by the French Government in 2017.

Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (cum laude) from
Harvard University and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of
Humanities by the Savannah College of Art and Design in 2014. He
worked in a major international bank from September 2003 to April
2006 prior to joining the Group, and has substantial experience in
corporate finance.

Dr. Adrian Cheng is the son of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the brother
of Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy,
a nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy,
and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Aged 43, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Conroy Cheng is responsible for
managing the diamond and gemstone raw materials of the Group.
Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng is an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.
He is currently a member of the executive committee of the
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from The
Western University (formerly known as The University of Western
Ontario). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng had worked at Yu
Ming Investment Management Limited from 1999 to 2000 as a
corporate finance executive.

Mr. Conroy Cheng is a nephew of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry,
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, a
cousin of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia,
and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Aged 40, joined the Group in April 2019 as a non-executive
Director. She has been re-designated as an executive Director in
April 2021 and is responsible for high jewellery business of
the Group.

In addition to the position held in the Group, Ms. Sonia Cheng is
the chief executive officer of Rosewood Hotel Group and an
executive director of New World Development Company Limited,
a listed public company in Hong Kong. She is also an independent
non-executive director of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited, and an independent director of Primavera
Capital Acquisition Corporation, a company listed on the New York
Stock Exchange.

Ms. Cheng is a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board,
chairman of the advisory committee of the School of Hotel and
Tourism Management at The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
and a member of the Y. Elites Association, the Young Presidents’
Organization and the Hong Kong United Youth Association. She is
also a member of the Thirteenth Guangzhou Municipal Committee
of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the
People’s Republic of China.

Before joining New World Development Company Limited,
Ms. Cheng worked in a major international investment bank and a
global US private equity firm specialising in real estate investments.
She holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Applied Mathematics with
a concentration in Economics from Harvard University.

Ms. Cheng is the daughter of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the sister of
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy,
a niece of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy,
and a grandniece of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Aged 62, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a
non-executive Director in July 2011 and re-designated as an executive
Director with effect from April 2019. Mr. Wilson Cheng is responsible
for the Group's bank and landlord relationship management.
Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng is a vice-president of The Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society. He has over 40 years' experience in
administration and finance in jewellery retail business. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the University of
Hawaii, Honolulu.

Mr. Wilson Cheng is a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and
Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, an uncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian,
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia,
and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Aged 46, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Hamilton Cheng is responsible for the
finance and information functions of the Group. He also serves as
a joint company secretary of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in
Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst. He completed The
Prince of Wales's Business & Sustainability Programme designed
by the University of Cambridge Institute for Sustainability
Leadership in April 2018 and obtained Executive Diploma in
Corporate Governance and Sustainability Directorship from The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors in May 2018.

Mr. Cheng is currently a council member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and a member of the Financial Reporting
Review Panel of the Financial Report Council in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng was named as “Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)”
by Corporate Governance Asia, an authoritative regional journal on
corporate governance, at its Asian Excellence Awards for four
consecutive years from 2017 to 2020.
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Aged 56, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Peter Suen is responsible for the Group's
Hong Kong, Macau and overseas business. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Suen has been in the jewellery industry for 36 years. He's a
member of the executive committee of the Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association and the executive committee of the
Hong Kong Retail Management Association. Mr. Suen holds an
Executive Master's degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Aged 47, joined the Group in 1999, was appointed as an executive
Director in January 2016. Mr. Bobby Liu is responsible for retail
technology applications and production management of the Group.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in retail and administrative
management. He has been responsible for developing the Group's
smart retail experience since 2010. He has also been in charge of
the Group’s watch business in Mainland China from 2016 onwards.

Mr. Liu is a board member of YEAction, vice chairman of the
council of Shenzhen Performance Excellence Management
Foundation, vice chairman of the Federation of Industry and
Commerce of Yantian District, Shenzhen Municipal, a member of
the Yantian District Committee of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in Shenzhen, and a member’s
representative of SEE Foundation.

Mr. Liu holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
The Western University (formerly known as The University of
Western Ontario) and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer
Mathematics from Carleton University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Aged 75, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. Victor Fung is group chairman of the Fung Group, a Hong Kong
based multinational which comprises major operating groups
engaging in sourcing, logistics, distribution and retailing. They
include Li & Fung Limited, Global Brands Group Holding Limited,
Convenience Retail Asia Limited and other privately held entities.

Dr. Fung is Chairman of the Advisory Board of the Asia Global
Institute at the University of Hong Kong, a multi-disciplinary think-
tank co-established with the Fung Global Institute to assume and
carry forward the Fung Global Institute’s mission to generate and
disseminate research and ideas on global issues from Asian
perspectives. He is also chairman of the 2022 Foundation, a non-profit
entity focused on research into Hong Kong's long-term competitiveness.

In public service, Dr. Fung is a non-official member of Chief
Executive's Council of Advisers on Innovation and Strategic
Development, an adviser of the Infrastructure Financing Facilitation
Office of The Hong Kong Monetary Authority, a member of the
Council of the Hong Kong Laureate Forum and a non-official member
of the Governance Committee of Hong Kong Growth Portfolio.

Formerly, he was a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (2003-2018), a member of the Economic
Development Commission of the Hong Kong Government (2013-
2018), chairman of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council (1991—
2000), the Hong Kong representative on the APEC Business Advisory
Council (1996-2003), chairman of the Hong Kong Airport Authority
(1999-2008), chairman of the Council of The University of Hong Kong
(2001-2009), chairman of the Greater Pearl River Delta Business
Council (2004-2013), a member of the Commission on Strategic
Development of the Hong Kong Government (2005-2012), chairman
of the International Chamber of Commerce (2008-2010), a member
of WTO Panel on Defining the Future of Trade (2012-2013), a vice
chairman of China Centre for International Economic Exchanges
(2009-2014) and chairman of the Steering Committee on the
Scholarship for Excellence Scheme (2014-2018). The Government of
Hong Kong awarded Dr. Fung the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2003 and the
Grand Bauhinia Medal in 2010 for his distinguished service to the
community in Hong Kong. He was conferred a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Academy of Finance in June 2019. He was also honoured with
the Lifetime Achievement Award in the 2019 DHL / SCMP Hong Kong
Business Awards in December 2019.

Dr. Fung holds Bachelor's and Master’s Degrees in Electrical
Engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and a
Doctorate in Business Economics from Harvard University.
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Aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee of the Company.

Dr. Raymond Or is also chairman and a non-executive director of
China Strategic Holdings Limited, and an independent non-
executive director of Regina Miracle International (Holdings)
Limited and Playmates Holdings Limited (appointed with effect
from 21 May 2021), all of which are listed public companies in
Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited.

Dr. Or was an independent non-executive director of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited until his retirement in October
2018; an independent non-executive director of Television
Broadcasts Limited until his resignation on 1 January 2020; and
non-executive chairman and a non-executive director of Esprit
Holdings Limited until his resignation on 1 January 2021, all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Or holds a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics and
psychology from the University of Hong Kong and was awarded
Honorary University Fellow from The University of Hong Kong in
2009. Dr. Or was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Social Science
from the City University of Hong Kong in 2014 and was conferred
Honorary Fellowship by Hang Seng University of Hong Kong
(formerly known as Hang Seng Management College) in May 2017.
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Aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Gordon Kwong is a Fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong was a Partner
of PriceWaterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an independent member
of the Council of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from 1992 to
1997, during which, he had acted as convener of both the
Compliance Committee and the Listing Committee.

Mr. Kwong is an independent non-executive director of Agile Group
Holdings Limited, Henderson Investment Limited, Henderson Land
Development Company Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, FSE
Lifestyle Services Limited (formerly known as FSE Services Group
Limited) and COSCO Shipping International (Hong Kong) Company
Limited, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Piraeus Port
Authority SA (a company listed on the Athens Stock Exchange).
Mr. Kwong was an independent non-executive director of OP
Financial Limited, Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited and
China Power International Development Limited, until his retirement
on 27 August 2019, 22 May 2020 and 3 June 2021, respectively.
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Aged 84, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in September 2012 and is a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Paul Cheng had extensive governance experience serving as
an independent director on the board of a number of organisations,
including many publicly listed companies. Previously, he was
deputy chairman and an independent non-executive director of
Esprit Holdings Limited until his retirement in December 2018,
which is a listed public company in Hong Kong. He also served as
an independent non-executive director of Global Logistic Properties
Limited (which was listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange until
and an independent non-
executive director of Pacific Alliance China Land Limited (a
company listed on the AIM Board of the London Stock Exchange)

its delisting on 22 January 2018);

until his resignation on 12 May 2020.

Mr. Cheng was a former member of the Hong Kong Legislative
Council as well as the former chairman of Inchcape Pacific Limited,
N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited, The Link Management
Limited and the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Lake Forest
College (lllinois, the United States) and a Master's degree in
Business Administration from the Wharton Graduate School of
Business at The University of Pennsylvania.
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Aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is a member of the Nomination Committee
and Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Jeffrey Lam is an independent non-executive director of C C
Land Holdings Limited, China Overseas Grand Oceans Group
Limited, Wynn Macau, Limited, CWT International Limited, i-CABLE
Communications Limited, Wing Tai Properties Limited, Analogue
Holdings Limited, and China Strategic Holdings Limited (appointed
on 18 December 2020), all of which are listed public companies in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Lam is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He also holds a number
of other public and community service positions including being a
non-official member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and a member of the Legislative
Council in Hong Kong, a general committee member of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce, chairman of Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) Complaints Committee, a
director of the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited and the
board of Heifer Hong Kong. He was the former chairman of the
Assessment Committee of Mega Events Fund and a member of
Fight Crime Committee.

Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in mechanical engineering from
Tufts University in the United States. He has over 40 years of
experience in the toy industry and is currently the managing
director of Forward Winsome Industries Limited which is engaged
in toy manufacturing.
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Aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in April 2021 and is a member of the Nomination Committee and
the Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Chia is a Venture Partner of Sequoia Capital China. He has over
ten years of practical experience in big data strategy and application
with unique insights into the future trends of e-commerce. He
joined Alibaba in August 2010 and served as the Vice President of
Alibaba (China) Co., Ltd. and the President of Data Committee.
During his tenure with Alibaba, the data team of Alibaba was
awarded “China Excellent IT Team” in the “Excellent Chinese
ClO" selection in 2014, and Mr. Herbert Chia was also rated as
“China Top 10 Most Influential Big Data Entrepreneurs” by the
State Information Center of China in 2017.

Mr. Chia has been making significant contributions in helping to
bring China’s big data industry to a new level. He is a member of
Big Data Advisory Group of Beijing Government, Committee on
Innovation, Technology and Re-industrialisation of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, Board of Director of Hong Kong
Science and Technology Parks Corporation and a non-official
member of the Governance Committee of Hong Kong Growth
Portfolio. He has also actively promoted Hong Kong to become the
big data pilot city in The China Great Bay Area and The Belt
and Road.

Mr. Chia is the Adjunct Professor of the School of Management of
Zhejiang University and the Alibaba Business School. He is also the
author of various best-selling books including The Big Data and The
Nature of Big Data. He holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University and an
EMBA degree from the Institut Européen d’ Administration des
Affaires (INSEAD).

Mr. Chia had served as an independent non-executive director of a
Hong Kong publicly listed company, Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics
(Group) Corporation Limited from May 2017 to June 2018.
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Aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in April 2019 and is a member of the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Ms. Lily Cheng has served in the technology and internet industry
for over 20 years, both as an entrepreneur and as a corporate
executive. She is the founder and an executive director of Hubel
Labs Limited, a software lab developing Al-powered edtech game
and applications. She served as the President of TripAdvisor, APAC
from 2014 to 2016 and held various management roles at
TripAdvisor, Inc. and Expedia, Inc. from 2008 to 2016. She was a
management consultant with The Boston Consulting Group from
2006 to 2008.

Ms. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Engineering and a
Master of Engineering degree from the University of Cambridge and a
Graduate Certificate in Artificial Intelligence from Stanford University.

Ms. Cheng is an independent non-executive director of Swire
Properties Limited and Sunevision Holdings Limited, both of which
are listed public companies in Hong Kong. She is also an
independent non-executive director of Octopus Cards Limited, a
board observer and advisor to HotelBeds Group and an advisor to
the Office of the President of Mars, Incorporated.
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HONORARY ADVISER TO THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Aged 89, joined the Group in 1949, was appointed as an honorary
adviser to the Board with effect from August 2011. Mr. Cheng is
an uncle of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, and a granduncle of
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia.

Aged 70, joined the Group in 1994, was appointed as an honorary
adviser to the Board with effect from August 2011. Mr. Cheng is a
cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson,
an uncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong Adrian, Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY AND GROUP
GENERAL COUNSEL

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton is an executive Director and Joint
Company Secretary. His profile is set out on p.84 of this annual
report under the sub-section of “Executive Director”.

Aged 60, joined the Group in 2017, is Group General Counsel and
Joint Company Secretary. Mr. Simon Lai is also the general counsel of
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lai is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales,
and New South Wales, Australia and has over 30 years of
experience in corporate, commercial and related regulatory
practice. He was a long standing partner and later on, consultant,
of a leading law firm before joining the Group and has extensive
experience on corporate finance matters. Mr. Lai has also served
on a number of public appointments.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Aged 51, joined the Group in 2019, is the Global Chief Intellectual
Capital Officer of the Group. Ms. Leung has over 25 years of
experience in human resources, training, total quality management
and customer service spanning across Fintech, Media, Hospitality
and Petrochemical industries.

To promote excellence in her areas of expertise, Ms. Leung is
actively engaged in public service. She is a member of the
Organising Committee of the Awards for Excellence in Training and
Development of Hong Kong Management Association (HKMA), and
has been on the Board of Examiners of the Quality Award of HKMA
since 2008. She is also a member of the Cross-Industry Training
Advisory Committee and the Specification of Competency Standards
Drafting Subcommittee for the Human Resources Management
sector of Qualifications Framework of the HKSAR Government.

Aged 44, joined the Group in 2012, is the director of Investor
Relations and Corporate Communications of the Group, responsible
for maintaining effective communications with investors and
media. Ms. On has over 20 years of experiences in auditing,
management consulting, equity research, asset management and
investor relations. She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Aged 46, joined the Group in 2016, is the general manager
responsible for business strategy and analytics as well as technology
applications of the Group. Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience
in advanced analytics carrying out consulting and business
management roles with leading business analytics corporations.

Aged 50, joined the Group in 1993, is the general manager
responsible for managing and developing the information
infrastructures and technologies of the Group. Mr. Tsang has over
28 years of experience in information technology. He is currently
President of the Internet of Things Industry Advisory Council of
GS1 HK.
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Aged 59, joined the Group in 1986, is the assistant director
responsible for the operation of Diamond Department and diamond
manufacturing management of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 35
years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Aged 49, joined the Group in 1994, is the senior manager
responsible for managing and purchasing gemstones such as
jadeite, colour stones and pearls for the Group. Mr. Cheng has over
25 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Aged 54, joined the Group in 2013, is the general manager
responsible for managing production and logistics capacities as
well as the related infrastructures of the Group. Mr. Lau has over
30 years of management and consultancy experience.

Aged 49, joined the Group in 2010, is the general manager responsible
for the branding and marketing management of the Group. Mr. Chan
has over 25 years of experience in luxury branding and marketing.

Aged 38, joined the Group in 2011, is the general manager
responsible for the creative design and development of jewellery
products. Mr. Lam has over 15 years of experience in jewellery
design. He was awarded Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Designer
Award in 2014 and was conferred Fellowship and Chartered Manager
by Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration.

Aged 62, joined the Group in 2000, is the general manager
responsible for managing the Hong Kong and Macau Management
Centre and Chow Tai Fook Fei Cui Testing Centre of the Group.
Mr. Wong has over 45 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. He holds an Executive Master's degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is
also a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of America
and a Certified Gemmologist (Fei Cui) of the Gemmological
Association of Hong Kong.
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Aged 44, joined the Group in 2002, is the executive general
manager responsible for managing the Mainland China
Management Center of the Group, orchestrating the overall
enterprise management in the Mainland China. Ms. Yuan has
approximately 20 years of experience in change management,
process efficiency optimisation, risk control, corporate culture
building and talent development.

Aged 41, joined the Group in 2004, is the general manager responsible
for the Group's financial management and strategic finance. Ms. Yang
has over 20 years of experiences in auditing, accounting, financial
management and risk management. Ms. Yang is a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

OUR “4Ts” FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The "4Ts" concept introduced by T MARK diamond brand in
ensuring our diamonds are natural and ethically sourced is reinforced
by our rigorous controls under the agile business model. The same
set of principles also guides the development of our corporate
governance framework, supporting the Group in better achieving our

1 3% 5 I8 W &

HAIPEEEG[4Ts] KA

T MARKEE A @B LA [4Ts ] #l& - £EEEEW
EBBEABBEET BARRMOWEBHRAESR
KiRAI 5 - A—ERAFASEECREAERNER
IRAREERZZERRBUERR KA HEER
MR

strategic objectives towards sustainable growth and development.

Transparent
Al Al

Implement transparent disclosures and constructive dialogues to foster genuine mutual
understanding with stakeholders
EHRFHAFNREMERIMYERE BREERSOENHEET @

Thoughtful
A B

Embrace leaders with independent mindset, versatile expertise and business acumen
who steer our long-term pursuit for sustainable business growth and attainment of
common values with stakeholders

ERABYDHE AE2ENEXRNBNBEBRENER  FTERMRPBRTISENERZ
RNERFOENHREEESR

Truthful
J {5

Uphold long-established culture of integrity to safeguard the fundamental interests of
stakeholders and build trusting relationships with them
BERABRYHHEL  REFOENEAFERFHEY BEBE

Traceable
nf &

Enhance accountability via institutionalised structures and measures to drive better
utilisation of resources and fulfilment of stakeholders’ interests
BBGECHEBNERINEEE  UEERERERNEREHENAZ

OUR BOARD GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK ESgEaRE

Board Structure e Board of directors e Responsibilities and main tasks
EEERE E5g BEMEBTHE
P.98-102 &5 e Board committees

EELEY
Board Composition e Board diversity e Continuing professional development
EEEAER E=g%lt HEEERRE
P.103-109 & Board refreshment Remuneration

EEQEN E=qil

Director roles and functions

EENAETREE
Board Operations Leadership and enablement Compliance and accountability
EEEERE BE A AHFEE
P.110-117E Communication and information support Evaluation

BERMEMZE FIE

Shareholder Communications
HERAYBE
P.118-122 8

Interactive engagement

5 BEIE

Shareholder rights and other information

AR BB O L At
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BOARD STRUCTURE EEERE

The Board
HHE
4 \ \
Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee Audit Committee Executive Committee
REZZEE FNEEE BZZEEE BITEEE
- ! N ‘ e | "‘ I N [ | N [ | N [ |
ntellectua
Heform and Sustainability Capital Strate IT Governance | |Risk Management|| Group Branding
Development . P gy c itt . .
Committee Committee Committee ) ?m‘m":i Committee Committee
wepupEag | THARRERS whAE éaﬂ;é?% e AREREEE SERRESE
A N N iﬁg NG NG N\ 4
( | ) | ) | . I
Hong Kong, Macau . .
Mainland China || & Other Markets Production fn‘;f]‘:;’eﬂ‘::: IFr'l';j:n‘:Z t"’i‘::
ch 5] oy 3 | EE b .
it e 3 &s
BE{bHiE frEsEEE M REH
AN AN \ J J
Board of Directors EEE
e Responsible for steering the sustainable success of the Group o AEEEBEEREKAN  ARAIEWSIENEE

by overseeing the overall strategic direction, risk appetite and REBMOER - FAKEEMFERD -
directing and supervising its affairs.
e Sets the Group's core values and adopts proper standards to o MUARKBEMZOLEENMRMNZSHOZE  BREX

ensure that the Company operates with integrity and being NANBRELSE  URAEEMNRRERRME A
responsible to our shareholders and other stakeholders for the BHEEE -
Group's performance.
e More details on main tasks, p.99. o FETEMEZFHIE  F2MEE -
Nomination Committee, Remuneration REEESE  FiNESENEZXEEE

Committee and Audit Committee

e Undertake governance duties as specified in their respective o WITHEAWBEDEFMIIPNERET-
terms of reference.

e More details on main tasks, p.100-102. o FETIEMEZFIGE  F2ME1008102E8 °

Executive Committee WITEEE

e Supports the Managing Directors to implement strategy and o MBEFALERNITRBMEREERR -
oversee operational performance.

e Being delegated with all the powers to act concerning the o BEEAMAEERMATERITE
ordinary course of business.

e Matters beyond its delegated authority are reserved to the o HERERUIMNEEHEFSELIRE °
Board for decision.

e More details on main tasks, p.110-112. o FTETEMEZFE  B2MFE110E21128 -
98 Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Area of focus

FY2021

BEEE (Number of meetings: 4) (E:&/XE] : 4) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Strategy planning and e Discuss on the medium to long-term goals and strategies v
execution A E R B R MR
KR EIAMBIT e Comment on the current strategic plan and financial budget v v
LA B RIR RS BB B TEE
e Receive the strategic reports from the Managing Director v v
ENERALERNRERE
e Receive the management reports from the Executive Committee v v v v
ENNITZEEGNERERE
Business and financial e Approve annual results and report, and recommend final dividend v
performance HOEFEEEMRE AR EHZRBARE
RN R IR e Approve interim results and report, and interim dividend v
B AR EAZEAE TSR 5 DA R AR 2
e Review quarterly performance and recent business development v v
BN EERBANIBREBER
e Review on industry trends and market outlook v v
BRITEBENTIGA R
e Receive the investor feedback report v v
ERREENRBRE
e Review on the dividend policy v
A AR B BUER
Corporate governance ® Receive the reports from the Nomination Committee, 4 v 4
TEER Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee
ERREEES  FMWEES@NERZEGNRE
e Approve the appointment, re-designation or retirement of v v
directors
BHEESNZET - AFERRE
e Consider / approve connected / continuing connected transactions v v
ZE/ERE/ HBERERS
e Review sustainability performance and approve the report v
BEAIFEERRB NI ERB RS
e Approve the proposed resolutions to put forward to the annual v
general meeting and the publication of related circular
HERZTRERAFAGHNEZRBZEMTIZ AR MK
e Private meeting between Board chairman and INEDs v

EEeTREBVIFNTESENEAMNER

During the year, the Board has increased attention on:

FAR EEFCEREIATER:

e Market opportunities and expansion in Mainland China. o FERNMHTEEERIER -
e Accelerated digital transformation and changing consumer o 2019 MBS HEAE IR ARGHIBKE - S EfEER

behaviour brought along with the unprecedented challenges of

COVID-19.

MEREEBEEITREE -

e Target setting for the execution of Dual-Force Strategy. o AHITEHNRBREBIZ -
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Area of focus

FY2021
(Number of meetings: 3) (2 X & : 3)

Q1 Qa3 Q4

Board performance
assessment

BERGRBAFNAE

Evaluate on the structure, composition and size of the Board of Directors
PR EE YRR - ARTIRE

Evaluate on the structure, roles and delegation of Board committees
FMEEREZESMNARE  AENRES T

Review the management roles and responsibilities of executive directors
taken into account the medium to long-term strategic goals and
succession planning

EEREPROAXRBIEESNETHENART  BIANTEENEEAECHN
51

Assess and confirm on the independence and time commitment

of INEDs

ST AN RRIE L FEBNTT E B AV IE LRI AR

Review and monitor the training and continuing professional development

of directors and senior management
BRENEREENRREEABNEIRBESEERE

Board composition
review

BB

Discuss on the board mix of competence and diversity in perspectives
required by future strategic needs
HEAREREEIRESEMTHNENEENZ T B

Analyse on the current board matrix, diversity objectives, and progress
ATBRTNEESEN - ZULEEMEE

Board refreshment or
succession

BEESFMNMEE

Consider the planning for board refreshment with respect to INEDs
HBUIFRTESEREETG I E

Advise on the preparation for management succession
HREFHEEABEIRER

Determine on the rotation and re-appointment of directors
AREZEZHNREMEHNEE

Directors’ nomination
and appointment
EENIERRER

Nomination, selection and appointment of new directors
G WMENZTHES
Review the induction guidelines for new directors

mE T EE NG ES|

During the year, the Nomination Committee has increased

attention on:

e Reshaping of the skillset requirements for the future boardroom o EYLKBITOMNR
amid the new reality of the COVID-19 challenges.

ab @b
e =

SRBAEREFARR o

FR REZEGEREINTEE:

o PARE Y 201978 AR B

e Accelerating the priority of INEDs refreshment and CEO o NMREHBIUIENITEERITHRATRETAZINE

succession plan.

FEIRFF ©

e Redefining the scope of responsibilities of Board committees in o EHITEEELZEENBEHE A ZEKERMY
alignment with the achievement of strategic goals. BiZ o

Governance
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Area of focus FY2021

BEHE (Number of meetings: 2) (£ X : 2) Q1 Q4
Performance and e Assess on the Company’s performance and remuneration level for directors v
rewards for FERRRBAMESHIFKTE
directors and e Consider comparable benchmarking and performance of individual directors v
senior management EZREALHEEREGEEMNESTNERE
EELSREIEAER o Determine the remuneration packages and annual adjustments for executive v
KIRFNEE) directors and senior management
ETEEREREEABNTNEBNFERE
e Review on the mechanism of long-term incentives for directors v
B B R A SR E
Remuneration policy e Supervise on the remuneration policy and structure for directors and employees v
and strategy EEREENREENTHBERFAR
N BUR RIS B e Endorse the remuneration strategy for senior management and key employees v/
BEREREASMBRES N HHRR
e Review the market pay trends and endorse the annual staff budget for increment v

BRI TS BBMRBE TFENFEE

Strategic intellectual e Discuss on the workforce plan and training programmes for the post-pandemic era v
capital development to align with the changing workforce and consumer market
REUEB NERER BB EOANREMBZINEE - AFETES2CHN TEERTEEE TS
e Review on the organisation structure to maximise talent potentials in support of the v

execution of Dual-Force Strategy
WA ABERE  REVWEATER  IBRTEDHHERR

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has increased FER - HWEESF AT TSR
attention on:

e Rethinking and reconfiguring the organisation structure, team o EIBEMMBALLEME EBARM TEER &

composition and mode of work to utilise for new business SKIE2019 B IR B S TRER A I ERED -
priorities after COVID-19.

e Development of a more agile workforce accommodated with o — Y EETENTIEER - B AR R B S
skills-based management model and incentives for performance. @iﬂﬁﬁgygjﬁam 0

e Medium to long-term workforce planning strategies to ensure o HFTHREIANBERE  URREEESFENA
that the right people with the right skills are in the right jobs to BIEAEENEA  NERAEERLHENTIEZ

accomplish the goals of the Group in the years to come.
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Area of focus

FY2021
(Number of meetings: 3) (£ X & : 3)

Q1

Q3

Q4

Strategic alignment
RERA

Oversee IT governance and the digital transformation of finance function
EEEAMBEE ANV B a5 E R

Review the adequacy of resources supporting the finance, governance
and internal audit function

R BOAMABEZENERTEE

Comment on the work priorities of policy governance, risk management
and internal audit

EHEERNE  RBREENMASEZ I BN IEES

Risk management and
controls
B & IR FNAE

Receive reports from Risk Management Committee
ENREREEZESNRE

Receive internal audit reports

RN (E= o ey

Receive anti-fraud reports

TEE R SRR

Corporate governance
hEER

Annual review on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems, and external and internal audit
FEREREEMALEIZE RSB - RN R A EBEFZ

Annual review on the continuing connected transactions
BREFEANFEFRER S

Review the compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and the
Board's oversight over environmental, social and governance
BRECEERTFUMNETER  UREBEFSETIRE  HERERNER
Review the disclosures in the results announcements, interim and annual
reports (including Corporate Governance Report therein) and sustainability report
WEAEERNE  RHRSERFR(BIEETRHLEEARSE) M HEERER
EH R

Financial statements

B HRER

Receive the management’s analysis on the business and financial review
FEERE IR 2 AN BT 75 B B ) 5 A

Review significant accounting policies, finance controls and financial
reporting system

ERERGTTHER  MBEERTBRE RZ5

Review the presentation and disclosures of the financial statements for
the Group's interim and annual results

BB EE T HRE R FRY BRI SHMANEE

External auditor

S EDAZ BUhm

Comment on the annual audit plan

HEEEZFEHREHRER

Receive auditor’s audit report, or interim review report
BB Er RSP HRENRE

Private meeting with auditor

EAZ BRI ERITEAP g2

Review on the independence and objectivity, performance and fees of
auditor, and recommend on their re-appointment

BERZEENELMANERL  RRNER  UNEBRENEE

During the year, the Audit Committee has increased attention on: FRN - BERLZEGERBEIATEER:

e Disclosure on the financial impact of COVID-19, in order for
investors to have a fair interpretation on the business resilience

Jﬂ&%

and profitability of the Group.

e Cloud transformation, cybersecurity, system integration and o TimEEA . 4Y
data governance, which are fundamental to operational BREANESENRNEHEKRBREHEEE -

efficiency and business risk mitigation in the digital age.

e Application of technology and data analytics in risk management o EREKREEMAIHFZFIEABBMEBIESN - #E
and internal audit, to ensure emerging risks could be identified 1R AT LA 55 RIS K2 B g 328 3 B el B o
and timely dealt with.

Governance
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board consists of 17 directors.

Independence
B

. INED
% BUENTES

L1

INED B HHITES
|

ED#{TES

59%

Board tenure

18%

Average years of service

P9 AR % F 1

v
L1
0-3 years F

|
4-6 years

76% —
7-9 years &£

Our Board diversity policy

e Appropriate combination of competency and diversity of
perspectives in order to achieve the Company’s long-term goal
and strategy.

e Thorough considerations in board decision-making leverage on
broader insights and risk intelligence, as well as better
understanding on customers and stakeholders.

e A broad concept of diversity attributable to various attributes:

— Personal skills and professional knowledge
— Regional and industry experience, reach to stakeholders
— Gender, age, length of service and other qualities

Annual Report 2021
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EE =R mﬂbi
EXgHI17TRERMEK -

35%
35% 5 9 Average age
o T

—
35-50

51-65

—
over 65
30% #BiB655%

Gender
EESEY Bl

88%

12%
. 2 Female directors
LtEE
mlei
Male %
EEEZTLER
o UEBEMENEANZTHRE  UEBAQRFANE
H B RN EERE o

s BEXSRBEEENEEMELEELRAREIEL
BEHER  UREEHMERBEERENSE -

o RETMAA—EZRERSESRRE
— EAFBEME AN E
—HEMITERR  ERFHERER
— MR Fie - RBFHMEME R
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Our current board mix of knowledge and experience
Broad business exposures
e Typical industries: retailing, manufacturing, property development
e Emerging sectors serving for customers' lifestyle and enjoyments:
— Lifestyle products and fashion
— Leisure and entertainment
— Travel and hospitality
— Technology and innovation
— Healthcare, finance and insurance
e Connections with commercial leaders, public bodies and
community groups.

Worldwide market experience
e Mainland China and Hong Kong, China
e European and the United States markets

Diverse professional knowledge

e Expertise in retail and jewellery

e Technology and data analytics

e Corporate strategies and risk management
e |isted company governance

e (Capital market and finance

Our diversity objectives for the future Board

e Proven experience in young generation market and
business innovations.

e A broad spectrum of connections and intelligence across
multiple commercial fields.

e |dea crossovers and collaborative innovations along the
consumers’ value chain in a wider market.

e Together contribute to high standards of corporate governance
and stakeholders' interests.

e The joining of two female and young directors in April 2019 has
contributed to a desirable Board mix in view of gender and age diversity.

e Together with another new INED appointed in April 2021, the
diversity of age mix and board tenure are further enhanced.

Governance
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BB FEMSMEREIF N EREH -

BHTRAMXEBEEEZHBENBESS -

REHEEBERZEMANT S LHESDERE S
B ERIF -
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Board nomination EEERE

Nomination policy and process

Status update

REBKNER 18R E
Stage 1 Look into future challenges, opportunities, business model and Reviewed in FY2021
Preparation strategic goals 2021 BB EE R
F—FRER RETARRAIBREL - #B - EBRAMKHK AT ¢ Retail and China
FE Identify desirable perspectives and experience an optimal Board requires experience
BRREEEEETENRTNLER TEMP LR
Evaluate the strengths and weaknesses of the current Board composition e Technology and data
AR EE S EKM%55T8 application
Set out requirements and objectives in searching for potential candidate(s) Rl ez e A
HIEMEEEREANEKRKMEZ e Governance and risk
Propose the timeline for Board refreshment management
E-E R0l B EaFAR SR
e Gender and age diversity
1 BIFIF iR % Tk
Stage 2 Invite nomination of candidates from Board members or professional Nominated in FY2021
Nomination consultants 2021 T FEIRA
FEREER EEGNENTEEMRELREA e Mr. Chia Pun-Kok,
2% Con5|der a broad range of candidates who are in or outside of the Herbert
Board's circle BEmELE
BZEREZGBTRINVIREA
Meet with the shortlisted candidates and then evaluate on the suitability
HARREAGETTHERDT SR
Put forward the recommendation to the Board, including the role and
function, and committee membership
MEELRIZEBRES  REACTIRE  URZEEKESNH
Stage 3 The Board considers the recommendation and decides on the appointment FY2022
Appointment EEGERBERMATEME 2022 A FE
FE=EER Determine the communication and transition plan, as well as e Appointment letters
=T induction activities HEK
EEABEBERE  UKRBCEED ¢ Onboard and re-election
Publish an announcement, fulfil statutory filing requirements and issue FEMER

letter of appointment

FlERE - BRCAERRITEHEER

Propose the re-election of the newly appointed director in the next general
meeting and make adequate disclosure on the respective nomination process
ET—EARRASERBENZILES  UHBEBERSREFIEHRSHE

e Induction activities

MEES

Management succession planning
e Enrich the roles played by young management by allocating .
challenging assignments for the achievement of the Group's

EEEEETE

sustainable development.

e Create strategic task force and career advancement o A8l
opportunities for them.

e Provide comprehensive training and development programmes. o EHEMEE

e Design attractive incentive schemes to reward outstanding performance. .
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Our Board is collectively responsible and accountable to our
shareholders for the Group's performance.

ERgrsBNRBARARREERHE

Number of directors INED Executive directors
EEHAE JHHITES HITES
Board of Directors =& 17 41% 59%
Nomination Committee IE 2 Z 8 & 8 75% 25%
Remuneration Committee ﬁ@ﬂié@ 6 67% 33%
Audit Committee EZZ 8 5 100% 0%
Executive Committee $§(Lﬂ§ gg 10 0% 100%
The profile, role and function of each director, their relationship EEEER B LBE BUE2ENERARES
with each other and the membership of the board committees are ZEEWKEHNETOZ92E °

set out on p.76-92.

Chairman, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

e Provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board
works effectively.

e QOversees strategic direction and overall performance of the Group.

Independent non-executive directors

e Bring strategic insights to the Board driving for long-term value.

e Exercise independent judgement on the strategy, performance
and risks of the Group.

e Balance the interests of the Company, shareholders and stakeholders.

e |NEDs act as chairmen or members of major Board committees
and undertake detailed governance work under the respective
terms of reference.

e Being appointed for a term of three years, subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Articles.

Managing Directors, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent and

Mpr. Chan Sai-Cheong

e Formulate and recommend the strategy of the Group to
the Board.

e | ead the management team to execute the strategy agreed by
the Board and is responsible for the overall business and
operations of the Group.

Other executive directors

e FEach has one's own strategic and / or management responsibilities.

e Support the Managing Directors to oversee the execution of
corporate strategies and supervise on the business and operations.

Directors’ time commitment

Based on assessment with reference to a number of factors:

e Directors’' confirmation

* Meeting attendance rate

e Preparation for and degree of participation in meetings

e Participation in continuing professional development to keep
abreast of knowledge relevant to the directors’ duties

The Nomination Committee is of the view that all directors,
including INEDs, have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company's affairs.

Governance
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Number of meetings attended / eligible to attend for FY2021

021 B BREEHE/ GERHEEERY

Annual Continuing
General Board Nomination Remuneration Audit professional
Meeting Meeting Committee Committee Committee development
ES RN Exggz REZEE FHMEES BEREEE PFHEEERR
Executive Directors BITES
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry R il 4/4¢ 3/3 22 - v/
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BRERAE 1”1 4/4 3/3 2/2 - v/
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Rt S 54 7 4/4 - - - 4
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BEREL 17 4/4 - - - 4
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BEBEE 7 4/4 - - - 4
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia BEZLL 7 4/4 - - - 4
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BeRIT R4 1 4/4 - - - 4
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton #BImER 4 1 4/4 - - - 4
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BEREE 171 4/4 - - - v/
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert BREEA 4 1 2/3 - - - 4
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiIRABEE 11 4/4 - - - v/
Independent Non-executive BIAERITESE
Directors
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BB 17 4/4 3/3¢ 2/2 - 4
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond 5@ ELT 1”1 4/4 3/3 2/2¢ 3/3 v/
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon Bkt 7 4/4 - 2/2 3/3¢ 4
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul BRI & 7 4/4 3/3 - 3/3 4
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey NS 17 4/4 3/3 - 3/3 v/
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily BEBIt 1N 4/4 3/3 22 - v/
Note: 53

C represents the chairman of Board or the relevant Board committees
v All directors have submitted their training records for the year, showing that each of them has
fulfiled the training requirement by participating in the activities on p.108 organised by the Company.

Conflict of Interest and Independence

Nomination Committee’s annual review on INEDs’

independence

Based on the review of a number of factors:

e Potential conflict of interest

e Nature and amount of business relationship and transactions
with the Group during the year

e Nature of offices held in other companies, organisations and
other significant commitments

e FEach INED's annual confirmation of independence received by
the Company

The Board is of the view that all INEDs are independent, free from
any business or other relationship which could materially interfere
with the exercise of their judgement. Detailed elaboration on the
Board's assessment are made in the circular to shareholders in
respect of the INEDs to be re-elected in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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Align knowledge and experience acquisition with a view to
driving performance towards our strategic goals and exercising
critical oversight on risk and performance.

Sharpen the strategic vision and competency in embracing the
era of innovation and disruption.

Foster a Board culture of ongoing learning and knowledge sharing.

Our approach to ongoing learning

Organise Board seminars, management forums and workshops
on themes relevant for propelling the business priorities, where
our leaders can interact with inspirational guest speakers.
Arrange on-site visits to explore on the competitive edges of
other advanced organisations.

Custom-made newsletters sharing articles and videos related to
the Board’s hot topics.

Conduct surveys for the Nomination Committee to understand
learning needs of each director and analyse the directors’
training records to prioritise the Board education activities.

Onboarding induction

Assist incoming directors to have proper understanding on the
business and operations, strategies and competitive
environment of the Group, and directors’ duties.

Help the new directors to get an understanding of the Board
culture and corporate culture.

Efficient and tailor-made on needs, depending on their Board
roles, their expertise and experience, enabling them to make
contributions as early as possible to the Board, particularly on
providing advice on the strategies.

Induction activities guide

Briefing sessions.

Networking luncheon with other Board members and management
presentation on selected topic relating to potential contribution
expected from the new director.

Meet with our management teams and visit our facilities to
understand the Group's existing plans and needs.

Online resources centre for directors:

— Business model and strategies

Industry trends and market profiles

— Business and financial performance

— Statutory duties and responsibilities of directors

— Corporate governance policies

Invite the new director to share on selected topic relating to his / her
expertise topic in a Board and management seminar.

Governance
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e Putin place a well-designed incentive system to attract, motivate o RIEEMBEEHE ARSI - BBMBEAAR

and retain talented corporate leaders in order to support the MEEEEAS KM AEREKRRIMER
achievement of long- and short-term strategic goals of the Group REEE  URABRRENFZEEEELE -

as well as to promote value creation for the benefit of
the shareholders.
e Offer fair and competitive reward levels to ensure comparability o RENFEMEFF HAEE BERITEEMES L

with companies listed in Hong Kong competing for talents with MARNLEZATEMAELHERE AR ML - B
similar leadership qualities, with special emphasis on the Asian- | E| B EEE RS N AT -

focused jewellery companies.

Executive directors BITES
Fixed portion e Salaries, benefits and pension
BIE L5 EXFH® - BAFERAKE
e Director's fee
BExae
Variable portion e Discretionary bonus linked with the Company’s performance as follows:
FEER — the current year's profitability

— theincrease in share price of the Company in a period of time over the benchmark
HARAXRBABHBBEIEALNT

— ZFENRN G

— R—ERERA - AaRERBEZERENIEE

e Incentive-based, with a significant portion of variable portion o FENAZN - BEE L HIHFENE D EAR A F )5 ER
correlated with the short term profitability and long-term value BRI REERY -
of the Company.

e Alignment of their rewards with the performance of the o G M{PYRY HEED EL AN A B R IR RN AR SR A s b o
Company and interests of its shareholders.

e Determined by the Remuneration Committee. e AFMEBERTE -

Independent non-executive directors BIAFRITES

Fixed portion e Director's fee

Eifa i BTHBS

Variable portion e Discretionary bonus linked with:

FENER — the increase in share price of the Company in a period of time over the benchmark

BYIEIEAL - ELIA T 48
— R—EHEA - RAREEIERRENER

o Offer appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain high o REABEMEHEMNRSIMBEABRS ERLCHBMNE
calibre directors with sufficient governance experience and URENESFES HHERYHESSABYES -
independence in thinking so that their views carry weight in the Board.

e Proportionate to the time commitment and workloads of Board e HERKEFZECNREARAMIEEKIEL -
committees they serve.

e Benchmarked against market practice, according to their roles, o RWEAR  EEMERERAETISEG AT
responsibilities and time commitment.

e Determined by the Board, after discussions in the Remuneration e HHMEBGTRE HEBGELRTE -
Committee.

More details on directors’ remuneration for FY2021, p.193. BHEESR2021 MBFENFHHE— P18 F2H
%193H -
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BOARD OPERATIONS EEEER

Area of focus Main tasks of the Executive Committee

BREEHE HITEEENEETH

Strategy e Competition and market development strategy e [nvestment and acquisition strategy
o BT T 5 B R SR 28 F0 B R

e Customer strategy and business model

e Intellectual capital and IT strategy

AR R E B ER BNERFE GRS
Execution e Business targets and progress tracking e |nvestment budget and appraisal
BT EKBEAEEZER REBHEMT
e Goals and reward system for the management e Organisation and management
EIRABHEBIEMNEEGIE structure
BB IR

Monitoring e Business alignment with strategies and

EE risk appetite
¥BBRESRBNERATIE

e Efficiency in operations and use of resources

e Compliance with laws and regulations

B REMER

e Corporate culture and ethics

EEME R AR hEXEMER
Accountability e Governance policy and practices e Social and environmental objectives
B& ERBE BRI HEMBRREZ
* Investors’ perspectives
REENAE

Strategy planning
e Formulate market driven and customer focused strategies to
achieve performance targets and strategic goals endorsed by
the Board.
e QOrganise broad-based engagement activities from top-down to
align strategic vision and encourage collaborations across functions:
- Large group: strategy forum, annual retreat and inspirational expert
briefing on topics such as industry and market assessment,
competitive review, customer profile and segmentation
- Small group: interview, focus group and innovation panel on
topics such as analysing market signals, analysing on
opportunities and threats of our own value chain
e Connect bottom-up proposals to the medium to long-term
strategic map:
- Review strategies, annual plans, business targets and
financial budgets submitted by business segments
- Validate the consistency and effectiveness of these annual
plans on their assumptions such as competition landscape,
customers proposition, business model and required level of
return to shareholders etc.
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Strategy execution

Hold monthly Executive Committee meetings to review the
performance reports, monitor the progress of strategy
implementation, financial budget and analyse the effectiveness of
business drivers in order to review and make timely adaptations.

Supervise on critical aspects of the major business segments
such as strategic prioritisation,
performance measurement, the planning and building of profit

resources allocation and

drivers and budgets, managing the portfolios of products and
customers and so on.

Connect the dots in a flat organisation structure under a
customer-centric approach to promote synergies among the
Group, as well as aligning various strategies on talent, reward,
culture, risk appetite and controls.

Set up and supervise on the management committees, which
assist in the strategic planning for relevant areas and supervise
the attainment of the Group's objectives.

Report back to the Board on the performance of the Group.
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Scope of work of the major management committees

ES

EEREZEENITFER

Reform and Development
Committee

HERBEREESE

Drive business innovation and transformation to achieve sustainable growth of the
Group's business

BV EBAFTMEL - LERAEEERHAFEER

Supervise on the reforms along the value chain and the business model
EEEEBMEREANHE

Sustainability Committee

OfEERESE

Promote responsible growth which interlocks social purposes with the Group’s business
and operations and evaluate on ESG (environmental, social and governance) risks
EHHHSEMNEAEEEBEERENBETER  TIHERE L@ REBER
Monitor on the achievement of the Group’s centennial commitments in relation to four
priority areas: responsible sourcing; craftsmanship, innovation and technology; resource
efficiency and carbon reduction; and people focused

ERAKEERAWA TEERE  FRAH - ERME LRI - URAARKRIKERH
B8\ FAGE

Intellectual Capital Strategy
Committee

ENEXRBESE

Formulate major intellectual capital strategies and policies to support the Group's
business transformation and sustainability

FIEFEENERKBABER  AZR/FAEENEBELMAFERE

Monitor the progress of major intellectual capital enhancement projects
ERFERNEREAEBENEE

IT Governance Committee

HMERELSESE

Formulate major IT strategies and governance policies to enable the Group's business
transformation and operational efficiencies

FIEFEMEABHRBAERBE - FAKE M EREKEN RS ERX

Monitor the progress of major projects on IT infrastructure, system development, data
governance and information security

EREANMBAER  AERE  BBRELNENLXEESTIZHENER

Risk Management Committee

EREEESE

Build an enterprise risk management framework and policies

B (PR B IR AR SR MR

Review on the Group’s major risks and supervise on the mitigation measures
R ANEENTERRMNEEREEIE

Group Branding Committee

Direct the brand vision, mission and values and corporate image

SEREBESE BERMER  CaNEEARGERER
e Supervise on the differentiation strategy, including brand positioning, image and
marketing strategy
BEYERRR  BEMETELL RIS HRE
Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Board communication

e Focus the Board's time and dialogues on key aspects of
strategy, risk and performance.

e Enable meeting efficiency with high quality information.

e Make sure the questions raised or matters arising from
meetings are followed up.

e Arrange private session between Board chairman and INEDs.

e Provide prompt assistance and advice by the company secretary.

Meeting schedule and agenda planning

e Schedule meeting dates and provisional agenda one year in
advance, in line with the annual corporate planning and reporting
cycle, particularly for items requiring Board approval.

e Coordinate the Board and committee meetings to pursue the
strategic goals altogether and reflect on the forward meeting plans.

e Reallocate the Board's time between strategy, operational
performance and governance and compliance matters according
to the Board priorities changing over time.

e |nclude outward and forward looking agenda items for the Board
to chart the course ahead, encourage interactions and insights.

Board paper preparation

e Search for broad-based information that is most relevant and
valuable to the current decision or action that need to be taken
by the Board.

e Being concise and focused on priorities, objective and the
analytics based on facts.

e Set out relevant considerations and implications in the meeting
papers that the Board should be aware of.

e Make it clear on what action or input is needed from the Board.

e Distribute Board papers early enough for directors to consider
the matters thoroughly before the meetings.

e Provide access to the current and the past Board papers and
minutes record via Board meeting apps.
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Information updates between Board meetings
* Monthly updates include:
- Consolidated financial summary against budget
- Media reports about the economic trends, peers, industry,
consumer behaviour, etc.
- Corporate bulletin about our key events, milestones
or achievements
- A brief of matters arising from the monthly Executive
Committee meeting
e Quarterly updates on the operational performance with
management analysis.
e Half-yearly review of progress on the implementation of the
strategic plans.
e Knowledge about the future of our business and market,
emerging strategic, risk and governance issues, more details on
p.108 about the “continuing professional development”.

The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, primarily the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance and the Securities and Futures Ordinance; and for
developing, reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance, the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to directors and employees.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company's corporate governance practices are discussed in
this “Corporate Governance Report”. During the year ended
31 March 2021, the Company was in full compliance with all
applicable principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

Model Code and relevant employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding the securities
transactions by all the directors and those employees who are
likely to come across inside information because of their duties.
Having made specific enquiry of all our directors and relevant
employees, they confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct during FY2021.
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Inside information disclosure

The Company has established its policy for inside information
disclosures as well as its internal controls on the reporting and
monitoring systems.

Formal escalation path of material information

e Material matters concerning the business, finance and
operations are escalated to the Executive Committee in a timely
manner for them to judge whether inside information exists and
an announcement is required.

e |nvestor Relations and Corporate Communications Department
assists the Board to monitor market signals, including investors'
feedback, share price movements, media and analyst reports,
etc. to see whether a material gap exists between the market
expectation and the Company's real situation.

Controls on the sources of information and the

communication channels

e |nformation used for investor meetings and conferences should be
consistent with published corporate announcements and reports.

e Only designated executive directors, the investor relations and
corporate communications team and authorised personnels are
authorised to speak to or hold meetings with investors or media
on behalf of the Company.

e Code of practices for investor communications:

- Set out a quiet period to refrain from investor relations
activities before results announcement

- Prepare scripts and Q&As to manage the information
released to the public

- Obtain approval from the Board on the results presentation materials

- Keep meeting or conference attendance notes and call logs
for future reference

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company and the Group. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Please see the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on p.157-165.
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Risk management and internal control

Risk is defined as a potential action, event or circumstance that
could impact the Company'’s ability, favourably or unfavourably, to
meet its strategic goals. The Group adopts a holistic risk
management and internal control framework to proactively manage
risks, in line with the commitment to deliver sustainable value. The
Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of our risk management and internal control systems.
Further details are included under the section headed “Risk
Management Report” on p.123-141 in this annual report.

Independence of external auditor

The Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
external auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of
the audit process. The external auditor may provide certain non-
audit services to the Group given that these do not involve any
management or decision making functions for and on behalf of the
Group; do not perform any self-assessments; and do not act in an
advocacy role for the Group and all approved non-audit services
shall be approved by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration of external auditor

During FY2021, the total fee paid / payable in relation to audit and
related services provided to the Group amounted to HK$12.9
million, of which a sum of HK$6.3 million was paid / payable to our
principal auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, and the remaining was
mainly paid / payable to other auditors performing audit work for
the Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China which were subject
to local statutory requirements. The remuneration paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for services
rendered is listed as follows:

B B E R0 A BB ES 4
REEERAEEANRBERALREERNENESE
BNHANZENEETE  EHHIBER - ARER
RE2NEAREEMAEZER  WEHREERR
BEHRGERAFEBENAE BERZEQCMALE
AEAPT BN LB B R AN AR B IR R AR AR o dE — FEE
BHEHAAFHRFE1232 141 A [RRERRE | —£7 -

IhER B EM B B I
ERZESCERAGHIINBRBE N ZEIZF LM
B BEIERMA RN - SNEDE A0 AT ) AR 2
HETHBEZRY  REARZEMB L RAEEK
REAEBNEAERIOREREE - TETEMBERK
e BYAHAKEETESNAE  MAEIE
HSEEZIRGEMERR B SHE -

I EREZ B AT A BN =

AEER2021 RFRBLEEZLBBRBCA/ E
NERBBE/I1I29BEEBT  HHEN/ BNEEX
AN ZE RRICE B ETEIEEPT6.3 B BB - SRR AIE
ERLAR R R B AN E R RRM AR BRETHE
BITIEEAY/ A E MR - RERERBENER
BB EBHMREBBARNBMSHINT

FY2020 FY2021

Types of services HK$°000 HK$’000
PR 75 3 B FTER FERT
Audit and related services™ iz RAEBRE O 6,161 6,287
Non-audit services? e LR @ 2,176 2,078
8,337 8,365

(1) Audit related services comprise review services on interim results, continuing connected
transactions and preliminary announcement and tax compliance service.

(2)  Non-audit services comprise primarily IT related services provided to the Group. None of these
services provided compromises the independence as auditor, in terms of the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and were
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
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Area of focus

Purpose and approach

Information source

BRERE BEFA R &R RR
Board process e Get the right information for the Board, and make the best use of its time e Survey
EEQRF REZGWEARAN  TEAERR SESHIES

Obtain feedbacks for the company secretary to improve on the information
support, meeting agenda setting and time allocation
ARFWERENREER URNSEAMIE X3RRI ERKESE
Comprehensive review to be carried out when there are major changes in
strategy and risk landscape, or Board composition

ERBEFERMKRN HEFSEMHIRRAEHRETEER

Ongoing review based on observation and feedback for the last meeting
EREF—REHNBENREERFERS

Board structure

Appropriate allocation of responsibilities between the Board and various board e Benchmarking

EEGEE committees to oversee all critical areas of governance $HIZH TR
FEFENEEEZE Q@ RRENDRERE  UEBEMBEBERNE CHE
¢ \Well-defined delegation and reporting obligation between the Board and the management
PRATESEHERE MNRERRSEEE
e Annual review by the Nomination Committee
HIREZEE8F R
Board composition e Appropriate board mix of competency and diversity of perspectives in order to e Survey
EEGHEK achieve the Company's long-term goal and strategy BESHES
EXSAEMENTMZTERANK  UERKAEER R B EMKRE e Benchmarking
e Annual review by the Nomination Committee YHZRT 5T

miREZEEEFRs

Director performance

BERR

Performance of executive directors in the achievement of strategic goals, o
performance targets and financial returns

WITESEEEMERRB T BREEMTEERKE

INEDs' time commitment, contribution and independence

B IEMITESHNRERA - BB

Annual review by the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee

mEFHEZEeNERZ e gFme

Benchmarking
$1ZE R

Director development
BEEER

Continuously refresh the knowledge and vision of directors to make sure that
they stay ahead in the changing environment and challenges in the market
RHEENESEMNARNRE  BRETHESSNRBENMBkEFT T TEE

Review the knowledge needs of directors and design appropriate training programmes
BN EZHANBEZMNREERNEIFE

Annual review by the Nomination Committee

HRREZESTFRE

Survey
HESHES

Board leadership and
strategies
ERGMEEENN
K

INEDs' feedback
B IERITERNRE
ER

Private session held at least once a year between INEDs and chairman of o
the Board

BURITESREEETRIFHRIBIT—AHAMIEE

Open agenda discussion on matters of concern of the Group
HAREEBETEEETIHRBZEREN R

May cover a wide range of topics, such as the Group’s strategies, leadership

of the Board, performance of the management, etc.

REEZOEE  GINASENRE EFS0NEEE)  ERENKESE
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS

We adhere to the principle of providing timely, transparent and
effective disclosures with the aim of keeping the market
regularly informed of the Group’s performance and prospects.
Investors often give us constructive ideas that inspire us to
improve and create more values for shareholders. While we try
to understand investors’ perspective, we also share with them a
full picture of our business through the eyes of the management,
including our thoughts in making decisions, our views on market
outlook and our development strategies, etc. Our Investor
Relations team is committed to maintaining an open and
constructive dialogue with them.

To promote the Group's reputation and branding, our Corporate
Communications team helps convey corporate messages
efficiently to a wide range of stakeholders including investors
and media.

Under the disruption of the unprecedented pandemic during the
year, we have never halted in engaging our stakeholders but
shifted our communication to a virtual environment.

In FY2021, the Group received various accolades in recognition
of our relentless effort in corporate governance and investor
relations. Please refer to Major Awards and Recognitions on
p.6-11.
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Meetings by investor event in FY2021
2021 B EE SR (R EETHNE)

10%

24%

—

Meeting and conference call
AHERBESHE

—

Investor conference
REEMTE

—

Non-deal roadshow
FRF A

66%

Major investor conferences that we participated in FY2021 are set
out below:

August 2020
20204%8A
W,
N 7
N\ /////
~
2
Nomura Virtual é September 2020
China Investor — 2020%9A
Forum 2020 §
BB EEHRNE <
S
\\\\ th
7 \\\\\\ CITIC CLSA 27t
TN Investors' Forum

hERERREEMTS

Jefferies Asia Forum
HEWREEMTE

ICBCI Consumer
Corporate Day
TRBER IR E E el &

Annual Report 2021

2021 £

Summary of investor relations activities in FY2021

2021 MBI EEREERAFZEEHRE

214 86%

One-on-one and group meetings  C-level participation rate'”
Y- REREE BEERESEED

13 6

Non-deal roadshows Investor conferences

R Z R REEWHE

(1) Ininvestor conference and non-deal roadshow meetings

REEEERN G RIFZDERD NG R

R2021 RFEZEOAEEEGH -

January 2021
2021%1A

BofA 2021 Asia Gaming;
Lodging & Tourism
Corporate Day
EREEEMTE

Goldman Sachs Greater
China Corporate Day
SRITEE S
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Multiple channels of communication and engagement

Press and analyst
results conferences '
RERDITERMGE TN

Corporate reporting
bEHE

Hold press and analyst conferences
on interim and annual results
annually. Under the pandemic,
events were conducted through
live webcast instead of physical
meeting during the year
Announcements, presentations
and webcasts are available on the
Group website
BERITPHREFEENRE DT
BREME - MRIEVET - FRRITHHE
MEUNBEERRRE SR
FEHAE - HHRAERE S REEEEL

Announcements, annual and
interim reports, results
presentations and press releases
Quarterly voluntary announcements
of key operational data

NE S RERFERE - EFEBRAE
e

EEEUNGESEEIES T § ¢

Governance
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Annual general
meeting (“"AGM")
RRBERSE

Group website =

SEHG

%IIII

Maintained face-to-face
communication with shareholders
in 2020, under precautionary
measures

The Board and external auditors
presented to answer the questions
raised by shareholders

Detailed explanation for each
proposed resolution in the circular,
with high approval rate on
resolutions passed

BEHETERHERE T - 4R EAIRTE 2020
FRRBFRGNRG N
BEE MIMNEZEED L E & A E A
R
PSR E uﬁ%ﬁllﬁﬁﬁin’%
iSE S

S £

Updates after results and quarterly
announcements, and regular
updates of corporate activities
Enriched content to demonstrate
the Group's business initiatives

BERNTREERTEAERES - I
BEEREEEDES
LENHENTURTEB N EBEE

SRENBEHEEE

Investor meetings,
conferences and

non-deal roadshows N\

)
REESS WS "
MIFRZ R

e Stayed connected with investors

around the world through virtual
events in FY2021

Executive directors responsible for
different business areas attended
meetings to address investors’ concerns

72021 B B4R BB R AR LB B Bt R
BHHEEERFHE
BETREBHRENNITEEHRER
NEEIREHENRIEEH

Active engagement
with analysts
DITENE

Electronic
communication

17 research analysts cover our
Company on a regular basis

172 FHHFRE
xWmE

DI 8RN E B

#a
Email alert service
Email to Investor Relations and
Corporate Communications team:

r@chowtaifook.com (for investors);
media@chowtaifook.com (for media)

BB RS
REEBRRCESEMEBNE HED
ir@chowtaifook.com (&%) ;

media@chowtaifook.com (&)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXBHEEERRAA


mailto:ir@chowtaifook.com
mailto:media@chowtaifook.com
mailto:ir@chowtaifook.com
mailto:media@chowtaifook.com

Shareholder(s) are entitled by the Articles and are also encouraged
to participate in the Company's general meetings or appoint
proxies to attend and vote.

Request to convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the Company's paid-
up capital may request the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and put forward proposals. The objectives of the
meeting must be stated in the related requisition signed and
deposited with our company secretary at the Company's
headquarters at 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

Nomination of director for election

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must
be stated in a nomination notice signed by such shareholder and
deposited together with a notice of willingness signed by the
candidate to our company secretary at the Company's
headquarters or at our Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar (Tricor
Investor Services Ltd., Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Hong Kong) of the Company. The notice should be
given at least seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Making enquiries
e Email to Investor Relations and Corporate Communications
Department and the Board at ir@chowtaifook.com.

Dividend policy

e Strikes a balance between making an efficient use of capital to
strengthen our business development and rewarding our
shareholders with a participation in the Company’s profits.

¢ No pre-determined dividend payout ratio.

e Factors considered by the Board in determining the amount and
form of dividend:
- the Group's cash flows and financial position
- its earnings capacity and the economic outlook
- its business development plans and capital requirements etc.

e Usually declares dividends twice a year, in the absence of
special circumstances.
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Full year dividend payout ratio

E2ERBED

For the year ended 31 March
HZEIA3THLEE

90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%

0.0%

—o—
Full year dividend payout ratio
2EREE

2017 2018 2019 2020

(1) Special dividend excluded

Constitutional documents

No change during the year.

Market capitalisation

Approximately HK$118.8 billion as at 31 March 2021 (31 March
2020: HK$54.9 billion), based on the total number of
10,000,000,000 issued shares and the closing price of
HK$11.88 per share.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, the prescribed public
float of not less than 10.7% has been maintained, which is a lower
minimum percentage of public float accepted at the discretion of the
Stock Exchange. On the basis that Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
held approximately 72.4% of the total issued shares in the
Company (as shown in the disclosure of interests on the Stock
Exchange’s website as at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report), the public float amounted to not more
than approximately 27.6% of the total number of issued shares in
the Company.

Governance

RN
‘BoA

2021

(1) TERESIES

HEEEXH
F NI EAERE) -

miE

M202163A31E - BARABEHTRHD A H#
10,000,000,000 A% LA 2 R Y T B 11.88 B Tt & -
#/1,18818%8 70 (202093 A 31 H : 549E&TT) o

EEMARFRE
RAFRAEFENFERATELY  BREBEARAERE
AHEREREEZMN  ARRMEBB MG E
MOBEZIABEREEDSETLN10.7% ° 1%
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited B A2 &2 %178
MHEBAT2.4% s B (A FRT) R RE AT AH
RO ESERNR)  ARBFRETBBA
NAEEITRNDBEL27.6% °

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAXEHREEEER AR



RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Board acknowledges the importance of adequate and effective
risk management and internal control systems which assist them
in understanding the Group's risk profile, allocating resources to
manage key risks and making risk-reward optimised business
decisions for business planning.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT (“ERM”)
FRAMEWORK

ERM is a much-needed core competency and essential tool that
helps the Group continually creates, sustains, and delivers
stakeholder value. We believe a structured approach and
framework around ERM-related processes and governance are
critical to the success of our ERM. During the year, we have
refined our ERM framework which is tailored to the circumstances
and business context of the Group. Our ERM framework comprises

the following elements:

JB, B E PH e S

BExerfine  AUANEAREERABEZERGZ
E2U ZEERGEPDMMAFRARENRERRMR -
DEERNEEIZRARNURBEBRIELELR
o B [o] R 1) 2 PR SK o

EREREEELR

TtERREEE - BUFENZLOEINIETA A
BYAREETE R ERIE B MEREE - &M
BE - ReXRBREZABREMERTE  BRER
MTEMERDEERRERKINMER - FR -
MERTSCERBERER  ZERDRERNEEN
BRAMEBESESE - BRPINDERRAREEER
A TERER

Business
Objective and
Strategy Setting
@ spem @
Risk ISR BE Il E Risk
Capability Identification
Building ER v A
R ETR
REIREE ERM Framework
Oversight
Risk Culture & Risk Strategy
Risk Governance Model
Emergency ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ;ﬂ%g Risk
Preparedness [R\f S/ EL L o S R Evaluation

= % f& %=

Effectiveness
and Performance
Tracking
JX AT
B
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ERM FRAMEWORK OVERSIGHT tXREBEBEREE

Our risk culture and risk strategy provide the overall direction and BRI E R M E R R REH XA R EIREE
objectives of ERM to promote a common understanding and FRMEEZ REAEBRNIPEULERGEIENILR
consistent ERM practices within the Group. Our ERM objectives: BRMEMERE RANCERKREEBEZWOT -

e Balance business risks and returns and support risk-based o FEEBREMRFECIR - SHFAR BTG AEMEARE -

decision-making.

e Facilitate the achievements of the Group's strategic goals o HBMBEFBIARNEBMEE  BHAEEEKK

through better identification of future opportunities and threats. BE 14 B A% o
e Develop a common understanding of risk across different o TRIMEBEELIPT 2 MEK YRR L EIRER -
business functions to manage risk cost-effectively on an IWERCEEMETHARAMENERLEIE -

enterprise-wide basis.

e Commit to integrity, business ethics, and legal compliance. o BORWGE  BEBERMETER -

We recognise a strong risk culture are shaped by leadership, effective %iﬂ”j ' [@) %TLE’] R LT REER S BRER -

communication, and proper policies and standards. We have EIRERMAERIBIEMmA o B RPIHEUA T E4E -
therefore adopted the following practices to sustain our risk culture: iﬁ“%*)?xziﬁz Ay R B2 b, -
Leadership Involve operational risk management topics in business plans and business meeting agenda

HERE

REBEBHEANEREZEREPREEEAREREHE
Review and validate the ERM Framework regularly and lead by example to demonstrate the right

tone at the top
TEHESNRBLERMBEIZER - WAFER - RV EEORKREREER

Internal communication

AEREE

Conduct workshops and issue regular information letters to promote the risk culture
BRI E B MAE R EERER XY

Set clear escalation procedure for reporting risk issues

RS = I E A ERE T

Set up grievance and Whlstleblowing channels for our staff to report suspected fraud and misconduct
BETIRVHAFRBHREE  UWEEREREERTETA

Policies and standards
BUERFZER|

Establish Code of Conduct, Anti-Fraud Policy, Anti-Money Laundering Policy, Best Practice
Principle, and Purchasing Policy to reinforce our expected ethical values and conduct
HIE AR ERFR] - REBHEBER - ROABBSR - RENETRIRERBEESK @ LSt L PITE RS = EE MR

More details of our corporate culture are included under the EZBERBMEEXEHNFE  SREFAKERS
"Intellectual capital and corporate culture" section in the Managing FERNEFR[ENERAPE] —FF o

Directors' Report on p.32.
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Risk governance model

Our risk governance model is designed to assist the Board of
Directors and Board Committees to carry out ongoing oversight
and monitoring on the effectiveness of our ERM system. The
model defines clear risk roles and structure to reinforce the risk-
related accountability and transparency across the Group.

We believe a well-coordinated and integrated collection of all the
resources and expertise necessary to support the governance,
assurance of performance, risk, and compliance activities is critical
for the Group to meet its business objectives in the ever-changing
business environment and regulatory landscape. For this reason,
we have established the Governance, Risk, and Compliance
(“GRC") Working Group to coordinate the diversified resources
that were once scattered within various risk monitoring units. This
unified unit enables us to adopt an integrated approach to manage
and enhance GRC activities.

Board of Directors

=
=

T Report &

Executive Committee
BITEEE

T Report &5

Group Risk Management Committee (“"GRMC”)
EEEGEREEE

Report ¥ &

T Report &

Governance, Risk, and Compliance ("GRC"”) Working Group &34 - Bl R &8 TE/hE

B E G
RMRRE AR S ERYEFENEEEEGH
BEENERRMALEAREERANMK - RHL
SISTARRM A ABAERE - U NAAEEEERRE
EAEBNEERERE -

BIPEGE - BRBREBRENGE WEER  ARRE
EBRANSREDMENTEERMEEMD AL
BETHBENERRENEERFTPEREB AR
EHEZ - Bt BMERZER RARRAMRIIE
M ABEREIBRERERBREREMNZ TILE

R b — B ERPIERRIGA AT RN
BER  AREAHRIEH -

T Assurance {R:&

Audit Committee
BEREEE

A
J

-

First Line of Defenc?

Second Line of Defence
E—E4E E-ES
Facilitation Finance & |
Risk Owners B Governance Exg;:f?:;ve
EERIEE Centre ("FGC”) FTEER
MBEaPil
\_ / L

Third Line of Defence
E=EpE

Group Policies Internal Whistleblowing
and Controls Audit System
KREHERE PERE X ELER I

%
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Roles
AR

Responsibilities
BE

Board of Directors
EE

Evaluate and determine the Group's risk appetite in achieving its strategic objectives
FE R EE R EEN KRS B IZRNERAZE

Ensure that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems

MREBE R LGRS E LA RN RRERE RN EEIE RS

Review the adequacy & effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems

BT R IR R RS IR R 2 TR M R B R

Executive Committee
HITEESE

Review the risk and control issues regularly

FEHmA R REEEE

Suggest the priority of risk management efforts at the Group level
REREARARERELATRLES

Drive risk-conscious culture and promote control environment

HEBD RS B R S A R TH B IR IR

Audit Committee
BENEEE

Oversee the internal audit function and the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems on behalf of the Board
REEZGEENIETBERRAREERABPEE RG22 T ERE R

Group Risk Management Committee
("GRMC")
SERKEEZEY

Maintain the ERM framework and drive improvement for the processes
wELCERRERER  R#ESRENLE

Monitor the implementation of risk management plans and oversee the effectiveness
of process controls
EREAKREENENETIER

BB BRI

First Line of Defence — Risk Owners
F—ER — BRAES

Manage, monitor, and report key risks in line with applicable policies and procedures
BEEANBERTRZ T - B2 - BERMREERER

Accountable for the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control
HAREZEsTRERAERMEES

Second Line of Defence — Finance &
Governance Centre, Executive Office,
and Group Policies & Controls
F_EMR — MBERFL
MEBHEES

1T AP

Support GRMC on the risk and control functions
SRHEERKREEZECRITRR R ET B

Establish, refine and monitor critical group policies, procedures, and standards to
reinforce risk management and internal control systems

FIE - HEREREENBRICE - 125 RER - Ut ERERE KA SERE RS

Third Line of Defence — Internal Audit
and Whistleblowing System
FE=BMR — NEE R RS

Internal Audit — Validate the effectiveness of risk controls through internal audit and
identify improvement opportunities as appropriate

NHEZ — BRNTEZBRERREENE R - WS ENSE#E
Whistleblowing Officers — Manage and investigate misconduct and fraud cases, and
review the effectiveness of remedial actions

BREE —EHRASTETARERREG  WRITHBITEIRNKR

Governance, Risk, and Compliance
("GRC") Working Group
e B ke RIENE

Provide guidance and support to risk owners to manage and enhance GRC activities
mERAEERMIESINZE  UERWNRES  RBRANEHES

Coordinate and monitor GRC activities

AT ERER BB REREH

Governance
A
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1.BUSINESS OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGY 1. %% B R TR § E
SETTING

Risks are inherent in our business activities and can relate to BMEBESFEEARRE - EalgeERIE RS
strategic goals and business performance. We aim at integrating MEEFB - RMECHRREERARERSIME
risk management into the strategic planning and monitoring R UMmEXBEMZENRE -

process, resulting in a practical and continuous process.

e The Executive Committee establishes business objectives and strategies to
achieve performance targets and strategic goals endorsed by the Board

i HTERRHIT R E TR R EERRTNE KRB LR R
and strategies
setting e These objectives and strategies are cascaded to our operational units through
I 5B R FREE broad-based engagement activities, ensuring alignment across the Group
< BIBEZEEES  HZEEENRREERLESA URREESENBZE
\ e Operational units are responsible for identifying the internal and external issues
opg:)sr';::ifies and evgnts affecting our ability to achieve estabEshed f)bjectives and strategies
 Aentificinaa BB A FHAI SRR B AR AR R A R
Sk T L P B 3B
e The GRC Working Group assists and facilitates the risk identification process
ER B KA R TR NE B BRI (R E R 38 Bl A2
v
e GRMC assesses the identified risks and opportunities and sets the
reasonable expectation on the amount of risk of achieving such business
objectives and strategies
Risk SEERERE S T HATH MR EME - I ¥ WSS B SRR
review and BESIESIEER
evaluation
B B AR £ e The possibility of the strategy not aligning with the Group’s objectives and
the implications from the strategy chosen will also be evaluated at this stage
TE ULt P ER TS AT Ak SRS B 45 ) B AR T A A AT RR 1 I TSR SRR 2 2
\ 4
e Operational units are accountable for executing the chosen strategies
BB BB RITATE R
Strategy execution e The Executive Committee reviews and monitors the progress of strategy
and monitoring implementation and risk mitigation through monthly meetings
REGRITRESR HITEERRATARABENERE HEMRARREY 08 E
e Management Committees are set up to supervise the attainment of the Group's
objectives for relevant areas, such as business innovation and transformation,
intellectual capital enhancement, brand positioning, and marketing strategy
KRAUEREZEEG BEASEESHRREEEENIER  fINEKAIFTFEE 8 ER
TR AR TE LTI H SR A
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2.RISK IDENTIFICATION 2. 2 P ct Bl

Precise risk identification allows us to manage the risk inventory B RESERMEEE AN EIRERGEE W T
more effectively and understand its relationship with the business PREBZMEEE  BRMERBRMNBRE -
strategies, objectives, and performance.

Risk identification framework | B 55 Bl 4E 22

RISK IDENTIFICATION PURPOSE [ &% RI B &Y

T

s \\\ \\ \\\\\\\ ///// /////
S \\ \\\\\\\\\\ Hl i u/lll// //

////////

Woriahons

Internal Risks Emerging Risks ESG-related Risks
AR R AFEBRERRE

\ | )

v

RISK INVENTORY CATEGORIES
PR

g e

* More details of our stakeholder engagement activities are included in our Sustainability Report

BNESETDNEEFE BRTHERRRS

1 28 Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ARBHREEEERAA



Diversified risk
identification channels

ZRACH R BIRE

To ensure the completeness of our risk inventory, we have established diversified risk identification
channels to identify internal, emerging, and changing risks that might affect the achievement of
our business objectives and strategies
REREARBENTEN  RMELZHANERMIIRE
P~ FTEA T E LR R R

C ABBI R RE R BIE AT B RN A A

Portfolio view of risks
E kA SE

To ensure we are well-positioned to determine whether the residual risk profile aligns with the
overall risk appetite, our risk inventory is categorised to facilitate the formation of a portfolio view
of risk, allowing us to consider the type, severity, and interdependencies of common risks
collectively
REREMEAVGTERARBRMKARTREERNERAIE - KIEER
B ERM-EEARNERER  REREMEERE -

R RBAA

Risk inventory
management
Bk EEEE

The GRC Working Group will perform a periodic review on the risk inventory to ensure the existing
risks are still applicable and relevant and also identify the changes to the existing risks

Bl RBEEHAIENMNEGEHERRKSE - URRREARRMDABERAMAE - LHAIRE R
i*ﬁ/(t

Our risk inventory is also informed by the results of internal risk assessments and risk assurance

works, as well as insights from various industry sources

B ERBET2ZENMEARTEMERES TENER - URKASERALHRE

To ensure our ERM Framework incorporates the evolving risk landscape appropriately, our risk
inventory also addresses hot topics in risk management like ESG-related risks and

cybersecurity risks
AEREMAOLERREREREE HRMATEHZCNRRAMN - B REREE
HPIEE - PN RHEERERINBELTZRAR

EINE S R R E A
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3.RISK EVALUATION 3. B Bt it

The risk evaluation framework enables us to understand the BB HIEREHRMTHERAR ZEAETENEER
interdependencies that may exist among risks and to inform the R WARIZERREWEHBIREMKE -
selection of risk response.

Risk evaluation framework [& B 5T & HE 22

RISK EVALUATION PURPOSE & [Tt EEY

e \\‘\\\\\\\ ‘u |l| i
\u I

e \\\\\\\\\\\\ \\\\\ [ i ///////////////////’///'

SIS Z
RISK EVALUATION METHODOLOGIES & TOOLS E&:F A ER TR
( )
Qualitative Assessment Quantitative Assessment
EMFE TR EEBFETE

\Hll)l'l]fl'l!

\‘\I A

‘“[.
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Holistic risk assessment
2 EN R

The severity of risks is assessed at multiple levels by risk owners, GRC Working Group, and GRMC
to ensure comprehensive risk assessment

REREEE - ER - ARRERIFNMNMIESERREEZESHZABET HRAKRNREN - AR
2EH R TG

Risk owners in operational units are responsible to assess the risks individually at least once a year
and the operational assessment result will be escalated to the GRC Working Group for entity level
assessment

EEBUMERAEEEEELEFEMTERAR —R  UHEETHER LRER  BREEHRIE
NEEITT R EE AT

The focus of the entity level assessment is to assess the risk interaction, in which the GRC
Working Group will consider those severe risks identified at the operational level and group
common risks across operational units and assess the risk level collectively
ERENENERETHER B‘HEEFW? HpgEn  ERRERIENEEELZSESEREEH
AR BRERR - Wi ESEEMMERRBR DM - —GFHE R R KRR

The final assessment result is depicted on the business objective heat map, which will be
reviewed by GRMC
RETEAEREERNEEBRRRRANE  THEERAREREZESSE
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4. RISK MITIGATION AND CONTROL

The risk mitigation and internal control framework deals primarily
with risk reduction. The structure of our risk mitigation and control
framework is informed by principles outlined by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission's
("COSO") integrated framework for effective internal controls.

Risk mitigation and control framework

4. [ Bz FE 4 F0 4%

R EEMAMEZERNFZENRBEERR - &
P98 2 B FE % RN BS 4% AE 22 48 48 2 B8 T Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission ([COSOJ) 2 M EPES IR 4R & HE R &Y R Al
Hl5E °

[ P PR e i 42 1) HE 20

RISK MITIGATION PURPOSE [E[&FE¥BE

Reduce the likelihood or impact of the risk
KRR AR R S HL 2

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM ApEsiE 4t

q A
CONTROL ENVIRONMENT CONTROL INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION
EHIRIRE AERERER
Commitment to integrity Risk Quality Internal External
and ethical values Governance Model Information Communication. Communication
EFHiEREEER Bk ERER BEME AEBEE IhERE R
CONTROL ACTIVITIES Ei=igs)

Preventive Detective Corrective

Controls Controls Controls

FEBA M T BRI M FE AR R

L |

)

INTERNAL CONTROL ASSESSMENT pMfpEsi=atid

Internal Audit

independent assessment
A EREE B L AT 1

Operational units
self-assessment
EiEE NN BEETE
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Strong control .
environment

RAEEHRE

Promote honesty and integrity among our staff on a day-to-day basis
ERBEERE TEENE RAEXE

Foster an environment in which our people are knowledgeable and committed to carrying out

internal control across the Group
EERBTARU BN BAEEEFHETADEETENRE

Put into place policies and standards, such as Anti-Fraud Policy, Code of Conduct, Anti-Money

Laundering Policy, to enhance our commitment to integrity and ethical values
i R EEBIR - i BT RIR SO B BUR SRR EAER - FEUA N5 T fFI8 a1 R R B E R AGa

Effective risk & control
communication

BNERREEEE

Quality information — We adopt data analytics techniques to convert data to information in order

to identify control weakness and evaluate the effectiveness of risk responses

BEAE — RARBEEOM M - BERECRENR - SASR B2 5510 5F 4 2 8 5 #O B

Internal communication — We adopt both top-down and bottom-up approaches to ensure
management and risk owners are aware of risks that fall into their area of responsibility and risk
responses are consistently implemented. Top-down communication includes regular training and
town hall meetings. Bottom-up communication includes monthly Executive Committee meetings
and quarterly GRMC meetings

WEDERE — HRAERIE i TAEB Tm R8I E - BREREEMNRRAEE MELBESHEARNNRER
WHEREHMETERELERRE -8 LM TREREEEREIN2ESRE B TH ENERBREEAN
WITZESERNEFTENSERREREZESSR

External communication — \We perform risk assessments, scans, and surveys with external risk
experts to identify external events that might affect the achievement of the Group's objectives
HNERE B — AN R R B ST R T - BB - R e S ERALE B EN NI
=4

Internal control °
assessment

BB BE R A

Operational units are responsible to perform an annual self-assessment to assess their

performance in promoting effective control practices
EEBNEENTEEARNG U EAEREANELZERE T ENERER

Internal audit is responsible to perform independent assessments of key control activities to

ensure compliance and conformity of internal control to pre-determined standards
NEPFEIZ B BB T EERERES  URRAIEERTE LETEEZE

Annual Report 2021
2021 5%

Risk Management Report
[R\ b E R

133



134

FY2021 PRINCIPAL RISKS

Through the application of the above business and strategy setting,
identification, evaluation, and mitigation and control framework, we
have identified and responded to the following principal risks in
FY2021:

2021 BA B B+ E 3 b
EBER F I ES N REEEIE - A R R EE A
RHEIELR  BFIR 2021 T EEH#HB T O EATTE
LB :

Business objectives: Strengthen our revenue stream

XBEE: IEA N
Risk

Business strategies Risks Controls & mitigation trend
EoE - ¥4 ERREHEE Rz
Leverage franchisee Risk of poor franchisee ® Appoint dedicated teams to nurture relationship with 4p
model to deepen management franchisees and retail partners through continuous dialogues
market penetration IEmEE R ENRR ZREEEGSRANEBRTERHFEHEEREBBR
ZRmEEER - LUR e Establish clear selection and assessment policy and
b5 BER mechanism

AT SL)E T PR RO ATk BUR AN

e Reinforce our monitoring on franchisees through

whistleblowing system and special audit programme in

franchised POS

PR R R NB TSR R X8 IR RN E

B EMER
Adopt smart retail Risk of poor customer e Make better use of smart tools and data to evaluate A
strategy to provide experience of the smart customer satisfaction on our products and services
customers with a new retail initiatives EREETIANSBATHETEERNREHMERE
shopping experience BETELHEEEER/KE o Enhance customer relationship management to retain the
with warmth and speed 792 g loyalty of our customers
RABETERK R MEERREER  WESBERNENE
FRHAREMEENS
MEYER
Invest in innovative Risk of investment loss e Perform pre-investment risk and return analysis A
projects to optimise wEERNER HETTIZE AR R AN B AT
brand competitiveness e Appoint Reform and Development Committee to supervise
RERBIFIER - B the effectiveness of the innovative projects
mhEEE N ZRNERERZ B EBAIFIER MK
Offer curated retail Risk of intellectual e Establish the Intellectual Property Management System to A
experiences to enrich property (“IP") facilitate the registration and management of our IP rights

our product offerings
and differentiation

RHSEAHEENT
E8%  UEEHMY
EmEeMEMEREME

infringement
R0 SR EE R 11 R B

BRUMBEREERS  UWEEMMEENGER

Monitor and analyse the actual or possible infringement
cases of our IP rights

BRI BB Sk Al BRI A E R R

Provide regular training for our staff to raise their awareness
of the protection of IP rights

AETRETEMEY - EiRSE THRENZEENEF

A Risk level increased during FY2021
2021 B E R ERKFE EF

Governance
[N
(E=)

< pRisk level remained broadly the same as FY2020 W Risk level decreased during FY2021
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Business objectives:

Enhance our operational efficiency

EBEE: TR E MR

Risk
Business strategies Risks Controls & mitigation trend
EBER R B% ECHE R FE R RS
Maintain sound Risk of underperformed e Establish the Supplier Management Framework <4

supplier management

HRRITHIERER

suppliers
HpE R RIB AR NI AR E

R EREIRAELR

e Appoint Supplier Management Committee and the Supplier
Management Department to govern the effectiveness of our
controls over the procurement process
ZREEEEEZENEEREENMN  SEEEHEBRRE
HlFE R A R

e Establish the Supplier Management System to track the

performance of our suppliers
BALMEREIE R RAEM R RIR

Invest in technology
solutions

BENBHARR TR

Risk of technology
disruption or cyber threats
RHE FE R PEEEEORR

e Develop and roll out the cyber incident response plan 4>

Il E W HETTAS 4R IR E ETETE)

e Conduct regular cyberattack drills, rehearsal and system
penetration tests
TEHEITRA RS  MERRHFEZE AR

e Provide regular and tailored cybersecurity training for

our staff
7 HAm B TIRHE Bl M@ L 2553

A Risk level increased during FY2021

2021 B R E AL
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Business objectives: Uphold corporate values and ethical business practices

EBER: HECEEENIEEEEEN
Risk

Business strategies Risks Controls & mitigation trend
EBRRE R B% ERREHERE Rz
Foster a culture of Unethical employee e Launch a culture enhancement programme to uphold and <>
ethics and integrity in behaviours fortify culture of integrity of all employees
workplace TERNAETAR MR A 8 - AR E RS 8 TRREX
TS AERERN e Assess employees’ attributes and behaviours against the
AEXAE ethical principles

B EERAFEE TRERNTA

e Putinto place policies and standards, such as Anti-Fraud

Policy and Code of Conduct to reinforce the Group’s ethical

values

IR AR - PN BRBR ML AETR] - RN EER

BlREE
Satisfy all compliance Non-compliance of the e Establish the AML governance framework A
obligation Anti-Money Laundering N GBI AIELE
FENEAMEMT ("AML") regulation e Appoint money laundering reporting officers (“MLROs") to

BREOREER oversee our AML controls
ZAERGEERFTEEREEEITEE
e Provide ongoing AML training for MLROs and general staff

MRS R E TR —MRE TRHEFEE
Maintain business Risk of unethical e Comply with the Kimberley Process to assure customers A
ethics and social procurement that our diamonds are “conflict-free”
responsibility B KRR R WREEFRROER - AEERERMNOEE A [TEze]
R RBR K e Introduce T MARK diamond ingredient brand to enhance the

HeEaEF .
supply chain transparency

HEHT MARKEA R £ @ - RS R ERERE

A Risk level increased during FY2021 <@ pRisk level remained broadly the same as FY2020 W Risk level decreased during FY2021

2021 BA AR 2 M ELBR K BT B2 2020 B IR F E B Rk FARE 2021 BABUF 2 A ELBROK S T R
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5. EFFECTIVENESS AND PERFORMANCE
TRACKING

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee oversees the internal
audit function and reviews the adequacy and continued
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board and the Audit Committee acknowledge that
our risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

To support the effective review, GRMC, Internal Audit, and
Whistleblowing Officers will capture and align information at a level
that is consistent with Audit Committee’s oversight responsibilities
and use standard templates to support consistent presentation and
structure of information over time. The people, process, and tools
used to enable the review of the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control system is illustrated below:

Process used to review our risk management
and internal control system and the
effectiveness of the internal audit function

Boa rd4of Directors
34

5. ;% 3% 0 2R 1R 36 B

EVZESNRRES L ENMETBE e &R
EBREERANFEERRARETRARFTEAR -EF
ERERZESRA  RREELRAREERREE
EEMIEERREERSREBEENOAR - AR
ERTEAEERNAERAKBRIELSEMIERY
HREE o

RIZFERNERY  SEAREEZES  NIHE
ERAREENERERZESRERE —BNER
WERBEEHN IEARENHRSER  REEH
20 LB — BT o TE A mE E R IE & AR
ERRGRBATANAR - BFRTA:

et EEEERABEERERABE
stERERA MR AREF

Report on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system

BEREENAEERASNERME RS

@ 3 times or more per year

SEIRFUE
\

Audit Committee
EREEE

Report on cases of misconduct

N and fraudulent behaviour

RAETAMBRTAERFHERS
@ 3 times or more per year

Report on significant audit
_findings and control deficiencies
REREZERMEERE ZBIEHRE

@ 3 times or more per year

Report on principal risks and
corresponding risk responses
REZREAAERRERELRE
@ 3 times or more per year

SEIRFUE BEIRFUE SEIRFUE
\ \ \
Whistleblowing Officers Internal Audit GRMC
Hp=Es WERE fEEREEZSE

Report on scope ankd qgal‘ity’pf risk management practices
mEREEEENEENEEFEERE

Annually
© ﬁ‘iﬁ

Management in
operational units
EEs Vel
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Audit Committee e As part of the Audit Committee’s oversight responsibilities with regard to the effectiveness of the
BERERE internal audit function, the Audit Committee will:
EREZZEGHNIETREAUENEBEEN—8H  EXZEgH
— Review the annual audit plan
EHFEEZTE
— Receive periodic reports on the results of the Internal Audit's work
BEWEHEAREZITIEERN T BHRE
— Monitor management'’s responsiveness to the Internal Audit’s findings and recommendations
EREEBHNIEZAERNEZNE E
— Review the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, and training programmes of
the internal audit function

WA ARETBENER BITEEMSRARAEINFIRIENTRE

Internal Audit e Internal Audit plays a crucial role in monitoring the internal governance of the Group
R ERE ABEZEEEAEE A E S LB B RRANERS

e To provide an independent and objective assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, Internal Audit:
ARBEREEMADETRZASTTHMEZUREBIEENRE - NEZ
Has unfettered access to all necessary information, people, records, and outsourced operations
across the Group, focusing on reviewing the effectiveness of the governance, risk management,
and control processes that management has put into place
AR BREINER TERRNEEANMEMLENER - 28k EIHEEFENENUREEFAALR
S NEERIEEBHNTNER  RREEREERTZHU

— Adopts a risk-based approach, ensuring that key concerns and significant risks are considered within
the scope of the audit
EmRERER T BRAEZEENERIEZENEIFTENEAER

— Engages an independent consulting firm to assist the internal audit service to further strengthen the

flexibility and independence of the internal audit function
ZEBVERARWMANIEZRYG - & — P IRR I ERT R BIE A B 1T

GRMC ¢ GRMC assists the Board in fulfiling its oversight responsibilities with regard to the Group's risk appetite,

SEEREERSS the Group's ERM Framework, and the governance model that supports it
SERBREEZEeMPESERTEHEASERRARE AEECEXRREEERNI FHZIERNES
RARNEBESE

e As part of the GRMC's oversight responsibilities, GRMC will:
EREERRERZEGEBREN ) SERREREEZE K
Review and approve the significant risk management policies and associated frameworks
IR0 E B E KR e B R I AR A AR RAAE SR
— Review significant risk exposures and the steps that management has taken to identify, measure,
monitor, control, and report such exposures
BRAEARBRARERERHBAN - 52 - BR - EHIMIREH BE R FTEREA PR
— Review significant risk and compliance issues identified by the GRC Working Group, together with
management’s responses and follow-up to these reports
R ER  BREEHRIENEHBINERRBRMNEHET  AREEBHLERENDE EMBEEITE
— Review the scope of work of the GRC Working Group and its planned risk management and
compliance activities
EHER  BRERARIENMO TSR RERENRREEME R
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Frequency X &

Content A&

Audit Committee
Reports
ERZEERE

3 times or more
per year
BEIRIALE

Assurance on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal

control system
RSB R EIE RN EE R RS AR E LR E

Whistleblowing
Reports
BRHHIRE

3 times or more
per year
HEIRILA L

Cases of gross misconduct and fraudulent behaviour and the measures
undertaken by the management

BETE RERITRANER - URERERDEG

Anti-fraud culture building programme and training

SERC LA B R

Internal Audit
Reports
WEBFZ R &

3 times or more
per year
HEIRILAL

Significant audit findings and control deficiencies

BRHBEERMEIEHRER

Progress of remedial measures implemented by management

ER BRI THREE EEEE

Review on the effectiveness of the Group's processes for financial reporting

and compliance with prevailing regulations
B AR E BB S REIR T RIRRA RBITER S RIER

GRMC Reports

3 times or more

Principal risks identified at the corporate level and the related

SEEMREEZE] peryear mitigation measures
wE BEIRIAL BAZA 7B T 38 51 0 2 B R DA TR AR BB B 5
Review on the resources, staff qualifications and experience and training
programmes of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
EEEBER  NHEZRMBREBENER BTERRER - UREIIEE
Control self- Annually Scope and quality of the management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and the
assessment and FF

management
confirmation
ABEEEFTE
EEEEIE

internal control system

EREERELEERBARNTEZEZRGNGERE R

Management's compliance with applicable regulatory requirements and the
Group's policies including the Code of Conduct, Anti-Fraud Policy, and Anti-
Money Laundering Policy

EEBETERERRASERENER  SERXSELETE  REEBERR
HEEEER

As a result of the above review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, confirmed that there was no significant issue that would
have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
for FY2021.
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6. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

By their nature, most crises are unpredictable, but we believe it is
possible to determine activities and areas that may be particularly
prone to crises. We believe advance planning for these areas is key
to ensure our resilience against crises, reduce the impact of
adverse events, aid recovery and support business continuity. Set
out below are the pre-crisis measures that help us maintain an

ERAEARE L REXENN - ERMABER LA E D
RSB ABENEEHMES - RMIB/HEZE
FHERERINERBERAE AR AEKRKME
EHEEOTEN  RETNEHEERMNEE B
BRI A EBHEER - TXHIERMEH R
RARIEN - BB P EEU RS R -

appropriate level of preparedness to respond to crises:

Crisis Management
Team (“CMT")
12 #4578

Composition

The core team is led by executive directors and staffed with senior

EiE executives from executive office, legal, investor relations, and
human resources
BROBBENITESERE  HMKEBEREITH - A2 REEMERANE
RESBITBAER
Other personnel from varying disciplines and regions would be identified on
an as-needed basis
FERNTYEHMBEEBMMEMNAEMA

Functions Identify areas of concern

LA HAIEEE T EE

Assess the impact of the identified concerns

AT EENT R

Devise strategies and response plans to overcome crises
] 7 2R R0 FE S 5T B A R IR e i

Crisis Management

Manual and Response

Plans

EHEEF MR ELTE

Crisis Management
Manual
FEHE 1R F 1

Provide overall direction and guideline to coordinate crisis response

TR 177 38 e M e S ) BE B 7 BT Je 5 5

Set out the definition of a crisis and trigger events, categorisation of crises,
the activation guideline, the composition and roles of the Crisis Management
Team, and the crisis communication and reporting protocol
HICHEBEEGNTER  BHOE - BBIES| - ERE R B S RS
VAR fe i 38 R AN B SRR A2

Tailored response plan

and playbooks

TE I RE S AT &I AN ' BT

Document a step-by-step instruction in responding to a specific crisis
HI|BA RS E e Y B E P 5]

Crisis Management

Discussion-based

Aim to increase staff’s capability in recognising crisis warning signs and

Training training designing preventive measures in the pre-crisis phase
e EEE| ENEpiZEN b=l B LR B T BIREE R RN e 4 AT 6 E B Pt e a0 8k
Provide our staff an initial introduction of crisis management and our crisis
management infrastructure and resources
M B TIREEEEREN AR EEEREMRERLEIR
Operation-based Aim to validate the crisis management plan and the capability of our CMT
simulation BB E TR A BB B P et E TR B B A BE
BRI A RS Allow the CMT to rehearse their assigned duties and responsibilities during
a crisis scenario
REKSELEREEBERKENLHESR TTRRERRNBSIEE
Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
&R AXERESEEERAF



7.RISK CAPABILITY BUILDING

We believe effective risk management requires us to think

holistically about the capabilities that we need in order to determine

if there are any capability gaps should be prioritised to improve the

management of risk across the Group. We have identified the risk
capability needs of the Group in terms of people, process, systems
and information and concluded the following phased capability

building plan:

7. B ERENEE

BPEEAERNEREREERRMEEEEMFLN
NHEERFAERBRARENENEE  URALE
EmERERED - RMURAE  BF  ZHRER
FEBMNE AR EENRBRE DT R WEHATHE
BRI EEE

Capability area
BEHEE

Focus for improvement

REEH

Approach for improvement

REFE

Risk governance and
culture
R E SR

e Enhance the commitment to integrity and
ethical values
hnss s KB R EENRE

e Build awareness, understanding, and buy-in
across all levels of staff
BUSMEIMNER BEREEIRRYE

e Optimise the risk governance model
BlLEBRE AER

e Conduct risk culture seminars and workshops
BRI S EE R TR

e |ssue periodic newsletters or posters for regular
reminder and reinforcements of integrity, ethical

values, and risk management messages
TEERB M BN S RAE B 4R - e T BRHREE K Ino& o

Risk management
process
R EREE

e Maintain a consistent and relevant approach to
risk management

R R LA RBRE TR

e Enhance the ERM Framework
HECERRERER

e Keep risk management policies and processes
up-to-date
BHRBREEBRKEER

Risk management
tools and technologies
BB E IR T A Rl

® Harness technology advances to support and

improve the risk management process
ZRARI R S R E AR E R

e Exploit big data and source data analytics tools
ERRBBERDMEHEESNIA
e Develop risk dashboards to organise and

showcase risk data and information
HlE R ERBLE - LA SR TR R BUR & B R

Risk information and
communication
BB BB

e Facilitate and encourage the capture, analysis,
and delivery of predictive and timely
risk information
TR SR BN SR - AT RAR B RS R R TEORIF 2
e Drive a consistent and efficient approach to the
sourcing, recording, storing, and sharing of

risk information

e Source an ERM or GRC system to facilitate the
storage of risk data and information
mEtERREEN EERREZEZRS - UWEKER
B B AR

e Source statistical and analytic software to extract
and model potential risk events and perform
predictive scenario analysis

BT —BRERNE - 8 BELRAZRARASN MEBIEGE ROFTEM - AERIREAEEEER R

A

= WETTRABRERST
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for FY2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of
jewellery products, including gem-set, platinum and k-gold
jewellery and gold jewellery and products, as well as the
distribution of various watch brands. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's revenue is derived from business activities conducted
in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and other markets. The
segment information of the Group's operation is set out in note 4
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for FY2021 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on p.166.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.24 per share for FY2021, amounting to approximately
HK$2,400 million (FY2020: a final dividend of HK$0.12 per share,
amounting to approximately HK$1,200 million). Such payment of
dividend will be subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 28 July 2021 and is payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on Thursday, 5 August 2021. Together with the
interim dividend of HK$0.16 per share paid in December 2020, the
total distribution of dividend by the Company for FY2021 will be
HK$0.40 per share (FY2020: HK$0.24 per share). The payment
date of the final dividend is expected to be on or about
20 August 2021.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business and operations for the year as
well as a discussion on the likely future developments are provided
throughout this annual report, particularly in the following sections:

e “Chairman’s Statement”, p.12-14
e “Managing Directors’ Strategic Report”, p.16-36
e “Management Discussion and Analysis”, p.38-74

Further discussion on the Group's principal risks and uncertainties:
e "Risk Management Report”, p.123-141
Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations:

e “Corporate Governance Report”, p.97-122

e "Independent Auditor's Report”, p.157-165

e “Sustainability Report”, on our Group website accessible via the
QR code on p.266

Environmental policies and performance and key relationships with
its stakeholders:

e "Sustainability Report”, on our Group website accessible via the
QR code on p.266

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on p.263.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements. There was no movement in the
share capital during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2021 amounted
to approximately HK$5,508 million (31 March 2020: HK$5,503 million).

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on p.169.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia (re-designated with effect from 1 April 2021)
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert (resigned with effect from 1 January 2021)
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert (appointed with effect from 1 April 2021)
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily

In accordance with articles 83 and 84 of the Articles,
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia,
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton, Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter,
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond and Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul will retire
from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with article 84 of the Articles and will not seek
re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which any of the Company’s subsidiaries,
fellow subsidiaries or parent companies was a party and in which a
director of the Company or the director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has certain ongoing transactions carried on with
connected persons with expected annual transaction amounts
exceeding the “de minimis"” exemption threshold and therefore
the Company reports these non-exempt continuing connected
transactions during FY2021 under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
These transactions are mainly related to lease of premises and sale
and purchase of goods and services. Information about the
connected persons is shown on p.148. Details of these

transactions are set out in the tables below.

CTFE
BAXELZE

Name of counterparties

REHHEE

EFENRXS  THREHPHER

BRAFE R IEESN

RRBHIME AR - R RMHE

RAIXBRBRRFREIFRNERERE - WHETHER

HARBEEBME

RHREH

FERERX S

AREBEFHEBEATETE THER
S RBBRERRKT

BERAEARRESNEETNHE
ALTREFERE AR

(THEZIERE) WX

CTEBMEER
WAR T*Eﬁiﬁ?%ﬁ A5

T4AAEER 2021 MRFEANZ SRR HER @I

P ZERXHEIZANMEAEALRBEENEE
MRS - EEBMEALHENHNFE148E -

HHFHBHINN X

NWD
it SREER

NWDS
HiREE

Main purposes of the leases Standalone retail shops,

industrial and office uses

Offices and standalone
retail shops in Hong Kong

Concessionaire counters
operated in department

in Hong Kong stores in Mainland China
HEXERR REBNBILITEE - REBOMAERBUTEE RPEAMAEERRMEER
TERBRAERR
Master / framework agreement date ~ 28/11/2011 28/4/2020 22/3/2012
FE/EXRRZBH
Next renewal date 31/3/2023 30/6/2023 30/6/2023
TREZAHR
Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2021 (HK$ million)
202V TR EREHEFE FREEREAESE(BEET)
Annual cap 370 146 101
FEER
Amount incurred 162 18 56
BEREEELHE
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HK$ million)
HEMBEENEHEFE LR (BESET)
FY2022 70 174 104
FY2023 70 203 107
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Name of counterparties

REHHEE

NCE

Major types of goods and services

Polishing, processing and handling of gemstones
for the Group, and provision of related technology,
related assets and other ancillary services,
products and devices

EmkRBHEEESR AREEEAM - T REE - REMBEEIM -
HEEEMNEMEERY EmRkIA
Master / framework agreement date 29/1/2016
BEe/ERBHEBSR
Next renewal date 31/3/2024
TREEBE
Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2021 (HK$ million)
2021 BT ENEHAFE FREEREASE(ASRBT)
Annual cap 245
FELR
Amount incurred 51
ERBELEEHE
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HK$ million)
HEVBFENEHEFE LR (BEET)
FY2022 88
FY2023 122
FY2024 155

These transactions are governed by respective master or
framework agreements which have an initial term of not more than
3 years and, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, will be
renewed automatically for another 3 years upon expiry. The initial
agreement date and the next renewal date of these master or
framework agreements are set out in the tables above.
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The Company has entered into master agreements or
framework agreements to set out the principles governing the
above continuing connected transactions. The Group maintains
a pricing policy which serves as a guidance for the negotiation
with counterparties regarding the respective definitive
agreements under the continuing connected transaction
arrangements of the Group.

(a) For rental of premises, prevailing market rates around the time
of entering into the respective tenancy agreements will be
followed. The Group will obtain comparison from relevant
market information from the market or independent valuers
and with rental rates of premises in similar locations leased by
the Group.

(b) For sale of goods and services, retail or wholesale prices (as
the case maybe) and discretionary discounts which the Group
offers or is willing to offer to independent customers around
the time of transaction will apply.

(c) For purchase of goods, services and other assets, prevailing
market prices around the time of transaction will apply. The
Group will obtain quotations or tenders from independent third
parties for goods, services or assets with similarities to
compare with the prices and terms offered in the market. If
there is no sufficient comparable in the market, the Group will
make reference to the reasonable costs for developing or
providing such goods, services or assets plus a reasonable
profit margin that commensurates with industry practices.

The Group will monitor industry practices and market trends on a
regular basis to ensure the terms offered to the Group are either
equivalent to or better than the prevailing market prices.
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Other than NCE, the other counterparties to the continuing BRNCE 24N LulEAERFNEMT HE FEKX
connected transactions mentioned above are connected persons AARMBEEAL  TZ2ARAAGEERRCTF
of the Company mainly due to direct or indirect shareholding held Capital E sk HEREZZHF AIRE - A2d - B
by the Company's substantial shareholder, CTF Capital, in these AEL¥ FERAEREHFERGENEREERR
counterparties. Shareholding relationships among the Company, MR TEBEE :

CTFE, NWD and NWDS are illustrated in the simplified chart below:

CTF Capital™
\

72.4% ( ) 81.0%
The Company CTF Holding®
A2 ] PN Eal 4
100.0%
CTFE®
BARBEED
44.7%
NWD(ZU
it SRR
75.0%
NWDS® |
FHREE®
AN J

Notes: B 5

(1) Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 1 Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
2)  Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited 2)  BAREZR)BRAR

3)  Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited 3) AXBEEARAR

(
2) (
() (
(4)  New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17) (4) HHABEEERLT(RHOHRSE 17)
(6) (
6) (

5)  New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825) 5) FHREEFHEARAE (BRHAR - 825)
6) The approximate percentages of shareholding are shown for reference only to illustrate the 6) WMABBESLEHRSE  UHAEBEINERER FEERREREZE

relationships between the connected parties. The information shown in the chart above is sourced AERB M FTIHOEREE  AVESTABE -
from the Disclosure of Interests published on the Stock Exchange website as at the date of this
annual report, which however may not be updated or correct.

New Cutting Edge Limited (“NCE"”) and its subsidiaries New Cutting Edge Limited ([NCEJ) & H K & 2 7)
are majority-controlled companies indirectly held by RHEANEENABEDRBLEMERAENESH
Mr. Cheng Kam-Chiu, Stewart, who is a family member and ZHIER AT EREMRUNE4AERE B4t
therefore an associate of certain directors of the Company under ML EENHEA - Bt NCEREWBARE
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As such, NCE and its subsidiaries NRRHBEEA L -

are connected persons of the Company.
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At the end of each financial year, the management will prepare a
summary of the pricing and other relevant terms of those non-
exempt continuing connected transactions for the review of the
Executive Committee to ensure that those transactions are entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business, on normal
commercial terms or better and in accordance with the relevant
agreements on terms which are fair and reasonable. Our internal
audit team will further select samples from those transactions and
compare them with similar types of transactions entered into by
the Group with independent third parties during that financial year.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the Company's auditor to perform certain review
procedures in order to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
"Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
ungualified letter in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor's letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The results of the review procedures performed by each of the
Executive Committee, the internal audit team and the auditor of
the Company were reported to the independent non-executive
directors in the Audit Committee meeting. After review by the
Audit Committee, the independent non-executive directors
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
either on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

Announcements were published regarding the Group's non-
exempt continuing connected transactions. The directors confirm
that the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as
they are applicable.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year set out in note 40 to the financial statements
include transactions that constitute connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group's revenue was
attributed to the Group's five largest customers. Besides, 83.9%
of the Group's total purchases were attributed to the Group's five
largest suppliers and 72.4% of the Group's total purchases were
attributed to the Group's largest supplier. To the best of the
directors’ knowledge, none of the directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) and any shareholder
who to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2021
held any interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers
of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were

recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

EFRAEATMIREG - HEARG R

AR

M2021%E3A31 B ARBEERHFTHRAERA
R EHREAEFEEEE (E&ERES RPERDIFEXV
AR - ABRER D RAEREET - R RIEES R
EHRPIEXVEET ME8HHE ME AR A M2 A
Mg LA R - BN IREE 5 R E 5D 5 352
BGREATHFENSLMANER AR HBEL
AR BIM 10 TSV IRE T RIZA A& AN A &) KB 22 P

R NOAR AT

Number of shares

Approximate

RO#E % of
Personal Spouse Corporate shareholding
interests interests interests Total AR
BARERE EBER EEER &5t Bo

The Company (ordinary shares A28 (SREE

of HK$1 each) 1EBTHEER)
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent HRESLE 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Rt Bt 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian 80 == [ 8 20,000 20,000 0.0%
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton HIIRER S A 4,800 4,800 0.0%
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BRERTE 3,600 3,600 0.0%
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby EBiRAEE 12,000 12,000 0.0%
(1) These shares are beneficially owned by a company, which in turn is wholly-owned by (1) ZERGEBEANEL2EREN KRR ERHE

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2021, the following persons (not being directors or
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or

FERRNEFHER

M2021%€3 A31 B - RiEHEH LG &P 336 KA
FENTLMALENATAL(EIFARRESTLR
BITHA ) T AR R RARRE AR 17 0 fE s oK

short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 BT :

of the SFO:

Number of shares Approximate
Eﬁ’rﬁiﬁ(ﬁ % of
Beneficial Corporate shareholding
Name interests interests Total L NE=T
£B BRER R At BO
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited 7,239,320,185  7,239,320,185 72.4%
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited 7,239,320,185  7,239,320,185 72.4%
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 7,239,320,185  7,239,320,185 72.4%
Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart 402,000 506,860,572 507,262,572 5.1%
Cheng Yu Wai 506,541,354 506,541,354 5.1%
Yueford Corporation 506,541,354 506,541,354 5.1%

Notes: ik

1.

As at 31 March 2021, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings 1) Limited held approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited respectively, and accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng
Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited is deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company
held by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited. Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited held 7,239,320,185 shares
of the Company directly as at 31 March 2021.

As at 31 March 2021, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart held more than one-third of the total shares
in each of Yueford Corporation and Manor Investment Holdings Ltd. and accordingly he is deemed
to have an interest in the 506,541,354 shares of the Company held by Yueford Corporation and
the 319,218 shares of the Company held by Manor Investment Holdings Ltd. Together with the
402,000 shares of the Company directly held by him, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart had an
aggregate interest in 507,262,572 shares of the Company as at 31 March 2021.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme") was adopted pursuant to a
shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed on 17
November 2011. No options have been granted, exercised or
cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up to the date of
this annual report.
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The purpose of the Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced
personnel, incentivise them to remain with the Group and motivate
them to strive for the future development and expansion of the
Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity
interests in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors of the Company
(including executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors), the directors of the
Company's subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the Company's listing date of 15
December 2011, being 1,000,000,000 shares (“Scheme Mandate
Limit"”), which represented 10.0% of the shares of the Company
as at the date of this annual report. The Company may renew the
Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval provided that
each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the
Company in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding options
which have been granted and have yet to be exercised pursuant to
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30.0% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the manner as
set out in the Scheme, the maximum number of shares underlying
the options granted to each eligible participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1.0% of the shares of the Company in issue for the
time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by a grantee
(the "Option Period”) shall be determined and notified by the
Board to the grantee at the time of such grant, which shall not
expire later than 10 years from the grant date.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an
option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any
time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and the terms on which the option was granted.

No amount is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an option.
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The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on the grant date, which must be a business day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the grant date; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the
date of conditional adoption, i.e. 17 November 2011. As the
existing share option scheme will expire in November 2021, the
Board will put forward a proposal to the forthcoming annual general
meeting for the adoption of a new share option scheme to replace
the existing scheme, subject to shareholders’ approval. Further
details will be included in a circular to be despatched to the
shareholders of the Company accompanying the notice of the
annual general meeting.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
losses, damages and liabilities which he / she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of duties of his / her office or otherwise in
relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to
any director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
for the directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$11.3 million (FY2020: HK$20.1 million).
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or by the Group after 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) retired as the auditor of the
Company upon the expiration of its term of office with effect from
the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 26 July 2018. PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the
auditor of the Company following the retirement of Deloitte.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants
and Registered PIE Auditor, who will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 June 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

¥

-
pwc

To the members of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on p.166 to 262, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Annual Report 2021
2021 F %

VA S W

e
=
>
(e

HAREHREEBERARKE
(RALSHESTMHEZHBRAA])

BER

EMETBHRET

ﬁj@%ﬁ%%lﬁﬁi AI(ATEEIEAR]) REK
AR(ATHBEEE])5H R 166 X 262 B H4R

éﬂﬁ%ﬁi‘% CBEE

* 7X202143 A31 BWERAMBHREK

s BEZAULFEMNGARESRER Rk

o BEMBMKMTE BREIEZSIRRME -

HANER

BMRA  RERAMERRERE(EBIHREE
ADEEMmMHRERKRT HEBER202143A31H
WEAMBRARBERA LFENRAMBRAR

BARSRE  LEYREB(D TR HRBEL

R -

Independent Auditor’s Report
Bz B AR

157



158

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs"”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Coce”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Existence and valuation of inventories

e Valuation of jewellery collectibles

Financials
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinuEeD)

Key Audit Matter
HRENEE

Existence and valuation of inventories

FREZFHEMREGE

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying value of inventories of the Group was HK$43,011.4
million as at 31 March 2021 which mainly comprised of Gem-set,
Platinum and K-gold jewellery, gold jewellery and products and
watches. Valuation of inventories was at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Significant portion of inventory cost includes cost of
gold, platinum and gemstones, which are subject to the risk of
changes in market value. The assessment of net realisable value of
inventories was based on significant estimates and judgements
made by management in respect of, amongst others, the economic
conditions, marketability of products and the forecast market price of
gold, platinum and gemstones used to make the jewellery products.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEANEFNAHEAREAFTRETERE

We understood and evaluated management's key
controls over inventory existence and valuation.

We obtained an understanding of the management'’s
internal control and assessment process of impairment
of inventories and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud.

We validated management'’s controls over existence by
attending daily cycle physical counts at selected points-
of-sale (“POS") throughout the year to observe the
daily count procedures at POS. We also inspected a
selection of daily physical count reports and the
reconciliation to daily ending inventories record in the
inventory system.

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical inventory
count at year end date and performed sample count
procedures at selected POS, manufacturing facilities
and logistics and distribution centres.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinuEeD)

Key Audit Matter
HRENSEE

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FEZFHEMERIGHE (&)

Management also engaged an independent professional gemologist
to carry out gemological appraisal to verify their authenticity and
assess their conditions and values based on its expertise.

EREENCERBYSXREECMETELECNMGEE  UKE
BEmERBEEENBTHEOQNRRNEE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANEFNAHEAREAFTRETER

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional gemologist,
understood their scope of work and their terms of
engagement. We selected gem-set jewellery products,
observed the appraisal process carried out by the
independent professional gemologist and traced these
to the gemological appraisal reports to test these were
recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

We evaluated the net realisable values of inventories
assessed by management with reference to, amongst
others, the market price movement of the materials
and the subsequent selling prices of similar products,
on a sample basis.

We evaluated the historical accuracy of allowances on
inventories assessed by the management by comparing
the actual loss to historical allowances recognised.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related
to impairment of inventories in the context of IFRSs
disclosure requirements.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
existence and valuation of inventories to be supportable
by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinuEeD)

Key Audit Matter

BREETER

Valuation of jewellery collectibles
HEDRGE

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying value of jewellery collectibles of the Group was
HK$1,520.1 million as at 31 March 2021.
collectibles was at the lower of cost and recoverable amount. The

Valuation of jewellery

assessment of the recoverable amount of jewellery collectibles was
based on the review of the conditions of the items by management
and with reference to international diamond prices and current market
situation on jewellery industry. The management also engaged an
independent professional gemologist to perform valuation with
reference to international diamond prices and the current market
situation, to verify the authenticity and assess the conditions and
values of jewellery collectibles based on gemstone testing and its expertise.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEANEFNAHEAREATRETER

We traced the acquisition costs or carrying value upon
the designation to jewellery collectibles to relevant
source documents.

We obtained an understanding of the management'’s
internal control and assessment process of impairment
of jewellery collectibles and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional gemologist,
understood their scope of work and their terms of
engagement. We selected all jewellery collectibles,
observed the appraisal process carried out by the
independent professional gemologist and traced these
to the gemological appraisal reports to test these were
recorded at the lower of cost and recoverable amount.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
valuation of jewellery collectibles to be supportable by
the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Financials
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continueD)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continueD)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Woon Yin Michael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

8 June 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

N I R S A ol T A

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HZE 20215 3A31RIFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
B aE BEER BEET
Revenue L 4 70,163.8 56,750.8
Cost of goods sold HE KA (50,089.1) (40,654.6)
Gross profit E¥ 20,074.7 16,096.2
Other income E AU A 5 691.7 436.6
Selling and distribution costs HE N D HER AN (8,634.9) (8,689.7)
General and administrative expenses — R RITHE S (3,213.7) (2,867.1)
Other gains and losses H iy o K 518 6 430.8 (147.1)
Other expenses H R 7 (664.1) (146.3)
Share of profits of an associate DIE— KB E R R Z % F) 4.6 35
Interest income F B U A 8 815 78.0
Finance costs BB A 8 (376.0) (559.6)
Profit before taxation B B4 A% F 9 8,394.6 4,204.5
Taxation I 11 (2,218.5) (1,221.4)
Profit for the year FEEHER 6,176.1 2,983.1
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hib2mEkiE A (BX)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T & E#H P EEEwb)ER -
— remeasurement of defined benefit scheme — BT EEEREAGE 18.1 (24.0)
[tem that may be reclassified subsequently to BEEFREE B AR
profit or loss: BmmEE -
— exchange differences arising on translation — BREIEINEIEFREE 2 1,235.1 (980.6)
of foreign operations MEH Z5
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FEHMEEmKE (BAX) 1,253.2 (1,004.6)
for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZEKRSEHE 7,429.3 1,978.5
Profit for the year attributable to: UT&FEEFERT :
Shareholders of the Company AR RPRE 6,026.4 2,901.0
Non-controlling interests FEEAR = 149.7 82.1
6,176.1 2,983.1
Total comprehensive income for the year UTEFEGFEFEZERZE
attributable to: g
Shareholders of the Company NN ) 7,223.8 1,937.2
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR HE S 205.5 41.3
7,429.3 1,978.5
Earnings per share — Basic and Diluted SREF — EXAREE 12 HK60.3 cents #E{l HK29.0 cents i#1ll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

Lo W B IR B 3R

2021463 HA31H

At 31 March 2021

2021 2020
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
Fff = HEBT HEBT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - RERRE 14 4,614.6 4,641.3
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 1,792.8 2,288.0
Investment properties HEME 16 214.9 225.4
Goodwill e 17 - 2315
Other intangible assets HiEREE 18 158.0 207.6
Jewellery collectibles KELE 19 1,520.1 1,520.1
Prepayment and deposits BAFREBEREMES 229.8 248.3
Financial assets at fair value through AR EFAERRN 22.0 21.0
profit or loss SREE

Investments in associates E’\Hﬁ%ﬂﬂZ}xﬁ 20 23.8 1.7
Amounts due from associates FE Y Bt 8 N B FRIE 20 51.1 575
Loan receivables AEEE N 21 11.8 15.6
Deferred tax assets ELEFIEE E 22 426.3 570.1
9,065.2 10,038.1

Current assets REEE
Inventories VR 23 43,011.4 42,538.4
Trade and other receivables %’%&Eﬁﬂéuﬁz%ﬁlﬁ 24 6,180.4 5,340.8
Amounts due from associates FE Uk B 4% N T 2R 18 20 4.6 _
Loan receivables EULE X 21 8.9 7.9
Taxation recoverable A] Uy 3] F 78 5.8 99.0
Cash and cash equivalents BENBREEEY 25 6,031.9 7,219.2
55,243.0 55,205.3

Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N EfhENFIE 26 17,240.0 12,430.0
Amounts due to non-controlling A B B A B FEE AR AR ER 27 66.0 97.9

shareholders of subsidiaries 218
Taxation payable &R 1A 721.8 388.6
Bank borrowings |ITEK 28 4,619.0 10,533.0
Gold loans HEEE 29 5,725.4 11,280.4
Lease liabilities HEERE 15 770.0 896.8
29,142.2 35,626.7
Net current assets REEETRHE 26,100.8 19,578.6
Total assets less current liabilities BEERKBAESE 35,166.0 29,616.7

Non-current liabilities FREBEE

Bank borrowings RITER 28 1,798.9 897.5
Lease liabilities HEARE 15 726.0 900.3
Retirement benefit obligations RRAE T A A 37 238.8 260.2
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEA E 22 764.0 505.1
Other liabilities Hib B & 70.7 62.8
3,598.4 2,625.9
Net assets EESHE 31,567.6 26,990.8

Annual Report 2021
2021 F %

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RAMBRREK



2021 2020

Note HK$ million HK$ million

B aE BEER BEET

Share capital &S 30 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves & 20,767.1 16,343.3
Equity attributable to shareholders of ARATREELER 30,767.1 26,343.3

the Company

Non-controlling interests FEERAER 800.5 647.5
31,567.6 26,990.8

The consolidated financial statements on p.166 to 262 were EE2102021F6 A8 /AW EETZEHNE 166
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 F 262 B 2 REMBEHE - WAL TREESE :
June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
ERSRALTE £ EREXE B L E
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BE EE EF
’I 68 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

‘\‘7f |:' *E

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HZE 20215 3A31RIFE

& B R

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

RDARKES
Statutory Non-
Share Share Special surplus  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
B BHEE RERE LEBRHRE BERE REEA @i R &5t
HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million
BEAR BEAT BEET BEAR BEAR BEAT BEER HEAR BEAT
Notes (note a) (note b)
i3 (Wita) (Hztb)

At 1 April 2019 201954818 10,000.0 54987 2,499.5 1,272 (66.0)  11,402.7  30,606.1 6523 31,2584
Profit for the year EFHT = - - - - 2,901.0 2,901.0 82.1 2,933.1
Other comprehensive FEEMZERX = = = - (939.8) (24.0) (963.8) (40.8)  (1,004.6)

expense for the year
Total comprehensive FE2ARR)/ = = - - (939.8)  2877.0 19372 N3 19785

(expense)fincome for Yn s

the year
Capital contribution from —ZHBAA - - - - - - - 8.0 8.0

anon-controlling FERBRRLE

shareholder of a subsidiary
Deregistration of subsidiaries #1727 - - - (4.8) (3.9) 8.7 - (10.9) (10.9)
Transfers g - - - 1188 - (118.8) - - -
Dividends st 13 = = = - - (6200.0)  (6,200.0) (432)  (62432)
At 31 March 2020 1202053318 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,499.5 13852  (1,009.7) 79696 26,3433 6475  26,990.8
Profit for the year FEET - - - - - 60264 60264 1497 6,176.1
Other comprehensive FEEMZENG - - - - 11793 18.1 1,197.4 558 12532

income for the year
Total comprehensive FEZANREE - - - - 11793 60445 72238 2055 74293

income for the year
Capital contribution from —FHBATE - - - - - - - 1.2 1.2

a non-controlling FERRERLE

shareholder of a subsidiary
Deregistration of subsidiaries s B A - - - (2.3) - 23 - (10.4) (10.4)
Transfers b - - - 74.2 - (74.2) - - -
Dividends 853 13 - - - - - (2,800.0) (2,800.0) (53.3)  (2,853.3)
At 31 March 2021 #202153R318 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,4995 14511 169.6 11,1422  30,767.1 8005  31567.6

Notes: B &

(a)

Special reserve represents (i) the accumulated contribution from the Macau jewellery business
and (ii) the difference between the nominal value of the shares of various subsidiaries under
common control, and cash consideration payable arising from acquisition of these subsidiaries
under common control pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 2011,

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in Mainland
China, the Company'’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to maintain a statutory surplus
reserve fund. Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in
the statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries in Mainland China in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to enterprises in Mainland China. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion
into capital by means of capitalisation issue.

Annual Report 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

mﬁ I:I iﬁﬁ{ﬁéi

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z 2021463831 HILFE

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Operating activities KESEE
Profit before taxation R 750 A s A 8,394.6 4,204.5
Adjustments for: ST S IBIET FHE :
Interest income F B WA (141.2) (138.8)
Interest expenses B 376.0 559.6
Loss allowance recognised/(written back) B 5N E M EWN R IEE B EE 2 149.7 (3.2)
on trade and other receivables TR, (BE)
Recognition/(utilisation) of allowance on inventories FERERR(EH) 215 (24.1)
Write off of inventories FEIEX 10.6 8.5
Fair value change of gold loans EEEEN AR EE 168.4 2,803.8
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENEREITE 1,024.1 975.0
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 1,033.5 1,337.5
Depreciation of investment properties KREYMENRE 1.9 11.3
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hih R & E#y 49.6 46.1
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries U B B BB A B Uk 2R - (18.0)
Share of profits of an associate DME—REEE R R ZEF (4.6) (3.5)
Impairment of amount due from an associate FEU — KRBk R R RIE 2 BB - 0.2
Impairment of goodwill R E 2315 26.3
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Yz BREREERE 66.6 13.0
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 314.9 50.4
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  MELEZEHER 32.3 37.7
Gain on surrender of right-of-use assets EEFRAEEEN K (1.8) (78.8)
Provision for defined benefit obligations TE BB RN E B AR 5.8 55
Net exchange difference fER =T (171.0) 104.3
Operating cash flows before movements in BEESEFE 2 11,572.4 9,912.3
working capital KERERE
Increase in inventories FEEMN (2,859.8) (2,508.1)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and trade ReME 5 K& H U RIE (565.0) 788.4
and other receivables (), Sm >
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N Ho{th &~ 5RIEE N 3,724.8 2,276.3
Defined benefits paid B E R RAEF (9.1) (8.1)
Cash generated from operations REFTSIRE 11,863.3 10,460.8
Interest received B F S 57.4 56.0
Income tax paid: BARFTEH :
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEFEH (36.0) (809.2)
— Enterprise Income Tax and withholding tax — A E R ERER R (1,348.9) (1,285.9)
in Mainland China e
— Macau complementary tax — RPIFR BRI (56.7) (561.3)
— Taxation in other jurisdictions — HbREME 2 BIE (2.8) (6.2)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHMBRLSTFE 10,476.3 8,364.2

Financials

B %

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXRBHEEERRAA



Investing activities

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Prepayment for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Receipts of loan receivables

Loan advanced by the Group

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39)

Acquisition of an associate

Repayment from/(advances to) associates

Dividend received from an associate

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Repayment of gold loans

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities

Capital contribution from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Repayment of capital to a non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries

Repayment to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

Annual Report 2021
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REFHFARS TR
MEEH
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— KB AR EERRERLE
1 ff 2 R FE R AR AR IR B 8 R
EETHE QR

FERE R AR Y B3R
EffIRE
BMEFHAARSFE
RERRESEENRLFE

FHANRERAELEEY

EXEHHYE

FRORERRESEY

2021
HK$ million
BEER

84.1
(830.3)
(9.0)

61.0
5.6

(0.6)
(0.6)

(9.9)

3.1

4.1
(692.5)
(337.3)

3,344.0
(8,360.0)
(1,809.3)
(1,134.4)

11.2
(10.4)
(38.4)
(2,853.3)
(11,187.9)

(1,404.1)

7,219.2

216.8

6,031.9

2020
HK$ million
BEET

84.0
(9156.3)
(57.8)
63.0

6.9
(10.1)
(184.2)
(10.0)
(3.3)

1.4
(1,025.4)
(653.9)

51121
(3,750.6)
(919.7)
(1,263.0)

8.0
(10.9)
(31.3)
(6,243.2)
(7,652.5)
(313.7)

7,640.6

(107.7)

7.219.2

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”,
and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”)
was incorporated as an exempted company in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands on 20 July 2011. Its shares were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange"”) since 15 December 2011. Its
immediate holding company and its ultimate holding
company are Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company's principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 41. The address of registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands. The address of principal place of
business is 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of

preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

Financials

B %

o

HZE 20215 3A31RIFE

—R&EH
AXREHKESERRAR([ARAR] - HEKEB
ANEIHBAEE])R2011F7 A20 BREH
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Arle ERHA2011FE12 A15BHBRE S
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BEER AR RE&&ER A T A Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited © —ZP B 4 R~ B S5 K
SLH)A R

ARBBIREZERAR  MEAXTENBARIEE
EBERHEA - AR AR MM FEE MR
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
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SR R KE 3312 o

BRIEZERN  BRGSMBRRIABTZS -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of

(a)

preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise their judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are especially significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 3.

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments which are first effective for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 April 2020.

IFRS 3 (Amendments)  Definition of a Business

IAS 1 and IAS 8
(Amendments)

Definition of Material

Conceptual Framework Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial
Reporting 2018

for Financial Reporting

The application of the above new and amended IFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2021
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXEFHREBE@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of 2.1 &R EREHEE @
preparation (continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet (b) ERRMOFTERRZE
adopted
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations BETHESHENRREBLEERMG AR
have been published that are not mandatory for 31 202143 A31 B EME mARER - &
March 2021 reporting period and have not been early SETERERM -  ZFEREFTEY
adopted by the Group. These standards are not AN Bk R SRR 5 AR 5 A B B sk Y Al
expected to have a material impact on the entity in the BARRNRZGEREATE -

current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

New standards, amendments and
improvements to existing standards

Annual Annual Improvements to HKFRSs FENEIEE 20184 %= 2020 F
Improvements 2018-2020" ZBEBMBRE
Project ZERI4F [Z 2

IFRS 3, IAS 16 Narrow-scope amendments' BRI R A AR BHEER]
and IAS 37 E35% - B e
(Amendments) ARIE 165 K&

B & 5t Al
55 37 5% (BRI )

IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current R ERE 1% BEIEARY
(Amendments) or Non-current? (ERTA) BEREIE
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BRI HmEER  REBREL?
F175
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or contribution of Assets PREI RS AR REEHERE
(Amendments) between an Investor and its FI0RKRBR S RQRIKEEDRE
Associate or Joint Venture® 4RI 2 28 5% ZHENEELE
(f&&TA) F|AS
1 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 1 H202241 A1 Bz %RBME T HIM AR
2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 2 5202341 A1 B2 ERAKN SR AR
3 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after a date to be determined 3 B 5% B #sk 2 & FRREE 5 HIRE A
174 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

(a)

accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control.

The Group controls an entity when the Group:
e has power over the entity;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity; and

e has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an entity, it has power over the entity when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the entity
unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group's
voting rights in an entity are sufficient to give it
power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time
that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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2021 &£

2. EXEFABREE@

2.2 S RERETRA

(a)

MELAT
MEBARIRANEEEREHENME &
(BREABILERE) -

REBR TIIER TR —KERE

o HEBAEGIE:

o HEZLHEZERMAIZNZAE FEOWR
MR &

HEERIER R EXMFI =B EE
Hp—IAZRNE  AAEESSEMHE
BAAESEE -

HARERERZIKERREERZH
MBRERERAETAEEERENAET
EERERNEREEHE Y ERES
o AEERFTEAEERERHNRE
BEDRNETEBENSEZEMEHEMRE
BERER - B84

o HHf Xmﬁéhﬁ)\Fﬁ%ﬂXK%E@%(%
ROBBRABERAREFZEREEN
HE

o ALE - HMBREHEFAEASEMAL
HAZBERERE

BRLFEENEN &
s RJEERMEHRE 2R - BRAKEE A

Bt @&T\%?‘éfﬁﬁFé%i%@)ﬂ’]&ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂ\\%
5‘5 /R(”T%EA ERREE LR

ANy

MEAREENEEEEAKREE ARG
EEAEHAR - MBAREEGELIER
RS GHRRAFIR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA M BMEAME

175



176

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financials

B 7%

accou nting (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to note 39).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting (see (c) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other

Under the equity method of accounting,

comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

2. EXEFABREE@

2.2 S REREIRA @

(a)

(b)

(c)
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AEBEMEBEHDERRESS
(2BKIE39) °
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

(c)

(d)

accou nting (Continued)

Equity method (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.5.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.3

2.4
(a)

(b)

Financials

B 7%

Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets
including goodwvill.

Foreign currencies translation

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Translation and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using exchange rates
at the date when fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.4 Foreign currencies translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of the reporting period,;

e income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities
and of borrowings are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

24
(d)

2.5

Financials

B 7%

Foreign currencies translation (continued)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in
the Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences is re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and is not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions
in the Group’s ownership interest in an associate that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueb)

2.6

2.7

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply all attached conditions and the grants will
be received.

Government grants related to costs are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that the grants are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as other liabilities and are credited to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets. Note 5 provides further
information on how the Group accounts for
government grants.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

For other accounting policies are included in accompanying

notes.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise
judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates are continually evaluated. They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial
impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The estimates and assumptions that carry a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities are listed below with references in the
notes to the financial statements.

Critical Accounting Estimates Notes

(@) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and 14 and
right-of-use assets 15

(b)  Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets 17 and
18
(c) Valuation of jewellery collectibles 19
(d)  Valuation of inventories 23

Financials

B 7%
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION

Accounting Policy

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker.

The board of the Company has appointed Executive
Committee which assesses the financial performance and
position of the Group, and makes strategic decisions.
Executive Committee, which has been identified as being
the chief operating decision maker, consists of executive
directors of the Company.

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold and services provided less returns and net of
trade discounts.

For the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, information reported to the chief operating
decision maker (the “CODM"), which comprises executive
directors of the Company, mainly focuses on the location of
management. Revenue derived from each location of
management is further analysed into those from retail and
wholesale markets when reviewed by the CODM. The
Group's reportable and operating segments for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 included two segments,
namely (i) business in the Mainland China and (i) business in
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(a) Analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segment
For the year ended 31 March

Financials

B %

4. ZBEHBRPBEH @

(a) RUTERGBEATHEAREE

%

FREESH

HZE3H3MALEE

Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China other markets Total
FER 4 AFREMTS #it
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEER HEERT HEER HE#ER BE#ER BEER
Revenue BEHE
External sales ShNREEE
— Retalil — %€ 35,716.1 26,796.0 9,122.8 14,875.3 44,838.9 41,671.3
— Wholesale (note i) — ReB (FieEi) 23,982.1 13,966.8 1,342.8 1,112.7 25,324.9 15,079.5
Segment/Group revenue AW/ EBLEER 59,698.2 40,762.8 10,465.6 15,988.0 70,163.8 56,750.8
Inter-segment sales (note ii) AEBEEE (i) - - 2,772.8 21263 2,772.8 2,126.3
59,698.2 40,762.8 13,238.4 18,114.3 72,936.6 58,877.1
Adjusted gross profit EREER 16,710.9 12,432.2 2,7435 4,244.3 19,454.4 16,676.5
(before elimination) (HWisHan)
Inter-segment eliminations 2 2R A - - 3322 1305 332.2 1305
Adjusted gross profit 1L R 16,710.9 12,432.2 3,075.7 4,374.8 19,786.6 16,807.0
Other income Hl A 425.6 279.4 266.1 157.2 691.7 436.6
Selling and distribution costs $HE R fEpk AN B (8,910.3) (7,615.7) (2,938.3) (3,941.1) (11,848.6) (11,556.8)
and general and —RRATERAX
administrative expenses
Core operating profit FEEE R 8,226.2 5,095.9 403.5 590.9 8,629.7 5,686.8
(segment result) (DEPELE)
Unrealised gain/(loss) on gold FEARERN/(BR) 288.1 (710.8)
(note iii) (FzEiii)
Others (note iv) HAl (FizEiv) (228.7) (289.9)
Interest income F WA 815 78.0
Finance costs AR (376.0) (559.6)
Profit before taxation B 4 A A 8,394.6 4,204.5
Other segment information FATELE
included in measurement of A (D EER)
core operating profit SEMEA
(segment result): DEBE
Concessionaire fees EEHK 1,990.5 1,583.3 0.3 1.4 1,990.8 1,684.7
Operating lease rentals in respect A E£L & 145.9 135.6 155.7 116.0 301.6 251.6
of rented premises HEHS
Staff costs BIMAK 3,4545 3,027.7 1,185.2 1,632.8 4,639.7 4,560.5
Depreciation and amortisation — #78 & 5 1,036.3 964.2 1,082.8 1,405.7 2,119.1 2,369.9
Notes: B 5E

(i) Wholesale revenue represents revenue from jewellery trading, sales to

franchisees and retailers and provision of services to franchisees.

(i) Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by both parties.

(iii) A fair value gain of HK$288.1 million (2020: loss of HK$710.8 million) has not
yet been realised due to timing difference in the recognition of the impact of
changes in gold price between gold loans (short position) and gold inventories

(long position).

(iv)  Others represent other gains and losses, other expenses and share of profits of

an associate.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HBEEFEKEAES  HETMERIRIHEMNEE
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(a) Analysis of the Group'’s revenue and
results by reportable segment (continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are

(b)

the same as the Group's accounting policies described

above. Adjusted gross profit represents the gross profit

generated from each segment without allocation of

unrealised (loss)/gain on gold. Core operating profit
represents the profit generated from each segment
without allocation of unrealised (loss)/gain on gold,

other gains and losses, other expenses, share of profits

of an associate, interest income and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable segment

As at 31 March
Segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Jewellery collectibles
Prepayment and deposits
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Taxation recoverable

Total segment assets

Unallocated:

Other intangible assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Investments in associates
and amounts due from
associates

Loan receivables

Deferred tax assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
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(a)

(b)

Mainland China

HER i
2021 2020
HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEER BEER
3,603.0 3,437.8
634.2 589.5
17.7 17.2
- 1933
11.8 142.8
97.9 96.5
26,681.8 24,5478
5,538.7 4,698.2
36,685.1 33,723.1

BRI E2RSHETHEEERZ
EBEREETT @

T2 WA WA B BRI L AEE
VEETBURIER - KABEEFMIEERDE
B RER (BB REEHEHFESE
HEF - TBRLERIIEERIEES AR
IR (EE) W HulhashEs - 2
Y SIE—REBERR&EF - F B
ARBEKAA D EMEER A © It
ARTELEREEERNEERSER
FRIEFEHAFT2EE -

ZRUEZRSBESHARE
BEEREBRSH

®3A31H
SEEE

Hong Kong, Macau and

other markets Total
Eif AP RAMLTS @t
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
L 7 BEER BEER
1,011.6 1,203.5 4,614.6 4,641.3
1,158.6 1,698.5 1,792.8 2,288.0
197.2 208.2 214.9 2254
- 38.2 - 231.5
373 47.6 149.1 190.4
1,520.1 1,520.1 1,520.1 1,520.1
1319 151.8 229.8 248.3
16,329.6 17,990.6 43,011.4 42,538.4
641.7 642.6 6,180.4 5,340.8
5.8 99.0 5.8 99.0
21,033.8 23,600.1 57,718.9 57,323.2
8.9 17.2
22.0 21.0
795 69.2
20.7 7815
426.3 570.1
6,031.9 7,219.2
64,308.2 65,243.4
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 4, BEERYBEH @
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(b) Analysis of the Group’s assets and (b) MU ZHEDBETHAEE
liabilities by reportable segment BEREBES @
(Continued)
As at 31 March A3A31H
Segment liabilities SEREE
Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China other markets Total
mEA E% BPREATS P
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEER BBET L L BEERT BEET

Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTE (15,891.4)  (11,338.5) (1,348.6) (1,091.5)  (17,240.0)  (12,430.0)
Taxation payables FEfIHiE (554.6) (227.9) (167.2) (160.7) (721.8) (388.6)
Lease liabilities HEERE (500.4) (472.3) (995.6) (1,324.8) (1,496.0) (1,797.1)
Total segment liabilities domEE (16,946.4) (12,038.7) (2511.4) (2,577.0) (19,457.8) (14,615.7)
Unallocated: AOE
Amount due to non-controlling  FEfTFft B 2 B JEE A% (66.0) (97.9)
shareholders of subsidiaries e
Bank borrowings RITER (6,417.9)  (11,430.5)
Gold loans HEREE (5,725.4) (11,280.4)
Retirement benefits obligations & {kig il & (238.8) (260.2)
Deferred tax liabilities EXFHERR (764.0) (505.1)
Other liabilities ==l (70.7) (62.8)
Total liabilities #BafE (32,740.6)  (38,252.6)
(c) Analysis of the Group’s assets by (c) BN ES|IPHWEARESE
geographical area i
The Group’s non-current assets, excluding loan B EE D MASEETRDEE (T
receivables, deposits, amounts due from associates, BREEKRER  BEffiEe  EUE =D A
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and HIE - BARBEFABSNSREERE
deferred tax assets, by geographical areas are as follows: EFRIBEE) DT :
As at 31 March M3A31H
2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEAET
Mainland China R A, 4,843.8 4,853.9
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets B8 BRMAREMTS 3,5628.8 4,331.4
8,372.6 9,185.3
1 86 ‘ Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

B % ARBHREEEAR QA



4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(d) Disaggregation of revenue

Accounting Policy

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales of
goods and the provision of services in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred or provided to the customer,
at the amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

(a) Sales of goods — Retail
The Group operates a chain of retail stores
selling jewellery products and watches.
Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
when the product is transferred to the
customer who takes delivery in store.

Payment of the transaction price is due from
retail customers immediately. The payment is
usually settled in cash, by credit cards, by
means of electronic payments or settled
indirectly through retail malls.

(b) Sales of goods — Customers loyalty

programme

Sales of goods that result in award credits for
customers, under the Group's customer loyalty
programme, are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable is
allocated between the products supplied and
the award credits granted. Revenue is not
recognised at the time of the initial sale
transaction — but is deferred and recognised
as revenue when the cash coupons or points
are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have
been fulfilled.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(d) Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Financials

B 7%

Accounting Policy (continued)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods — Customers loyalty
programme (Continued)

Accumulated experience is used to estimate
the forfeiture of award credits as breakage
which is recognised as contract liabilities. The
expected breakage amount is recognised as
revenue in proportion to the pattern of rights
exercised by the customers or when the
likelihood of the customer exercising its rights
becomes remote.

Sales of goods — Wholesale to
franchisees/retailers and Jewellery
trading

The Group manufactures and sells a range of
jewellery products in the wholesale market.
Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred to franchisees/retailers
and jewellery trading customers. The
franchisees/retailers and jewellery trading
customers have full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
franchisees'/retailers’ and jewellery trading
customers’ acceptance of the products. Control
is transferred when the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the
franchisees/retailers and jewellery trading
customers, and either the franchisees/retailers
and jewellery trading customers have accepted
the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that
all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

A contract liability is also recognised when the
franchisees/retailers pay deposits before the
Group transfers control of the products to the
franchisees/retailers.

4.

EEERTBBER @

(d) B EAD @

-3
[c:
=

(b)

(c)

=
A

TR (@)

HEES — ERBHERE
(4%)

REEERA R ERATERNE
BREEARAE  UEBRRAL
BfE - BHABESREKRESTT
EREFRIRA TP AR BT &
RER B H LE I PSR R i 2R R o

SHEES — BNHA/ 5H
EtEREEES

AEERERNMLBEMSZHESE
REE M o SHERE AT Es
BEMER, DHERKREESE
FRER - NEE DHEERS%E
BHEFHHEERNRERER
BRERER - B8AERERER
MARER 2NN, i RIRE
BHEFIEMEMNER - 151
B ARE K RERERER
ENER/ SEEERGKEES R
FE- BNEE PHEERKEES
BEFRBHEANENER ER
EXE B  KAEEEREBE
BT AEMIEEI B EK -

BRBBIRRINER, 5 HEER
EEEBEMIEGETINER, 5
HE RS NS B iR
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(d) Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

4.

Accounting Policy (continued)

(d) Service income from franchisees
The Group provides services to franchisees
under fixed-price contracts. Revenue from
providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services
are rendered.

Revenue is recognised based on the actual
service provided to the end of the reporting
period as a proportion of the total services to
be provided because the customer receives
and uses the benefits simultaneously.

The customer pays the fixed amount based on
a payment schedule. If the services rendered
by the Group exceed the payment, a contract
asset is recognised. If the payments exceed
the services rendered, a contract liability
is recognised.

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods
and services at a point in time and over time in the
following major product categories:

For the year ended 31 March

At a point in time RE—RE

Retail sales of TEHE

— Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery — X ZE 2z - e R KL &

— ESEMHNER
— B

— Gold jewellery and products
— Watches

Wholesale to franchisees/retailers

NERR, P sHR L B

Jewellery trading HEEZ 5
Over time R—BRER
Service income from franchisees REMAEHRBEA

No individual customer contributed over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group in both years.

Annual Report 2021

EEERTBBER @
(d) B EAD @

EETBUR @)

(d) 2k Ehna e RRFES WA
AEBREEBRAAMEINBEEE
HEIRTE o 12 EARIS H UK A TE AR IS 12
HAO S HRER -

EEERBERRERSRHEMNR
TS16 1 T 14 A0 AR 76 4R 2R B L 1 e
R AREFRRHER REMFE -

BPRENREBR S EESHE -
AR B ENRSEBN RS -
AR HER B M EE ° [ FEBBPT
IR - RIFERANALE -

AREBEVEEEE m MR X — B3 LR
—RERAMITENERE  T2ERR
AT

BEIABIBLFE

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEER
11,213.9 11,596.8
28,320.0 26,661.4
5,305.0 3,413.1
44,838.9 41,671.3
24,449.8 14,578.9
575.8 245.2
299.3 255.4
70,163.8 56,750.8

MEFTEARN  BEBAIBREAEEBLE
HZE10% LA L o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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5. OTHER INCOME

Commission income

5. HilA

Government grants (note)
Other income from franchisees
Rental income

Interest income from trade receivables
Interest income from loan receivables

Others

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT HEBT

EEON 69.2 111.9
BB Bl (B EE) 353.7 81.0
R B A0 B A E Ath g A 109.5 67.3
AL A 34.6 35.3
& Z WIS T 2R A 57.4 56.0
JE U E SR B2 A 2.3 4.8
HAtb 65.0 80.3
691.7 436.6

Note: Under Anti-Epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR government, wage
subsidies of HK$159.6 million related to the Employment Support Scheme and
subsidies of HK$3.2 million related to the one-off Retail Sector Subsidy Scheme were
recognised in the year ended 31 March 2021. Other government subsidies of HK$1.0
million (2020: HK$0.6 million) were granted to subsidiaries in Hong Kong.

Government subsidies of HK$185.3 million (2020: HK$80.4 million) granted to
subsidiaries in Mainland China and government subsidies of HK$4.6 million granted

B

REEEFERMELN [HRAEES] BE2021F3 A4
BTHALEFE st [REEFTE | AN TEHRER159688
BT m—RE[REXRHE] BRNEHRI2EEE
Lo RTBARMBATNEMKFRHER1.08 88T (2020
F:06BBET) °

HZE2021F3 A3 BALFE  CHERRTHEAWHE QR
B #R5185.3 BB B L (20204 : 80.4 BEBIL) U KE

to subsidiaries in other jurisdictions were recognised in the year ended 31 March

2021.

6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

6. HitilamRE5iE

FHMAESEHBRRAMNBRTH46BBET -

2021 2020
HKS$ million HK$ million
BB BEAT
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) & Uz (E518) B 58 336.4 (234.0)
Loss on disposal of property, HEDE MENMRENESE (32.3) (37.7)
plant and equipment
Gain on surrender of right-of-use assets REFEREEENWZ 1.8 78.8
COVID-19-related rent concession 2019 BMRASHIEFENHESESR 127.6 16.2
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39) U k& Kt & A 71U s (it 3E 39) - 18.0
Others Hith (2.7) 11.6
430.8 (147.1)
7. OTHER EXPENSES 7. HMBEX
2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBART BEET
Donation B 11.3 20.1
Amortisation of other intangible asset H{th £ 7 A 8 39.8 36.3
Impairment of amount due from an associate & — 5 Bk 4 A 7008 2 R E - 0.2
Impairment of goodwill (note 17) PRIERE (MFE17) 2315 26.3
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BB R ERE (T 14) 66.6 13.0
equipment (note 14)
Impairment of right-of-use assets (note 15) (A& & ERME (H:E15) 314.9 50.4
664.1 146.3
190 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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8.

INTEREST INCOME AND FINANCE
COSTS

Accounting Policy

Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains and losses on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial assets (after deduction of the
loss allowance).

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Interest income from SN @N
— banks — 3’77
Finance costs on BE A A
— gold loans —meEE
— bank borrowings — RITEXK
— lease liabilities —HEAR

Annual Report 2021
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FI B R Rl & A

ERTBR

FIBWA

RERAR B AR S BEE DT B
HARSEEOD AR RS RFET -

BEERAGTENSREENT EBRAERE
AR E - REBEERREMEA -

FERSEERENE B EERNA WA
B AERAZ2NBRE KA o EAEMT
SWARIFTAEAMBA -

MNBRARERNXEREZSHEERTAR
AESH  EERRHREEBENSBREER
Sho MEERESREE H BERMEEARE
BMEEFREECGIRERRER) -

BERF

ERREWE BEEILEEQEREEN K
MEERERAREKEERBEENEERE
REHHEMTRRANERL - B EBREER
FEAERRBENMERTRERHEENEE -

EREERBEREREEXHANZERIRE
PR 2 B WA - AR BREREZER
BXA AR H0RR o

HipfEERANEESE 2 BEASH ©

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEER
815 78.0
196.8 206.6
131.5 284.1
47.7 68.9
376.0 559.6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 1 9’]
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Note:

Profit before taxation has been arrived at
after charging/(crediting):

Directors’ remuneration (note 10)

Staff’s retirement benefits
scheme contributions

Staff costs

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
Concessionaire fees
Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of investment properties
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note)
Recognition/(utilisation) of allowances on
inventories (included in cost of goods sold)
Loss allowance recognised /(written back)
on trade and other receivables
Fair value loss arising from gold loans
(included in cost of goods sold)
Gain on acquisition of ENZO (included in
other gains and losses) (note 39)
Donations (included in other expenses)
Auditors’ remuneration for the Company's
auditor
— audit and related services
— non-audit services
Auditor’'s remuneration for other auditors
— audit and related services

Amortisation of HK$39.8 million (2020: HK$36.3 million) related to HEARTS ON FIRE

9. K¥inanm¥l

BRBATRM B (GEA)

BEX=HE (FE10)
B TRRRE M B3R

8 TR

7B R A TER A B XX
HESK
EEMELKEHERSD

W - BERRETE

EREEENE

REWETE

H b & E i (NaE)

FEBERR(ER)
(FEASHERAA)

B REMEBRFIEERRE L
R/ (BE)

BLEENAAEER

(FEASHERAA)

Yk ENZO 2 Wezs (FEAE izt &

RPN (PHEE39)
BRGEAEMRA)
EET € T A A R

— RE AR

— SRR ERTS
AN £ T H b A 2Em
— RE AR

was included in note 7 “Other Expenses” and the remaining amount was included in

general and administrative expenses.

Directors’ fees

Other emoluments to directors

— salaries and other benefits

— performance-based bonus

— retirement benefits scheme contributions

Financials

B %

10.

gk
ERNEMME

— e REMER
— BAEAT

— RIRTE GBI 3R

Wi -

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT HEBT
875 97.1
4971 606.2
4,055.1 3,857.2
4,639.7 4,560.5
48,702.8 38,333.7
1,990.8 1,684.7
301.6 251.6
1,024.1 975.0
1,033.5 1,337.5
11.9 11.3
49.6 46.1
215 (24.1)
149.7 (3.2)
168.4 2,803.8
- 18.0
11.3 20.1
6.3 6.2
2.1 22
6.6 3.9

HLHEARTS ON FIREZ R &) # $39.8 & & 7 7t (2020 F :
363BE&EBIL) A AWM T EMES | MBI A—RE
BRI -

EF RETHASRESHE

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEET
4.8 4.8

34.6 35.4

43.7 52.2

4.4 4.7

87.5 97.1

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXRBHEEERRAA



10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND

EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (conTinueb)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and
the chief executives of the Company are as follows:

Executive directors:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

(Chairman)

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent
(Managing director)

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

(Managing director)

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert

(note i

Non-executive director:
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia

Independent non-executive

directors:

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily

Total

Note:

YTES:
BRABL(ER)

BRERE
(BxaiEE)
RESEE

REEEL
fiEgEL
BEREE
BEIEE
it
BEELKL

a5t

Director's
fee

Ehe
HKS$ million
BEERL

02

04
04
06
04
04
04

48

Salaries
and other
benefits
HER
bR
HK$ million
BEAT

5.8

5.8

3.8

24
3.0
2.1
32
3.0
29
2.6

346

2021

Performance
based bonus

ENEA
HK$ million
AEER
(note i)

(WD)

6.3

13

5.5

29
32
19
47
33
38
4.1

0.1

0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1

437

Retirement
benefits
scheme

contributions
BHER

HE L5
HKS million
BEET

0.6

0.6

0.4

0.5
0.6
0.1
08
0.3
03
0.2

44

(i) The performance-based bonus is discretionary based on the Group's financial results
and directors’ performance decided by the management of the Group.

(ii) Resigned from the Board with effect from 1 January 2021.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services in connection with the management

of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The

emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent

non-executive directors shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

Annual Report 2021
2021 F %R

HK$ million
BEER

EF RETBRAERESNE
(48)
AREARAANEERSRTHABLM O
BT :

2020

Retirement

Salaries benefits

Director's  and other Performance scheme
Total fee benefits based bonus contributions Total

HER BUAER
@i  EERE  HeEN  SNBA4 HEeR @t
HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million  HKS million
BEAT BERT  BEER  HEER  HEER

(note i)
(M)
129 0.2 5.9 76 0.6 14.3
139 0.2 59 85 0.6 15.2
9.9 0.2 38 6.8 0.4 1.2
6.0 0.2 24 38 0.6 7.0
70 0.2 31 4.1 0.6 8.0
43 0.2 21 25 0.1 49
8.9 0.2 33 5.7 0.9 10.1
6.8 0.2 3.1 4.1 0.3 1.7
12 0.2 29 45 0.3 79
11 0.2 29 3.1 0.3 6.5
0.3 0.2 - - - 0.2
05 0.4 - 0.3 - 0.7
0.5 0.4 - 0.3 - 0.7
0.7 0.6 - 0.3 - 0.9
0.5 0.4 - 0.3 - 0.7
0.5 0.4 - 0.3 - 0.7
05 0.4 - - - 0.4
815 48 35.4 52.2 4.7 97.1
B 3

0} BRI AEBEEERARENNBEEERESRA
BfEREE °

(ii) BHEES M - 8202161 A1 BRER -

EXFARZATEEHE T ERARREREER
REARAEEEBRERS o EXARZIFRT
EENBYFATETHE IR EARSREN
REEERT -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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10.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’' AND
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (conTinueb)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included five directors (2020:
five) of the Company, details of whose emoluments are
included above.

During the years ended 31 March 2021, no (2020: no)
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and the
chief executives of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors, the chief executives and
employees) as compensation for loss of office and as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group. 10 of the
directors (2020: 10) have waived emoluments of HK$1.8
million (2020: HK$0.9 million) during the year ended 31
March 2021.

Emoluments of senior management

Other than the emoluments of directors and five highest paid
individuals disclosed above, the emoluments of the senior
management whose profiles are included in “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” section fell within the
following bands:

10. ES - RETHRAEREENE

(%)

AEREMEAT
REREME AT RERARE R EF (2020
FRE)  REFMABHRLEX -

HZE2021F3A31HIEFE - AEEWE (2020
F:EBANRAEERERTHRAESIAERS
e AT (BIEES ZaTRABRER) XM
B - AYEABEERAL A FE KRS EEMASK
EMARSERAEE - #E2021F3 83181k
FE10BEE(2020F 1 108)ME18HEE
J0(20204F : 0.9 B & IT) Fb -

BREEBASHSE
BLREEREEREMNEALOMEI  BR
EEAR(EERR [EFRBRERALHN
—£5) MBS 5N T TR -

Number of individuals

EE2E
2021 2020
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7L = 2,000,000 /% 7T 4 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 # T E 2,500,000 7% 7T 7 4
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 # 7T % 3,000,000 7% 7T 1 6
12 10

Financials

B %
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11. TAXATION

*

Accounting Policy

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.

The taxation charge comprises: HERYEE
Current tax: BNERTHIE -
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") in B A b F PR S Y

Mainland China

Hong Kong Profits Tax BERFEH

Macau complementary tax SEPIFR SRR
Taxation in other jurisdictions Hith mykib @ 2 FiIA

Under/(over) provision in prior years:
EIT in Mainland China
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Taxation in other jurisdictions

FENEH

Deferred tax charge (note 22)

Withholding tax* TEMB*

Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income and
interest income from Mainland China subsidiaries.

Annual Report 2021
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H Al BEME 2 HiIA

11.

EER AR 3 (M FE22)

BilE

ErT B

A2 RSB R IR S R A RBRA I
BB BB 2 B HOENBE - Y EE
PR E AR B 2 B R B BT
HEAERARBDNHAE -

BNH PR 1S i

BNEART S B AR AR R A - HO Y B &) Ko gk
BRREENELRERTIRANBRKRN®RE B
RERMABELABEMORBEOIFE - EEE
ShIE B OR DI 2 B A AR R A9 1500 E AT i 3R
MR - W E BRI DE ATREER
REEFEENRUTE - AEBEREZE TR
H & Bk TR HIE B (8 T 1 & B B ERETR A
THEEAZNBATRME)  SAEEHRK
FRER ©

BEFERETR, GRERE) -
B R R PSR

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBAET BEBER
1,3145 789.9
163.1 129.8
5.0 31.6

3.6 8.3
1,486.2 954.6
42.4 (6.8)
21.5 0.1
34 1.5
67.3 (5.2)
526.4 149.3
138.6 122.7
2,218.5 1,221.4

* EHREZEEEERNDAMNREYEA KD BEAMHERFRR
SWAREMB -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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11. TAXATION (conTiNnuED) 1. HlE @
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the MIEFEA - FEBMSH IR ERTOR R
estimated assessable profit for both years. 16.5% BiEFE -
Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law") of the BRIEREAREME([HE]) DEMRESHER
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and Implementation HEEMMAR - A E AR TR FEY
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in %25.0% °
Mainland China is 25.0% for both years.
For certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China, AARETHREAMKERARES BT R A
they are entitled to the tax incentives in connection with the ARNERANTIEES MEFENEAREY
development of the western part of Mainland China. The #15.0% °
applicable tax rate is 15.0% for both years.
Macau complementary tax is calculated at the maximum MEEE A - RFIPTER T IR ER TS
progressive rate of 12.0% on the estimated assessable profit FizEm RERE120%TE
for both years.
Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FRFIE S A AR S B R FBR B AT & 7 Bk
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or N
loss as follows:
2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEERT BAEBT
Profit before taxation % R RS A 8,394.6 4,204.5
Tax at the applicable income tax rate: RBAMEMRAENTIE : 1,915.8 965.2
(Mainland China: 25.0%; Hong Kong: (FREAH : 25.0% : B8 : 16.5% :
16.5%; Macau: 12.0%) EFT :12.0%)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for e MNF A T A 2 13.0 74.8
tax purposes
Tax effect of income not taxable for BEARBBRANTR G E (100.7) (177.6)
tax purposes
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRR BBENTH ST E 27.9 46.7
Utilisation of tax losses previously A LR AR ERN T IEEE (44.2) (7.7)
not recognised
Tax effect of tax exemptions and incentives & F = Byt i /B A RIFR B2 6 &% (48.1) (23.4)
granted to certain subsidiaries in BENHETE
Mainland China
Withholding tax on undistributed profits of B /&y #th i /8 2 71 7k 5K S A FE 081 263.6 228.0
subsidiaries in Mainland China
Under/(over) provision in prior years BAFERETR(BHEEE) 67.3 (5.2)
Withholding tax TEMF 138.6 122.7
Others Hith (14.7) (2.1)
Taxation charge for the year FRBIELZ B 2,218.5 1,221.4
At 31 March 2021, the Group had tax losses of HK$1,143.6 2021 F3A31 B AEBERERRIELERIE
million (2020: HK$1,142.8 million) not recognised as deferred BEMMRIEEIEA1,143.6 5 88 T (20204F :
tax assets. Tax effect of such tax losses as at 31 March 2021 1,142.8 B &B L) - ZMIEEIER2021F3 A
was HK$235.6 million (2020: HK$227.6 million). BTEMHB L A235.68 2 8 T (20204 :
227.6BEBIT) °
’I 96 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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11. TAXATION (conTinueD)

The aging of unrecognised tax losses by expiry date is as follows:

0-5 years 0-5%

11-15 years 11-154F
16-20 years 16-204F
Unlimited RKEER

At 31 March 2021, the Group had deductible temporary
differences of HK$11.2 million (2020: HK$5.1 million) not
recognised as deferred tax assets. Tax effect of such
deductible temporary differences as at 31 March 2021 was
HK$1.8 million (2020: HK$0.8 million).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax of 5.0%
(2020: 5.0%) is imposed on dividends declared in respect of
profits earned by subsidiaries in Mainland China from 1
January 2008 onwards. Based on the dividend distribution
plan of the management, retained profits as at 31 March
2021 amounting to HK$10,812.7 million (2020: HK$7,791.2
million) will be distributed as dividend in the foreseeable
future, while the remaining retained profits amounting to
HK$1,728.9 million (2020: HK$2,991.7 million) has been set
aside for local operation and business development.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Accounting Policy

(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

° the profit attributable to shareholders of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

o by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

o the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares; and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Annual Report 2021
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11.

12.

BilE ()

BB BB RERTIREBENERRNT

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEART BEER
134.8 174.7
186.5 50.6
198.3 334.1
624.0 583.4
1,143.6 1,142.8

R2021F3A31H  AEBRERAELEFRIE
BEMIJINREREEZEES11.2E 8T (2020
FH1EEST) ZAMNREREZER
20213 A3 BB B E R1.88 &5 (2020
F£:08FEBIT) °

RIBEFBRSEMRSHRZE  PRERBHNKEAGZE
FLE 2008 F 1 A 1 B BT REUG F £ 5 kA% 2 B
BZ5.0% (20204 : 5.0%) 2 FEIT - BIEE
BEEHKRE DK - K202143 A31BHR
B4 4£10,812.7 B BB (20204 : 7,791.2
BEBT)BENRBRIEAREDIR @ MR T
R % N A& #£1,728978 B % T(20204F :
2991.7EBAEL) ERBIEEHEEREBER
g -

Bk

Wi B
(a) BEREXRT
FRERBIE -

o ARBBEREMEEN(TEIEX
IR PASIME R 0 (EART A AS)

° B AR B E AR BT S AR
FHEGE  ITRFAEETER
B (N BFEEFR) RIEAL AR -

(b) EREERR
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continuep)
The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is
based on the consolidated profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the year and on the number of
10,000,000,000 (2020: 10,000,000,000) shares in issue
during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share as there was no potential ordinary share dilution during
both years.
13. DIVIDENDS
Accounting Policy
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the
reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.
Dividends paid and RERIZNRERRD K
recognised as distribution ZIRE
during the year
For current year: REE -
— Interim dividends — RERE
For prior year: EFE:
— Final dividends — REIRRE
— Special dividends — BRI A
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a fina
dividend of HK24.0 cents (2020: HK12.0 cents) per share,
totalling HK$2,400.0 million (2020: HK$1,200.0 million) in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2021 have been
proposed by the directors of the Company and are subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
Financials
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12.

13.

BEEM @

FEEREARFNIZENAR BREREGFEAL
EmA - LR FEAEBEITH 10,000,000,000
A% (20204 : 10,000,000,000 %) 5T & -

A B 4 2 3 B 1 SRR RUE - MK
BERNEASREARZTER

hz B
0o

ERTBR

BERHR S5 HI AR 3 2 AT B EURIE R e B R ok
HEZEARELB(EEBEERRB T
ERBERE) (EhRE -

2021 2020
HK cents per HK cents per

share HK$ million share HK$ million
FREA HEET SREA BBERT
16.0 1,600.0 12.0 1,200.0
12.0 1,200.0 20.0 2,000.0
- - 30.0 3,000.0
2,800.0 6,200.0

RIFEHRE - NARESEEMEZE2021F3
A 318 IEFEIRM AR S &% 24.07%1(1 (2020
F:12.0/81L) - & #£2,400.0F & % 7t (2020
F:1,200088%87m) HEFRIREERR
BERE LHERSER -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAAEHREEEER QA



14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Accounting Policy

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction in progress) are stated at
historical cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land Over the lease term
Buildings 5%
Plant and machinery 10%

20%-33"/3%

Over the lease term
or 20%,

whichever is shorter
Motor vehicles 25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Properties which comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or for
administration purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Accounting Policy (continued)

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Financials
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Critical Accounting Estimates

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment particularly in
assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be
recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of asset can be
supported by its recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s reported
financial condition and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the consolidated
income statement.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, after reviewing the
business environment as well as the Group's strategies and
past performance of its cash-generating units, management
concluded that there was impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of HK$66.6 million (2020:
HK$13.0 million) and HK$314.9 million (2020: HK$50.4
million) respectively. Management believe that any
reasonably possible changes in the assumptions used in
the impairment reviews would not affect management'’s
view on impairment at 31 March 2021.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
HEAET BEET
In Mainland China AR B A it 2,565.5 2,500.4
In Hong Kong REH 349.0 373.1
2,914.5 2,873.5
Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

B %

14. Y1 - BEREHE@®

(CONTINUED)
Furniture, Leasehold
Land and Plant and fixtures and improve- Motor  Construction
buildi hinery Juif ments vehicles in progress Total
BH - HE
TiREF BEREE  EERRE WEEE RE ERIR @i
HKS million HKS million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million HK$ million HKS million
HEBT HEET HEAT HEBT HEET HEAT HEBT
Cost BA
At 1 April 2019 201964718 3,907.3 460.9 2,613.3 2,928.9 55.5 170.1 10,136.0
Currency realignment R (215.0) (28.6) (69.3) (166.7) (2.6) 6.7) (488.9)
Arising from acquisition RKERB AR 3.0 06 1.2 13.0 0.1 - 17.9
of subsidiaries mES:
Additions NE 05 26.1 526.2 309.1 6.9 80.9 949.7
Transfer B 180.7 9.5 39 20.7 - (214.8) =
Disposals HE (23) (5.2) (207.3) (129.8) (5.1) = (349.7)
At 31 March 2020 2020634318 3,874.2 463.3 2,868.0 2,975.2 54.8 295 10,265.0
Currency realignment ERAE 272.9 382 1003 229.8 3.1 35 647.8
Additions NE 4.0 36.6 436.6 3231 33 49.7 853.3
Transfer R 9.9 6.4 0.9 0.6 - (17.8) -
Disposals HE - (10.9) (203.4) (106.5) (3.6) - (324.4)
At 31 March 2021 M2021563A31H 4,161.0 533.6 3,2024 34222 57.6 64.9 11,4417
Accumulated depreciation ZIMERAE
and impairment
At 1 April 2019 201964718 894.6 145.0 1,821.2 2,216.9 41.9 - 5,119.6
Currency realignment Bl (54.5) (9.7) (39.6) (129.2) (1.9) - (234.9)
Depreciation provided for the year F R EEE 191.6 473 3715 359.0 56 - 975.0
Impairment provided for the year & &R & 04 - 12,6 - = = 13.0
(note 15(al) (Ki#E15(a))
Eliminated on disposals HEM (1.9) (3.7) (135.1) (103.4) (4.9 - (249.0)
At 31 March 2020 R®2020%€3 8318 1,030.2 1789 2,030.6 2,3433 40.7 - 5,623.7
Currency realignment ik mw 81.8 15.8 58.3 185.4 25 - 343.8
Depreciation provided for the year R E# & 199.4 50.9 4204 3474 6.0 - 1,024.1
Impairment provided for the year A RS - - 66.1 05 - - 66.6
(note 15(a)) (FizE15(a))
Eliminated on disposals HE M - (5.4) (156.2) (66.3) (3.2) - (231.1)
At 31 March 2021 ®202143A318 1,311.4 240.2 2,419.2 2,810.3 46.0 - 6,827.1
Carrying values REE
At 31 March 2021 ®2021%3A318 2,849.6 2934 783.2 611.9 11.6 64.9 4,614.6
At 31 March 2020 202063 A31H 2,844.0 284.4 8374 631.9 14.1 295 4,641.3

The carrying values of the Group’s properties (including
construction in progress) are analysed as follows:

AEEYE(BEERTIR)NRAESITOT
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES

Accounting Policy

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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15.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (conTinueb)

Accounting Policy (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received,

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the subsidiaries of the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term (note 5). Initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income.
The respective leased assets are included in the balance
sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to
make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as
lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Financials
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (conTinueb)

Accounting Policy (continued)

An amendment to IFRS 16 “COVID-19-related rent
concessions” was issued in June 2020 and is effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.
This amendment allows a lessee to elect not to assess
whether a rent concession occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic is a lease
modification. Such practical expedient has been applied to
all rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic, only if all of the following
conditions are met:

° The change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o Any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021,
and

° There is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group has early adopted this amendment to the
existing standard retrospectively from 1 April 2020 but has
not restated comparatives for the 2020 reporting period, as
permitted under the specific transition provisions in the
standard. The adoption of this amendment has no impact
on the opening consolidated statement of financial position
on 1 April 2020 and the amount recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss (as a reduction of
other lease expenses) for the year ended 31 March 2021 is
not material.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The Group reviews right-of-use assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Determining whether an impairment has occurred typically
requires various estimates and assumptions, for details,
please refer to critical accounting estimate in note 14.
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continueb)

(a) Amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial

Financials

B %

position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

15. EAEEERHEERR @

(a) RESMBIRAREZHEER

FEMBIRRBNEHEGENSRNT

Leasehold land/
land use rights

) Office,
(note i) warehouse and
HELH/ others
Right-of-use assets THERRE Retail stores BAZ - RE Total
EREEE (GED) ZEE REAM @zt
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEER BEET
At 1 April 2019 M2019%481H 648.8 2,104.7 114.8 2,868.3
Currency realignment EAR (10.4) (31.1) (2.2) (43.7)
Additions NE - 1,089.4 41.7 1,131.1
Depreciation provided for the year FRTERME (MEi) (30.4) (1,256.1) (51.0) (1,337.5)
(note ii)
Impairment provided for the year FRFERRE (M i) (15.6) (34.8) - (50.4)
(note iii)
Surrender RE - (279.8) - (279.8)
At 31 March 2020 ®20203831H 592.4 1,592.3 103.3 2,288.0
Currency realignment BEHE 121 36.8 1.9 50.8
Additions NE - 799.4 22.6 822.0
Depreciation provided for the year FRTERE (M) (22.1) (962.1) (49.3) (1,033.5)
(note i)
Impairment provided for the year FRFERRE (M i) - (314.9) - (314.9)
(note iii)
Surrender RE - (19.6) - (19.6)
At 31 March 2021 ®202143 8318 582.4 1,131.9 785 1,792.8
Lease liabilities HK$ million
HESE BEET
At 1 April 2019 ®2019F4 418 2,331.0
Currency realignment AT (34.0)
Lease payment HEFIE (1,331.9)
Interest expenses B 68.9
Additions AE 11215
Surrender BE (358.4)
At 31 March 2020 120203 A31H 1,7971
Currency realignment AR 39.3
Lease payment HE A (1,182.1)
Interest expenses FEFAX 47.7
Additions NE 815.4
Surrender BRE (21.4)
At 31 March 2021 ®20214F3A31H 1,496.0

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBHREEEER DA



15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continueb)

(a) Amounts recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial
position (Continued)

Lease liabilities HEERE
Current M ED
Non-current FEMRED

Notes:

(i) The Group has land lease arrangement with Mainland China government and
leasehold land in Hong Kong.

(i)~ The amount was charged to selling and distribution cost and general and
administrative expenses.

(i) The amount was charged to other expenses.

The Group considers each individual retail store as a
separately identifiable cash-generating unit.
Management performed impairment assessments for
the retail stores that were loss-making. The carrying
amount of the retail store asset is written down to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is in
excess of its estimated recoverable amount. The
estimates of the recoverable amounts were based on
value-in-use calculations using discounted cash flow
projections based on the management’s forecasts
covering the remaining tenure of the lease, with major
assumptions such as change in revenue, change in
operating cost and change in gross profit.

The change in revenue is dependent on the timing of
easing of the various travel restriction and quarantine
measures for COVID-19 pandemic, with the
assumption that tourist traffic and customer spending
would start to gradually recover from the second half
of the year ended 31 March 2022 onwards in Hong
Kong, Macau and other markets.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has
recorded an impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment and right of-use assets of HK$66.6 million
(2020: HK$13.0 million) and HK$314.9 million (2020:
HK$50.4 million), respectively in other expenses (as
shown in note 7).
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(a) REEMBRRAREDHEH

(48)
At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020
R2021F3A31H #R2020F3A31H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
770.0 896.8
726.0 900.3
1,496.0 1,797 .1
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A e TR R E IR R E & T A B
A RAMBERSRERB M ENE
ﬁﬁﬁ-\@ﬁﬁfﬂm j[.ﬁr&ﬂ&l*“  RRERK

BREES  RFIREMTSEZRERE R
BERHEHESB#EE2022F3A31HIEF
ET¥FRARELPLEA - WS ENEUR
REBRESEARM2019E MR KESHE
15,2 1T PR i R AR 45 e 2 RE T o

HZE2021F3A31 BILFE - AEEH A
REAMR X (RIE75IR) &S5 7WE Jr_‘ﬁ
BREBAREAEEEZREBES

66.6 A &8 7T (2020 4F : 13.05%/%7E>&
31498 &B7T(20204 : 50.4B&EETT) °
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continueb)

(b) Amounts recognised in the

(c)

Financials

B %

consolidated statement of profit or
loss

15. FREEERHAEER@®

(b) RESHEGREDHEHE

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the GEBERRBANEAERAM T FIRBEE
following amounts relating to the leases which are not SR EERFE 16 RENMEMSTET ¢
capitalised in accordance with IFRS 16:
2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET BEERT
Expense relating to short-term leases RS R BN 301.6 251.6
(included in selling and distribution costs (FEASHE &D SR AN LA K2
and general and administrative — M RAITEREIS)
expenses)
Expense relating to variable lease IéFﬁ)\%ﬁhE%éﬂ@%ﬂﬂ% 1,990.8 1,584.7
payments not included in lease liabilities 5B @5 X
(included in selling and distribution costs) (5t A4 &5 $4AAR)
2,292.4 1,836.3

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March
2021 was HK$3,474.5 million (2020: HK$3,168.2 million).

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group mainly leases various retail stores, offices
and warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of six months to five years, but may
have extension options as described below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

HE2021F3A3TBILFEHENES
W 4 %8 53,4745 8 B 7 7T (2020 4F ¢
3,1682H&% L) °

(c) EEIZHEEHREANRAE

AEETIEMEZRTEE BRAERAE
[ - %é%’]iﬁ%?ﬁﬁflﬂxﬂiZlm

HABRFTSL - MERTBE B T SCFTil 2 i 4B
B o
HEETIRENELERE  YRESET

(5] B fER 3R B 164 o A8 & 15h o T e DDA ] 22
w0 MEHMB AR A A E A E D ey E R
IR - HEEEMSHIEEREMELRR -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXRBHEEERRAA



15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continueb)

(d) Variable lease payments

(e)

Some property leases contain variable payment terms
that are linked to sales generated from a store. Variable
payment terms are used for a variety of reasons,
including minimising the fixed costs base for newly
established stores. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations.
The majority of extension and termination options held
are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor. In determining the lease term,
management considers all facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after termination options)
are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

Annual Report 2021

2021 &£

15. EFREEERHEEARA@®

(d) ;

(e)

FEHHEEMR
MOMFEE RS EEFPTS S RS
B B SRAGR o (R FRUF B BRI RO IR
ﬁm B PR AR 3 78 I 0 ) [ TE PR AR
BB ENEHHAENKNTA
FEH R it 2 SR AR s IR AR ©

EERZIETAEEIZE

AEEEETHENDERE S RIEER
RIPHEREE 2T REERAEEAE
EEBE LA EE ERBERABERTT
BEMERIE REORBNEERK L
HEREBERETHAEERTE  WIFHE
HBEATTRE - £l EHHE  EEEEE
BRAGKERZBNAAEEERER - K

THREERESREEITTERARLAER
B - AAEHEVARBES TEA (K

NMEID K BT EEREHEER
(R IERRER A ER)

LR
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Accounting Policy

Investment properties are properties held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

If there is a transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property evidenced by the commencement of
owner's occupation, the property shall be measured at its
carrying amount at the date of change in use for
subsequent accounting.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line basis over 20 years or lease term.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Financials

B 7%

16. &Y E

R BR
RANEEARBELEEHEETEAEE
(Lot P

REMENS LKA (BRERBRRZRARAE
ERACIER)) T E - MiafEREK - REY
LKA E 18 REHTE R RFHRE R 18
5IIf -

R EMEBREGRYWE - UEEARK
HRRE  RZMERERAREIZEE BR
HEZEREESE -

REMEREAAIERFEY K EEMGFH
HEER  REKEER 20 FRBLFHRER
P& - AMSH IR E WA -

BREMENHERIREMFAKATBERE
TEHIH & & B AR RSB F 2 i A% AL 3R -
RUIERMEEENEMREXERE(RZE
EZHEMSRRFRERBAEZ ZHAHE)
R ER IR E T AR -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ARAEHREEEER AR



16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continuep) 16. HEWE @
2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Cost R A
At 1 April n481H 302.5 285.0
Currency realignment B 2.4 (0.3)
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries AU EH B AR MmEL - 17.8
At 31 March M3H31H 304.9 302.5
Accumulated depreciation Z25HiFE
At 1 April n4F18 771 65.8
Currency realignment B 1.0 -
Depreciation provided for the year FARFERE 11.9 11.3
At 31 March M3A31H 90.0 77.1
Carrying values BREE
At 31 March K3 A31H 214.9 225.4

(a) Amounts recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss for

investment properties

(a) MIEVENREESERRER

HI&

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million

HEET BEBET

Rental income from operating leases KEHEERSWA 15.2 15.3
Direct operating expenses from property EARSWAHNEZ 14.9 15.1

that generated rental income

BEERKERX

Annual Report 2021
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTinue)

(b) Fair value hierarchy

(c)

Financials

B 7%

The fair value measurement of the Group's investment
properties at the end of the reporting period have been
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
(note 35). The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique.

Details of the Group's investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy at the end of
each reporting period are as follows:

At 31 March M3 HA31H
Industrial property units RBEA L
located in Hong Kong L/E = Iva

The Group policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of
the reporting period.

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3
during the period (2020: nil).

Valuation process and techniques used
to determine level 3 fair values

The Group engages external, independent and qualified
valuers to determine the fair value of the Group's
investment properties at the end of every financial
year. As at 31 March 2021, the fair values of the
investment properties have been determined by Knight
Frank Petty Limited.

The fair value was determined based on the income
approach, where the market rentals of all lettable units
of the properties are assessed and capitalised at the
market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units
of the properties as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
is determined by reference to the yields derived from
analysing the sales transactions of similar properties in
Hong Kong and adjusted to take into account the
market expectation from property investors to reflect
factors specific to the Group’s investment properties.

16. HEYE @

(b) AREFLR
AEBRBERRREDENAABHE
ESA=EARESR(HIESD) - A(E
HENERSHERRSE HEKNTER
MBAERNTHEERESEREE -

AEERERERRNEENEFBRE
BARESENERNT

Fair value hierarchy Fair value
ARBEER ARE
2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER EE-%:-2
Level 3 373.8 373.8
F=

AEFENBRENREHARER LR EER
ZEEASE L -

HR - B—H FoREE=JEWLE
(2020 4F © M) o

EEE=RARENHHERF
RF%

AR EINEBILA B HEMET AL B
AMENSERBEEERBEHDRE - 1
2021438318 - KHARMTERAR
EEESAMENAAE -

(c)

ZAREIRBRAEGEE - ZEWEZ
PREFIHEEMN 2 TisHSRKREEMIL
BYEBR 2D H W RFEREARE -
MSHEE2EZENETHEELZES
LA B #8850 B0 1 3% B0 HL At R 7R 1B R VR RY
i - BRMEETIZEDMBBRUYEE
ERXGMEZWRREMEE  WtPWER
Bz 5 RBELREARRAEE R
EMEBEZHEE -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continuep)

(c)

(d)

Valuation process and techniques used
to determine level 3 fair values (continued)
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

Valuation
Description techniques Unobservable inputs*
i pul fR{ERS & TABEEABE*

Industrial properties Income approach  Capitalisation rate

units — Hong Kong

ITEM¥E WAL ERExR
B —&B
Monthly market
rent
BHMEES

* There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that
materially affect fair values.

Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the
residual value at the end of the current leases, the
Group typically enters into new operating leases and
therefore will not immediately realise any reduction in
residual value at the end of these leases. Expectations
about the future residual values are reflected in the fair
value of the properties.

For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of
investment properties, refer to note 31.

Annual Report 2021

2021 £

Range of inputs (probability-

HK$10.4 p.s.f.

16. REYE @

(c) EEE=ZRARENFHERRF
RFHiE @
REHEZEMENRARER  ZSWEZ
SERSERAARIENAR -

Relationship of unobservable

weighted average) inputs to fair value

FABRRHABEE
WABSHEE(HE — MEFY) AREZBRFR
2021 2020
3.8% 3.8% The higher the
capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair value
ERbEHS  RAE
B
HK$10.4 p.s.f. The higher the price per

square feet, the higher
the fair value

FEHFR BEAR BFFREXES  ALE
10.4 87T 104%81x #HE
J TR BRHABBE BT EATRELEAAEHE
KBAIR -

(d) HE=H
RAMEREERERATES  5A7
RS ©

A SR R T L B A SRS R
28 HARE BRI ITEERE
A0 L B SRS T 2 BB 6 B ME AL O 2
B - HARKBENERE KRR DEN D
fofe -

FRREMFHENKERWEENK -
E2BMIEEST
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17. GOODWILL

Accounting Policy

Goodwill is measured as described in note 39. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments (note 4).

Critical Accounting Estimates

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. For the year ended 31
March 2021 and 2020, the recoverable amount of cash-
generating units (CGUs) was determined based on value-in-
use calculations which require the use of assumptions.
The calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the directors covering a
five-year period.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact
of possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed
on p.215.

Financials

B 7%

17.

]

i

ErT B

BERI 3O A B - MBI ERY - e
SELTRENN  MBEFEREREGE
BREETENE e E AR TREN
BB R AR REREBEIIE - hERE
BOANDEREEREEHEBOREE -

RETRENR HEERIEEREELE
i - S BEAE TR Al R R B A G 15 2 M 22 4 %
HEzRCELENNRNEELEMAR - M
ReELBURReEEEMARTIRARE
EEMREREENRERER(ANRED )
R (fFE4) -

FEEFNER
rEEesFlARERTHAERBE &
%2021 F%2020F3 A31 HILFE - REE
ABENMAIIRESBERESREEBREAE
REEEETE - Z-tEEREREEHEN
hEHMBRENESRETRA

MEEX  HARBRREERBRECRZINZ
BNE 215 EHE -
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17. GOODWILL (conTinuep)

Cost BFN
Accumulated impairment 2ERE
Carrying values BREE

The Group engages external, independent and qualified
valuer to determine the value-in-use of the Group’s goodwill
at the end of every financial year. As at 31 March 2021, the
value-in-use of the goodwill have been determined by Knight
Frank Asset Appraisal Limited.

The goodwill arose in the acquisition of Hearts On Fire
Company, LLC (“Hearts On Fire”) included amounts in
relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development and the assembled
workforce of Hearts On Fire.

The recoverable amount of the Hearts On Fire is determined
based on value-in-use calculations which uses discounted
future cash flow projections derived from financial forecasts
covering a five-year period with cash flows beyond this
period extrapolated using rates of growth not exceeding
historic levels. Forecast profitability has regard to past
performance and expected future changes in costs and
sales. The combined effect of the COVID-19 pandemic and
the current market situations have been considered in the
determination of weighted average cost of capital (“WACC").
The Group’s WACC at a pre-tax discount rate of 14.7% to
17.3%, post-tax discount rate of 12.3% to 13.0% (2020: pre-
tax of 15.6% to 18.0%, post-tax of 13.0% to 13.5%).

Additionally, POS coverage of Hearts On Fire in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, Macau and other markets is expected
to scale down in the coming two years as part of brand
repositioning, which reducing the amount of future cash
flows from previously forecast amounts. In the opinion of
directors, the benefit of synergies which arising from
acquisition of Hearts On Fire is expected to be minimal in the
future under the latest business plan.

As a result, the recoverable amount of goodwill is less than
its carrying value, therefore the Group has recorded an
impairment loss for goodwill of HK$231.5 million during the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$26.3 million).

Annual Report 2021
2021 F 3

17. BE @

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEET HEBT
257.8 257.8
(257.8) (26.3)

- 231.5

AREBZBI BILKASERGEMEEASE
EREMBFERNOEEEMREE - 120215
3A3TRE BEERBEESHATEENEER

NBEIEE °

Uy & Hearts On Fire Company, LLC ([Hearts
On Fire]) EAMEE B EMETEBRB R - I
#HEE  BEMEEENUKHearts On Fire %
BAFHANZEENEE -

Hearts On Fire Ay r] Yz ol & 58 T iR IE (2 (BB #
TR E (R AR B3R E R F R %8R /R ER
RRRESRETEA - BAZHNRESREUATE
BBEKFRIER ) METE - BF D
TERI & E BRI KA R SHE M BT RFMBEERR
BE) o ETEMETFHEAKAR - 20198 KK
SHEBHNEBMANGEVEDHERENA °
AEBOMEFLTHERNKNARALE XA
147% %E17.3% * % 1% 86 B & B123% =
13.0% (20204 : #iA115.6% £18.0% * &
13.0% £13.5%) °

AN - tERMEER EM K —F - it Hearts
On Fire RARZEMEEF B A AE A B KR
Hitth @SS BERE L/ - Bk KRR
SREMNBERNCE ESRTERESHEBTE
i E U B Hearts On Fire i & 4 & 1 [7 &k fE
B B AS B )N ©

Hit - mENARE SRR EREE  MAE
BH=2021F3 A31 B L FEEKSEHERER
#2316 BE BT (20204 : 26.3EEBTT) °
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Accounting Policy

Intangible assets other than goodwill are measured initially
at cost or, if acquired in a business combination, fair value
at the acquisition date. An intangible asset with a finite
useful life is amortised on a straight-line basis
over its useful life and carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The Group reviews other intangible assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Determining whether an impairment has occurred typically
requires various estimates and assumptions, for details,
please refer to critical accounting estimate in note 17.

Details of impairment assessment, key assumptions and
impact of possible changes in key assumptions in relation
to other intangible assets of Hearts on Fire are disclosed on
p.215.

Cost 2%

At 1 April and 31 March RN4A1BR3A31H
Accumulated amortisation g £

At 1 April n4A1R
Amortisation provided for the year FRBERE

At 31 March M3A31AH
Carrying values FREE

At 31 March M3 A31AH

The other intangible assets are amortised with useful life of
6 to 15 years.

Financials

B 7%

18.

HihEREE

ErT B

PSS ST A EE AN AR AR - S
S 755 G R IR0R - IR MRS B IR A R EE
& - AR ERF BB EER L AL
EMPNERRRS 3B RRARRHR
RBsHRIERBEE -

FEEER

5 1] 3 4 1 S B R A B PR D 1)
SR DS - A SR B A T A B TR
Wi BEATHBAE  —REEFHSH
5 RBR - RIBHS M 17 EE RS
o

Bt Hearts on Fire BRI EMER EE - HiEA
BEREMBARBRECEHHHMET EHTE
MRE 215 BIRFEEIS °

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
472.9 472.9
265.3 219.2
49.6 46.1
314.9 265.3
158.0 207.6

ZEHMBEEERAERFH6E16FHH -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAXRXEHREEEEGR QA



19. JEWELLERY COLLECTIBLES

Accounting Policy
Jewellery collectibles are those unique treasures with
extremely high-value and are designated not for sale.

Jewellery collectibles are classified as non-current assets at
cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Jewellery
collectibles are derecognised upon disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The jewellery collectibles are those unique treasures with
extremely high-value considered by the Group and are
designated not for sale. They are classified as non-current
assets at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. In
estimating the valuation of jewellery collectibles, it is the
Group’s policy to review the conditions of items by internal
gemologist and assess the recoverable amount periodically
with reference to international diamond prices and current
market situation on jewellery industry. The Group's
management on a regular basis reviews if there is
impairment indicator and estimated the recoverable amount
if necessary. The Group’s management also engaged an
independent professional gemologist to perform valuation
and assess the conditions of items based on gemstone
testing for gem-set jewellery with reference to international
diamond prices, its expertise and the current market
situation. As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of
jewellery collectibles was HK$1,520.1 million (2020:
HK$1,520.1 million). The management of the Group
determined that the carrying amount of jewellery
collectibles approximated its costs less accumulated
impairment.

The amounts represent the aggregate cost of gem-set
jewellery collectibles held by the Group which are designated
not for sale. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the recoverable amounts of the jewellery collectibles are at
least equivalent to their carrying amounts as at the end of
the reporting period.

Annual Report 2021
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ErT B
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FEENEE
AEERREZRAE —E— BETFENE
A IEERIFER - ZFRRBKARZFR
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

(a)

Financials

B %

At 1 April

Currency realignment
Acquisition

Share of profits
Dividends received

At 31 March

Name of companies

NEER

Beijing Wolafei Jewellery
Company Limited
T RERIEEHERAA

Group Program Limited

Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook

Hong Kong Goods Centre
Company Limited

RIFEAREAEDLERAT

Shenzhen Yungi Xingchen
Technology Company Limited

AT ERERBHEHEL
BREERA

Investments in associates

R4A1H
BA

J& {3 7
B WS

M3 A31H

Details of the associates of the Group are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
principal place of operation
SRR, BT R
TEREBY

Mainland China
B At

British Virgin Islands
("BVI")
RBERREE

Mainland China
FE A

Mainland China
A

20.

Proportion of

REBEATZ®E W E
ABIRIEA

(a) REFEATZRE

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBET
1.7 -

1.7 (0.4)

9.9 10.0

4.6 8.8

(4.1) (1.4)
23.8 11.7

AEBENB 2 ABFHBHINNAT

Proportion of

ownership interest voting rights held
held by the Group by the Group Principal activities
EEBAEEERE EEBATE
[ £:3:4'1] REELH TEEY
2021 2020 2021 2020
35.0% 35.0% 40.0% 40.0%  Manufacturing of jewellery
products
KEEREE
40.0% 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% Operating a customer
loyalty scheme in
Hong Kong and
Mainland China
W& K E N E(E
B RAEE
30.0% 30.0% 28.6% 28.6%  Operating a shopping
complex in Mainland China
R E R A E BB L
10.1% - - - Data analytics platform

gEAIMYA

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXRBHEEERRAA



20.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Investments in associates (continued)

Each individual associate does not have a significant
financial impact on the Group's results and financial
position. Aggregate financial information of associates
that are individually immaterial is as follows:

Aggregate carrying amount of
ZERERE

individually immaterial associates
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s

20. R BEATIZ2RE TEWEE
VNS ENETT)

(a)

BRI B B AR A T

REBAIE TSR :

share of:

Profit from continuing operations 518 4 TS i
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wk

Total comprehensive income EHEKRE AT

The Group had discontinued recognising its share of
losses of associates because its cumulative share of
losses in the associates had exceeded the investment
cost less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
The Group will not resume recognition of its share of
any future profits in the associates until its share of
such profits equals the cumulative share of losses not
recognised in past years.

The amounts of unrecognised share of losses of the
associates for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

Unrecognised share of losses
of associates

Accumulated unrecognised share of
losses of associates

Amounts due from associates

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying value of amounts
due from associates is HK$55.7 million (2020: HK$57.5
million) of which HK$40.0 million (2020: HK$40.0
million) is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms and of HK$15.7 million (2020:
HK$17.5 million) which bears interest at 4.2% per
annum will be repaid to the Group by instalments until
30 September 2024.

Annual Report 2021

2021 £

REEREEBE R

RETARHERIE(GH

AlEER

NGl E

(b)

%%é& Zﬂié(

B BB N F) I AN R B S A N B
ﬁﬁﬁtﬁ%ﬁﬁziﬁﬁﬂ‘ﬂwa (EFIEN=IEPN

S AR 2 M ERSEFTIAT

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BHEER BEERT
23.8 11.7

4.6 8.8
1.7 (0.4)

6.3 3.1
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2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEER BEET
18.6 17.6
88.3 69.7
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21.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

Loan receivables represent loans to staff and an amount due
from a private entity (the “Issuer”) which is principally
engaged in agriculture and wholesale of pearls in Australia.
Loan receivables are classified as current or non-current
assets based on contractual terms and taking into account
the timing of recovery as expected by the management.
There was no amount due but unpaid, nor any loss allowance
made against the principal amount or interest on these loans
at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

All loan receivables from staff were secured over certain
properties, the fair value of which exceeds the carrying
amount of the related loan on an individual basis.

As at 31 March 2021, loan receivable from the Issuer has a
principal amount of Australian Dollar (“AUS") 1.0 million
(2020: AUS1.6 million), bears interest at 7.0% (2020: 7.0%)
per annum and will be repaid to the Group by instalments
until 31 January 2022.

Financials
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION

Accounting Policy

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Annual Report 2021
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION (conTinuep)

The followings are the major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

At 1 April 2019

Currency realignment

Charge/(credit) to profit or
loss (note 11)

Utilised during the year

At 31 March 2020

Currency realignment

Chargef(credit) to profit or
oss (note 11)

Utilised during the year

At 31 March 2021

120194718
LhE L
s/ GEA) ik
(K& 11)
ERER

R2020%3 8318
FLE

N/ GrA) s
(1)
FRER

R2021%£3A318

22.

IEERIE @)

INTRRAFENBREFEAEECHRAEIER
ERIE(EE) AEARERED

Withholding
tax on Unrealised
undistributed Amortisation  Amortisation fair value
profits of and and change of
subsidiaries Ui preciati preciati gold loans Others Others
in Mainland profiton  (deferredtax  (deferredtax  in Mainland (deferred tax  (deferred tax
China  inventories assets) liabilities) China Tax losses assets) liabilities) Total
HERLHE BERFE  BERFE HEA%ES At £t
RAXDR &2 (63127 (BEBE RE2RER (BEB=R (BEBE
RNZENE  REREH &E) fff) ARfERD BEkE KE) af) @3t
HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKSmillion ~ HK$million ~ HK$million ~ HKSmillion ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HKS$ million
BERT BERT BEET BEET BEET BERT BERT BEET BERT
4003 (280.3) (50.9) = (0.2) (163) (95.8) 56.1 129
(25.0) 64 03 (3.2) 42 - 58 (1.9) (134)
W0 202 51 1188 (1549 a1 04 B4 1493
(2138) - - - - - - - (s
389.5 (246.7) (75.7) 115.6 (150.9) (7.2) (89.6) - (65.0)
358 (8.3) (0.4) 99 (4.2) - (9.0) 08 246
636" 1004 99 170 2158 70 7.0 194 5264
(1483) - - - - - - - (483
540.6 (154.6) (125.9) 1425 60.7 (0.2) (145.6) 20.2 3317

* Under the EIT Law of PRC, a 10% withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared to
foreign investors in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to approvals from the relevant PRC government obtained by certain
subsidiaries of the Group and reassessment of dividend distribution plan, certain of these
subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend payments.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Financials
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ELEBIREE
EEFRIBAE

* o REBERBEGEMSTL - B2008F1 A1 B LB EINE
RERBEEMMRIMEEEEREE - 9B 10% 2 F8HB -

BRAEEE THEARRESTEAMBFNILAEREGERE D

KT B BT xS AR D B A B 5% AR T AL S
ZIEMB

AT 78 3451 75 98 45 3 1 H RS OB 5 4
S -

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET

(426.3) (570.1)
764.0 505.1

337.7 (65.0)
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23.

INVENTORIES

Accounting Policy

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. Cost is calculated using specific
identification basis for gem-set jewellery, platinum and
k-gold jewellery (finished goods) and watches; and
weighted average for other inventories. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value of inventories is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal. It is the Group's policy
to review the net realisable value of inventories periodically
with reference to current market situation and conditions of
the items. The assessment of net realisable value of
inventories was based on economic conditions,
marketability of products and the forecast market price of
gold, platinum and gemstones used to make the jewellery
products. The Group’'s management also engaged an
independent professional gemmologist to perform valuation
and assess conditions of certain items based on gemstone
testing for gem-set jewellery with reference to international
diamond prices, its expertise and the current market
situation. The Group reassessed the estimation at the end
of each reporting period. As at 31 March 2021, the carrying
amount of inventories was HK$43,011.4 million (net of
allowances of HK$156.2 million) (2020: carrying amount of
HK$42,538.4 million (net of allowances of HK$132.0
million)). Recognition of allowances on inventories of
HK$21.5 million (2020: utilisation of HK$24.1 million) were
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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23. INVENTORIES (conTinueb) 23. B8 @

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEBT
Raw materials for: HENTNERNRME :
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery HKEER  HERkKESEA 7,627.5 7,252.3
Gold jewellery and products S EMRESR 3,017.5 2,114.6
10,645.0 9,366.9
Finished goods: B ¢
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery KEEWR A MK EH 16,004.1 16,374.2
Gold jewellery and products EEEMRER 14,376.9 14,963.6
Watches ik 1,765.5 1,638.7
32,146.5 32,976.5
Packaging materials BEDR 219.9 195.0
43,0114 42,538.4
Inventories recognised as cost of goods sold during the year HE2021F3A31HILFERRAHESEK A
ended 31 March 2021 amounted to HK$48,702.8 million 75 548,702.8F & % 71 (2020 4 : 38,333.7
(2020: HK$38,333.7 million). BEETL) -
Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted FEMR21 0 EE B TS0 &35 %E (20204 :
to HK$21.5 million (2020: utilised HK$24.1 million). These FR241BEBT)  c ZSRBEREE2021F
were recognised in cost of goods sold during the year ended K2020F3 A31 BItFEHGFEAERRER S
31 March 2021 and 2020 in the consolidated statement of ERZN o
profit or loss.
224 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Accounting Policy

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement between
30 and 180 days and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See
below for further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade receivables and note 34 for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

B 5 WA
B RBE

Trade receivables
Less: Loss allowance

Prepayments to suppliers m it ERFES 1A
Deposits B

Other tax recoverables H h AT Uk [B] F IR
Others Hi

Annual Report 2021
2021 F 3

24.

B o R H b FEWRIE

ErT B

B3 ERATIE RN —REBBEF HEES
IR GLIRIS T B KE S 2 3A - 5 EKHE
—M30 BE 180 A Z MM - EH2HAH
BRI -

B RYGARNZEGERERR BRI
TESERBERD  ARAAEER - AR
EREESEEFIANEHNAEREHNRER
B AUt ERABRF R RMHEKAE -
ERAKRBEEZRUFAZEFTRENE—F
AR B2EAT - UK AR BURERE
BHRE - FE2BIMIEE 34

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEERT
4,580.6 2,744.8
(221.2) (61.0)
4,359.4 2,683.8
213.2 355.9
257.0 285.2
1,287.8 1,911.3
63.0 104.6
6,180.4 5,340.8
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24.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2021, trade receivables of HK$51.9 million
(2020: HK$45.6 million) are due from entities in which certain
directors of the Company, who are also shareholders of the
Company, have beneficial interests in those entities.

The Group's sales to retail customers are mainly cash sales
and credit card sales. Sales to certain customers are on
credit with credit period up to 6 months. For sales through
concessionaire counters, the Group usually allows 30 days
credit period to these receivables.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period:

0 to 30 days
31 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
Over 180 days

0%&30H

31290H
91£180H
180 HIA E

As at 31 March 2021, included in the trade receivable
balances are receivables of HK$487.3 million (2020:
HK$682.3 million) carrying a fixed interest rate ranging from
7.8% t0 9.4% (2020: 7.4% to 9.4%) per annum.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables since the credit was granted and up to the
reporting date.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, a loss allowance of
HK$149.7 million is recognised (2020: HK$3.2 million was
written back) based on expected credit loss. Information
about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group's
exposure to credit risk are set out in note 34.

Financials
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M2021F3A31H  BEHERKKIAS1.9BEE
7t(2020% : 5.6 EEARTT) KEARAE TE
EMBARRARRFEERER 2B -
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T RIREBEEZAMET REEHRNESE
YRR BRER DA

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEER
4,380.6 2,206.8
79.7 382.4

22.2 54.2

98.1 101.4
4,580.6 2,744.8

2021438310 ESEERBEEHEE
487.3 8 & % 7 (20204 : 682.3 @ & B L) 1Y
FEW FRIE - M T F7.8% £9.4% (2020 5 :
7.4% % 9.4% ) &Y [E EFF) % -

AEEEABEERSBHREERSIRM AN
EBRHAEEER  HMAEZEEFEEREH
TEHAE R R o

RETEE ZREFIEN AW EIRZER - AEEE
ZARHEEEEERE A AHEZRKFURRE

HZE2021F3A3THILFE 149788 E T
(20204 : BE32HEHET) NEBREEIR
BRHAEEERMER - EREZEEFFRE
BB N A R [ P AR RO (5 B R SR RE 34 -
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Accounting Policy

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the bank deposits
carry interest at the prevailing market rate ranging from
0.01% to 4.00% (2020: 0.01% to 5.50%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB were HK$3,362.0 million (2020:
HK$3,271.8 million) in which HK$366.4 million (2020:
HK$1,192.0 million) were held by entities in Hong Kong. The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations in
Mainland China and the Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
authorised banks to conduct business in foreign currency.

Annual Report 2021
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EREE
RENBLHERTES  BeRBLZEYE
EFERS  RUBRENERER - S
HBhPRE(FHHEAZEARUTR
THRESRACASENES BFASBES
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BZE202153A31ALFE  fITFERRER
M5 FEFENF0.01% £4.00% (20204 : 17
F0.01% £5.50%) T2 °

M202143A31H  AREZAREIIENS
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26.
Accounting Policy
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid between 7 and 180 days of recognition. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
Trade payables B S REMNRIE
Contract liabilities aHAaRE
Deposits received from franchisees and BMNBEEEBERERRNZES
customers
Accruals FEst & R
Accrued staff costs FEET B TRKA
Other tax payables H b ET I8
Interest payables FE ST B
Others EAh
Deposits received from franchisees and customers mainly
represent deposits made by franchisees in Mainland China
for the consigned products. The amounts are unsecured and
interest-free.
Financials
B 15

BoRH it EARIE

!

TR
S BRM R E AR ARG T ARM

w

MEmERBORENEE ZFSBREE
A BTAEREARTIREISORAIA
B REMENRBZINSRBEE - KIS
AIASERIRERR 1218 A NEH - E&gigE

RAERER R ERERERMN SRR E KA

e

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEER
819.4 253.4
1,773.2 1,245.5
12,798.8 9,475.4
561.4 644.0
640.7 411.3
500.4 192.7
47.8 12.5
98.3 195.2
17,240.0 12,430.0

BINERE kBRI RS T REHE A0S
BERRFEERRAN 2ZE - ZRBA/EL
BERE -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continuep)

The Group normally receives credit terms of 7 to 180 days
from its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of

each reporting period:

0 to 30 days
31 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
Over 180 days

0=30H

31290H
912180 H
180 HAA £

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to

contracts with customers:

Contract liabilities:
Customer loyalty programme
Receipts in advance

BMAIE:
B P BBIE &
B FROR

The following table shows the amount of unsatisfied

performance obligations:

Expected to be recognised within one year
Expected to be recognised after one year

FEHIR — F AR
FEHIN — FIRMER

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relating to contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year and the amount relating to
performance obligations that were satisfied in previous years:

Revenue recognised that was included in
the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year:
— Customer loyalty programme
— Receipts in advance

Annual Report 2021
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26. ESRHEMEMSRIE@®

AEH-REEHEIRSENERERAR/NTT7H

E180BTF - AT AREBEERBMETINE K
SHIRNE 5 I FIRR BRER DA -

2021
HK$ million
BEER

800.6
12.0
0.4
6.4

819.4

AEBECHRTIIEHETA AT

2021
HK$ million
BHEET

2491
1,524.1

1,773.2

TREIIRERBENREESHR

2021
HK$ million
BEET

1,398.5
374.7

1,773.2

2020
HK$ million
BEBER

200.7
36.9
12.6

3.2

2563.4

mt

I

2020
HK$ million
BEBET

174.0

1,071.5

1,245.5

2020

HK$ million
BEET
976.4
269.1

1,245.5

TREJEFPNENEEEAARE BRERNZ
FRSFARNBEFEEERNBOREZ S

2021
HK$ million
BEER

AAAFHEMABEHRERR

— BF B HEE

— TRUERIR

173.0
754.1

9271

2020
HK$ million
BEBER

1788
806.6

986.5
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27.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

28. BANK BORROWINGS

Accounting Policy

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Unsecured bank loans
The carrying amounts are repayable*
Within one year
More than one year, but not exceeding
two years
More than two years, but not exceeding
five years

EIRMBITER

—FR

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

The bank borrowings carry variable interest rates ranging
from 0.6% to 0.9% (2020: 0.6% to 0.9%) over Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") per annum.

Financials
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28.

FREER THIMRER
—FA L BREEMRE

MFA L BRNEBAF

FE 14t /8 A B FRiZ IR IR SRR 1A

REMRAEE - R B RIZERA TEE -

IRITER

EEBUR
ERZMRAREFREEENZ ZKA)
BR e EBEREBREBEKAATE  WHBRRS
RAZ BB RERERSE NI ZESE - 8l
RETEARABRF R EZRBEANER - £8
FARG AR BMHKEHRMABRT « kL
BERBMEINOBRANERABERRZEA
FUHEBERT ZEBEABEEERMEREE
B o W ENRIARZERBEARESDH 2
HBIROMBERT  ZBABRFTEAEARBE
SREWBNKE  YRERBRESHEAT
LABESH -

BEAOTRENEERE  BUERERE - &
EREAMBIMART SR - EHBRERR
ZONERAEMNEREEEDS INRE(R
BLEENEAFReEEXMAENEE)
ZHEMER  ERETEISBERAK o

ERDBERRBDEE  EAREEEEGIE
NAaEa B FEERERERREI+ =@
HAIRRSD -

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
4,619.0 10,533.0
1,798.9 597.6

- 299.9

6,417.9 11,430.5

* o BIEECRTAR SR IR A B RKE o

BTETIREBFEN KL ERRAFTBET
EZF LM F0.6% ZE0.9% (20204 : 0.6%
%Z0.9%) °
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28. BANK BORROWINGS (continueD)

As at 31 March 2021, the range of interest rates on the bank
borrowings were 0.8% to 1.0% (2020: 1.8% to 3.9%)
per annum.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are
denominated in the following currency:

HK$ BT

29. GOLD LOANS

Accounting Policy

Gold loans to be repaid by cash are designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as the gold loans
form part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives. Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold are
classified as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Gain or losses on gold loans are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for the
gains or losses arising from the Group's own credit risk
relating financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
which are presented in other comprehensive income with
no subsequent reclassification to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these liabilities.

Gold loans are borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuations
in gold prices on gold inventories. The amounts represent
borrowing from banks and the amounts payable are pegged
to gold prices.

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Gold loans to be repaid by cash

28.

29.

BUARSEENESRE

Liabilities at fair value through BARBEFABENEE

profit or loss

Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold BABEEESEE

Annual Report 2021
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RITER @

K2021 63831 H  AERITERBFFIEN
F0.8% £1.0% (20204 : 1.8% £3.9%) °

IRITERREE A T EREGHE -

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEET HEER
6,417.9 11,430.5

A

EHatBUR

BB S EENESBEBNEAL B AR
HOSHMAR AAESEEERES— @R
SEHRARTETAZ ANBH - BUERE
SEENES RN EARAL EHABSD
£1E -

HEBEENERRBEENERRRA®R
EZERANEFTARSNEHAERAEE

BaEERREENKRSIBRAGF AL ME
m¥zEZ2Y  BETEEHIBEHRGERR -
RiZaBRERERAN AR ERR BB FEYL
NEEEAINREZEEENFS -

BARBERABENEREE

ERECEEENERNRESESFESRHZCER

RBNHEE o ZFTATIIERITE R MEKE
HE S ERAE -

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
HEBT HEBT
2,432.7 3,067.7
B 3,292.7 8,212.7
5,725.4 11,280.4
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29. GOLD LOANS (continuED) 29. HE2EEw

As at 31 March 2021, the gold loans carried fixed interest R2021F3A31H 2 BEERFFNX08%
rates of 0.8% to 2.1% (2020: 0.7% to 2.3%) per annum, £2.1% (20204 : 0.7% £2.3%) &) & 5 F| &
with original maturity of 1 to 7 months (2020: 1 to 6 months) TR REHAAKREBER1E7EA(20204F -
from date of inception. 1£6MEA) -

The fair value of the gold loans are denominated in the HEEEBEEARBERATEESE :

following currencies:

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
Us$ ET 2,432.7 3,067.7
RMB AR 3,292.7 8,212.7
5,725.4 11,280.4
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. &%
Accounting Policy R
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs LRI D B AR o BHERBEITEHR SR
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options S| Bz IR A RE R R B A P8 B 2 R
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the D (HBRFRIE) ©
proceeds.
2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Authorised: SETE
50,000,000,000 ordinary shares 50,000,000,000 f% &I E & 50,000.0 50,000.0
of HK$1 each 1 BTz EBR
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000 f& &A% E{E 10,000.0 10,000.0
of HK$1 each 1 BTz EBR
There was no change in the Company'’s authorised, issued MEFERN @ AREIZETE » BBITRARKA
and fully paid capital in both years. BE o & o
232 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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31. LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

31. HERIE
AEEEEKBAA

The Group mainly leases various retail stores, offices and AEERBAAIRENGCEEETIEHELZET
warehouses under non-cancellable operating leases expiring EBE PHAEREE  BHERANERZRERHE
within six months to five years. The leases have varying e ZEHEBTEMIER  MBAKILRES
terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, W o EFAR  HERR e EIEY -

the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

Minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases of
rented premises not recognised in
the financial statements are as follows:

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive

The Group as lessor

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEERT BEET
KRR BREERE B LAY E
RIBET AR E EHEH
REBERROT :
—F R 101.3 61.7
E_ZERF (BEERMF) - 0.3
101.3 62.0

FREEAHBEA

The investment properties are leased to tenants under leases HEMERERELRTFHES - & A ] WERA
with rentals payable monthly. For details of the leasing ©c BRHERHNFE  F2HME16 -

arrangements, refer to note 16.

Minimum lease payments receivable
on leases of investment properties
are as follows:

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted but not
provided for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Annual Report 2021
2021 F %

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAET

HEREMENKERKEEMNRET -
—F R 124 12.5
E_ZERF (BEEEME) - 12.4
124 24.9

32. EXEiE

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
RBEDE  BERRXEERTER 132.4 173.2

BENERRX
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33.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
entities will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, gold loans and equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company, comprising share capital,
reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the raising of bank borrowings
and gold loans.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting Policy

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’'s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Debt investments are reclassified when and only
when the Group's business model for managing those
assets changes.

Financials

B 7%

33.

34.

EXEBEE
AEBEREASERREERBASECE
37 38 A 5 L 2 0 P T A AR SRR B
SREIH -

FEENEAEBRBERTEN  E2EENK
AERREERE(BREEVBRRABEZ
A~ @B RRERT) -

FAEBEERBERRTEARE AEEGEE
BARARERESHBNRAR - NERRMN R
B BIOTHE  SERTEFEESEREFERN
SEEREEARE -

EMIR

R
(a) 9@
AEBEESREEDEANUTSE

o HBRBANAFAHMEEKERE
BONEREE &

o DEHKAHENERMEE -

ZOBIANEREESREENRED
BARRBSREN S KGR -

HRARAEFENSREE - HRsS
MEEF ARt 2 E RS - BN
FRHEEENRETARE - EfHEUR
MNAEEENIGEREEECEHDA
B EEREAR B AEL2EK
@A ERRE AR

ERREEEAEEEERFTEENSE
BEABERCR  TETEHIER -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

Accounting Policy (continued)

(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established. Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in other gains and
losses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as applicable.

Annual Report 2021
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

Accounting Policy (continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Financials

B 7%

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection

of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains and losses together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’' cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains and losses. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains and losses and
impairment expenses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains
and losses in the period in which it arises.

34. £t TH =

EEEUR @)

(c)

HE (@)

==
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BB TARENEEFTEIRRAEE
EEZEENZEBEANRZEENS
EREBRE - AREBEBETAD RN
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B SHA A ET 8 - WA RKEE
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EERREESMFEHZM - AlZ
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MER — RZI R R b Y et & & 18 %
B BEBERGEBEERANEE
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BRRRMERRESRERHENES R
BE WRZEENHEREERR
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BREAABEFAREMEEKE - B
AEE R s - A S U A LA RSN
R s MERRN B R ER - REE
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MEKBTARE  HAFHIBRETA
B YREEHBFEEER MK
& MR SR o
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

Accounting Policy (continued)

(d)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires lifetime
expected credit losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month expected credit loss unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses.

When there is a significant increase in credit risk or
the proceeds receivables are not settled in
accordance with the terms stipulated in the
agreements, management considers these
receivables as underperforming or non-performing
and impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit loss.

Annual Report 2021
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

Categories of financial instruments

As 31 March 2021

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss

Amounts due from associates

Loan receivables

Deposits

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Bank borrowings

Gold loans to be repaid by cash

Lease liabilities

Total financial liabilities

As 31 March 2020

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss

Amounts due from associates

Loan receivables

Deposits

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Bank borrowings

Gold loans to be repaid by cash

Lease liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Financials

R202143A31H
SREE
BAREGABSNSREAE

JE Uk Bt i 1 B 0R
FEY B 5K
EffZE

B 5 RE A KRR
RehASEED

ERMEERE

TREE

B 5 KA KA

JEASH PR B8 2 B JE IR AR RR AROR
RITEN
HARSEENESEER
HEAE

ERAERE

R202043 A31H
SREE
BAREGABSNSREAE

JE Uk gt i 1 B 0R
FEW B 5K
EffZE

B 5 R E A REOR
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ERMEERE
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B 5 KA KA

JEASH P B8 2 B JE IR AR R SRR
RITEN

AR EENESEER
HEARE

ZRAERE

34. £ THm@w
AEEFEEUNTERMIA

ST AEH

Financial assets/
(liabilities) at
amortised cost
RBERATEN
CREE (8F)
HKS$ million
BHE#ERT

55.7
20.7
181.4
4,679.4
6,031.9

10,969.1

(965.5)
(66.0)

(6,417.9)

(1,496.0)

(8,945.4)

Financial assets/
(liabilities) at
amortised cost
BRBHERATTEN
CREE (8F)
HKS$ million
HERT

57
2345
188.6
3,073.6
7,219.2

10,662.4
(461.1)
(97.9)
(11,430.5)

(1,797.1)

(13,786.6)

Financial assets/
(liabilities) at

fair value
BRAREEN
eHMEE(BFE)
HK$ million
BHEAET

22.0

(2,432.7)

(2,432.7)

Financial assets/
(liabilities) at

fair value
RAREEN
eHMEE(BFE)
HK$ million
HEAET

21.0

(3,067.7)

(3,067.7)

Total

st
HKS$ million
BEET

22.0

55.7
20.7
181.4
4,679.4
6,031.9

10,991.1

(965.5)
(66.0)

(6,417.9)
(2,432.7)
(1,496.0)

(11,378.1)

Total

st
HKS$ million
BEET

21.0

57.5
2345
188.6
3,073.6
7,219.2

10,683.4
(461.1)
(97.9)
(11,430.5)
(3,067.7)

(1,797.1)

(16,854.3)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXRBHEEERRAA



34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVPL, amounts due from associates, loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, bank
borrowings, gold loans to be repaid by cash and lease
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk,
currency risk and commodity price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate loan receivables, certain trade receivables, gold
loans and lease liabilities. The Group currently does not have
any instruments to hedge against the fair value interest rate risk.

Also, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities, mainly bank balances and bank
borrowings at variable interest rates. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the cash flow
interest rate risk is considered insignificant and therefore no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

Annual Report 2021
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinue)

Financial risk management objectives and
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk

Certain Group entities have sales and purchases which are
denominated in currency other than their respective
functional currencies, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the foreign currency risk is insignificant considering the
related sales and purchases to the total sales and purchases
of the Group. The majority of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary items are cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB, which are held by Group entities
whose functional currencies are not RMB, with carrying
amounts of HK$366.4 million (2020: HK$1,192.0 million). In
addition, certain Group entities whose functional currency is
HK$, have intra-group advances to their subsidiaries,
denominated in RMB.

The Group mainly exposes to currency of United States
dollars (“US$"”) and RMB, which are arising from relevant
Group entities’ foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities for the Group's operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need arise.
As at 31 March 2021, if the exchange rate of RMB had been
2% appreciated or depreciated against HK$, the Group's
profit after taxation for the year would increase or decrease
by HK$136.7 million (2020: HK$65.8 million) and the Group's
exchange reserve would increase or decrease by HK$353.4
million (2020: HK$289.0 million) for the year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the currency
risk of US$ is considered insignificant.

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold
products. The gold market is influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline
in prices of gold could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk,
the Group uses gold loans to reduce its exposure to
fluctuations in the gold price on gold inventory. Should the
gold price go up, the Group would charge a loss representing
the increase in gold price compared to the contract price, and
largely net against the increase in revenue of gold products
as a result of gold price increase. Gold loans are settled at
maturity which is usually in 1 to 7 months (2020: 1 to 6
months) from date of inception and any fair value change is
immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Financials
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

Financial risk management objectives and
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Market risk (continued)

Commodity price risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, if the market price of gold had been
higher or lower by 10%, profit after taxation for the year
would decrease or increase approximately by HK$532.4
million (2020: HK$1,077.4 million) due to changes in fair
values of gold loans. On the other hand, the gold inventory
would not be revalued at market price as it is measured at
weighted average cost, unless an impairment indicator
exists. The changes in fair value of gold loans would be partly
offset by the realised gain or loss impact on gold inventory in
future sales.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the
end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

e trade receivable for sales of inventory and from the
provision of service; and

e debt investments carried at amortised cost, including other
receivables, amounts due from associates and loan receivables

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial as such amounts are placed
in banks with good reputation.
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinue)

Financial risk management objectives and
pOIiCies (Continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the aging of gross
trade receivables over a period of 12 month before 31 March
2021 or 31 March 2020 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2021 and
31 March 2020 was determined as follows for trade receivables:

34. £t TH =

SRHEAMEEHERBR @

EERE @

2 S FEW KT

£ B pE PR B B B A s AE HE I 88 9 5% b 0
FrTEREEERE  ZEHEEEES2MEN
EEBERNEE ZEINEIE -

RAEBEMEEBE  BEZREGAESRELT
EERRERINALEEETHA

BEHEBREDRED HIMN2021F3A31H %
202043 A31 Bz a1 12 18 A B8 & 5 e W5k E
BENRRIBALENEERELEREBRS
H- BEBERXEFRBRARRYEBRFENE
WRIRERE N B BER R 2 BRI RATHEEE
£ AEBEEH K AEENER - REZFE
ENEHEBARBEBEE -

Uk - 202143 A31H &202063HA31H
B SN TR EEEENT

As of 31 March 2021
Expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount
Loss allowance

As of 31 March 2020
Expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount
Loss allowance

Financials

B %

R2021%3A31A
BEHBEREX
RERE

1202053 A31A
BHERER
FREeME

0 to 30 days
0£30H
HKS$ million
BEET

3.4%
4,380.6
146.8

0.0%
2,206.8

Aging analysis
R

31 to 90 days 91 to 180 days Over 180 days Total
31Z90H 91£180H 8181808 st
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEETL BERT BERETL BEET

0.0% 0.0% 75.8%
79.7 222 98.1 4,580.6
- - 744 221.2

0.0% 0.0% 60.2%
3824 54.2 101.4 2,744.8
— - 61.0 61.0

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

Financial risk management objectives and
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 March
reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

At 1 April R4 A1R
Currency realignment 15 2

Loss allowance recognised/(written back) EERE 2 ER
At 31 March M3 A31H

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net
impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Debt investments

All of the Group's debt investments at amortised cost are
considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance
recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12
months, expected losses unless significant increase in credit
risk. Debt investments are considered to be low credit risk
where they have a low risk of default and the counterparty
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
trade and loan receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.
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34.

Weighted ~ On demand or
average less than
interest rate 3 months
METHFH=E AR
% HK$ million
BEERL

At 31 March 2021 R2021%3A31A
Trade and other payables 25 REMERTE - 965.5
Amounts due to non-controlling BB A AR - 66.0

shareholders of subsidiaries BRRE

Bank borrowings BIER 0.9% 4,024.6
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BUBRSERNELEE 0.9% 2,435.5
Lease liabilities HEAE 3.0% 228.0
1,719.6

At 31 March 2020 12020535318
Trade and other payables ESREMENTE - 461.1
Amounts due to non-controlling R B R AR - 97.9

shareholders of subsidiaries REHE

Bank borrowings RITER 2.6% 9,058.0
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BURLEBENELEE 0.8% 3,069.7
Lease liabilities HEARE 2.9% 284.3
12,971.0

Notes:

(i) The amounts included in above for variable rate bank borrowings are subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) The amounts of gold loans are determined with reference to quoted market bid price
of gold traded in active liquid markets.

Financials

B %

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinue)

Financial risk management objectives and
pOIiCieS (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group's short and medium-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining banking facilities and by continuously
monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and the maturity
profiles of its financial liabilities.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and

£RTH@
SRHEAMEEHERBR @

34.

BN A & b
AEEEEBEAASENERRTHES AR
MDELERREREVEENRDE SRR E R
R - AEBEREIFRITREARSEERR
ARERRERBLESHEBEZEHER &
EREE SR -

TRAAEEZEMEERTANIHA 25
B RRBREAKREARERLINEREEZ
EFAHRE  URBMeBAEZ RBREDR
B ZERRBREEFNERASHERE

principal cash flows.

Total
3 months to undiscounted Carrying
1year 1to 5 years Over 5 years cash flows amount
RERRS
EAEIE 125% 5§28 REAH REE
HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEETL BEAT BEET BEERL
- - - 965.5 965.5
- - - 66.0 66.0
603.6 1,825.5 - 6,453.7 6,417.9
- - - 2,4355 2432.7
584.9 715.6 16.3 1,544.8 1,496.0
1,1885 25411 16.3 11,465.5 11,3781
- - - 461.1 461.1
- - - 97.9 97.9
1,617.0 952.9 - 11,6279 11,4305
- - - 3,069.7 3,067.7
669.7 890.3 187 1,863.0 1,797.1
2,186.7 1,843.2 187 17,019.6 16,854.3
P 5 :

() fEREHRNZEFZEHHRINEEENFIRME - L5)F
SRITERBEOBERGLE -

(i) ESEENSESRERMEMSEECELTHEAREBET -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the Group's financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting

35. AR{ETE
(a) AaR{EFR

TRIRT AEBIRA R B H R RE
ROARE HAREDRERMBRS
RAE13K DA EHE ] FREH=1E
RABEANE - DR EEOHERDH
%%%%Tﬂﬁﬁﬁm¢ﬁ%m%Aﬁﬂ

S REBEBET

period at fair value, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with Y A]
reference to the observability and significance of the

inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

F—&BMARBELERR N
BT 35 ] A BUS $HHE‘]§F%’E\EZ$
SHEEIRE

e |evel 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in .
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the entity can access at the measurement date;

B BABEBDE R ZHREIN
ARBEEEKFREREERBERS
HZBABE : &

e |evel 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices o
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset o F=M . MABE NI RIEERE
or liability. ERAEMEH 2B ASE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
P P g=4 @3t
Notes HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
it & HEAT HEAET BEBER BEET
Recurring fair value measurement £ A A EFE
At 31 March 2021 R2021F3A31H
Asset BE
Financial assets at fair value RAREH ABRD - - 22.0 22.0
through profit or loss SREE
Liabilities afE
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BAESEEN=SEE 29 - 2,432.7 - 2,432.7
Gold loans to be repaid BUERESEEN 29 - 3,292.7 - 3,292.7
by physical gold H2EEE
At 31 March 2020 7202063 A31H
Asset BE
Financial assets at fair value BRAREFABRA - = 21.0 21.0
through profit or loss SREE
Liabilities afE
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BLREEEN=ESEE 29 - 3,067.7 - 3,067.7
Gold loans to be repaid BABERECEEN 29 = 8,212.7 = 8,212.7
by physical gold BeEE
During the year ended 31 March 2021, there were no HZE2021F3A3MBILFE  F—H K

transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: nil).

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period.
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35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (conTinueb)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Financials

B %

Valuation techniques used to
determine Level 2 fair values

The fair value of gold loans is determined using
discounted cash flow valuation technique reference to
quoted market bid price of gold traded in active liquid
markets as a key input.

Fair value measurement using
significant unobservable input (Level 3)
The following table presents the changes in Level 3
items for the periods ended 31 March 2021 and 31
March 2020:

Unlisted equity securities FELETREES
At 1 April M4aA1E
Currency realignment EAE
Acquisitions g

At 31 March M3 H31H

The fair value of financial assets that are grouped under
Level 3 is determined using valuation technique
including discounted cash flow analysis. In determining
fair value, specific valuation technique are used with
reference to inputs such as profit forecast, dividend
stream and other specific input relevant to those
particular financial assets.

Financial instruments that are not
measured at fair value

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

35. AREFE®@®

(b)

(c)

(d)

REEEE-—RARENHE
%15

ES R AR EHARRRS RIHEL
B EhSREATATSEEZES
T EARMESEEH AN -

ERAEXFUHERBAREZ
ARIEE(B=HR)
TREIIBIEAAEFENBEZE2021F3
A31H&202043 A31 ALLMEE=M&
BE#

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
21.0 11.2
0.4 (0.3)

0.6 10.1

22.0 21.0

RE=ZFHAENEREEANEEAMGE
BRI (BEMRARSREBAT) EE - B
DAER - ERFEGERDT 2887
TR - BB T A B N A B e
ELREERMNTEE AR -

EFELUAREFTEH SR
I8
HibeMAERSMA BN EREH
EEESHE SR UNGER Lt b
B -

ARREERR NP BHRKRIZHEE
RAAENEREEReREBEZREAE
HEENERE
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36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

36.

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash
flows from financing activities.

At 1 April 2019

Financing cash flows
Avrising from acquisition

of subsidiaries
Interest expenses

Foreign exchange translation

Dividends declared

Fair value loss of gold loans
Other non-cash movements

At 31 March 2020

Financing cash flows

Interest expenses

Foreign exchange translation

Dividends declared

Fair value loss of gold loans
Other non-cash movements

At 31 March 2021

Annual Report 2021
2021 F %

R2019%4A1R
BEARSRE
REmEARmES

MR

SNERE

ERRE
BLRELAERR
ARG Y

R202053A31H

HERERE
MERX

SESRE

EREE
BESREANERR

AR R

R202153 8310

Bank
borrowings

Note 28
Mzt 28
HK$ million
BEER

10,056.7
1,361.5
1.1

11,4305

(5,016.0)

34

6,417.9

Gold loans

ESfRE
Note 29
Wizt 29
HK$ million
BEER

8,011.5
(919.7)

(402.9)

2,803.8
1,787.7

11,280.4

(1,809.3)

465.6

168.4
(4,379.7)

5,725.4

MEITHELANBREHER

TERAIAEERETHAELNBEZS - K
TEERERIFReED BETHELANAE
EERERNBEL(IRRAERERG)RA
SENGERENERSERABETHMERE

mEZBIE -

Dividends Interest
Amounts payable payables
due to non- (included (included
controlling in trade in trade
shareholders and other and other
of subsidiaries payables) payables)
EMRE EARS
EMHEAR [GoN-t (FtAE5
kR REf Rt
RRZE EARER)  EARER)
Note 27 Note 26 Note 26
WaE27 HizE 26 Wizt 26
HKS$ million ~ HKS million  HKS$ Million
BEET BEET BEET
136.7 - 8.0
(31.3)  (6,243.2) (485.0)
- - 490.7
(75) - -
- 62432 -
= = (1.2
97.9 - 125
(38.4) (2,853.3) (289.6)
- - 328.3
6.5 - -
- 2,853.3 -
- - (3.4)
66.0 - 47.8

Lease
liabilities Total
HEAK @zt
Note 15
=15
HK$ million  HKS million
BEER BEER
23310 20,6439
(1,331.9)  (7,649.6)
- 1.1
68.9 559.6
(34.0) (444.4)
- 6,243.2
- 2,803.8
763.1 2,550.8
1,797.1 24,6184
(1,182.1)  (11,188.7)
41.7 376.0
393 511.4
- 2,853.3
- 168.4

7940  (3,585.7)

1,496.0 13,7531
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Accounting Policy

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution
pension plans.

The liability or asset recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related obligation. In countries where there
is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on
government bonds are used.

Service cost and net interest cost on the net defined
benefit liability are recognised in profit or loss and allocated
by function as part of “selling and distribution costs” or
“general and administrative expenses”. Current service
cost is measured as the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service
in the current period. The net interest cost is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in
other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance
plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Financials
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company provide defined pension
benefits to the employees, who joined to these subsidiaries
before 1995. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of services. The Group
does not set aside any assets to fund such obligations.

Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension
between 25% and 40% of final salary for each year of
pensionable service at an age of 65. No other post-retirement
benefits are provided. The most recent actuarial valuations of
the present value of the defined benefit obligations were
carried out in March 2021 by Roma Appraisals Limited
("Roma"), an independent qualified professional valuer, using
the projected unit credit method. The principal place of
business of Roma is 22/F, China Overseas Building, 193
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The assumptions
which have the most significant effect on the results of the
valuation are discount rate, retirement age, turnover rate,
mortality rate and the rate of increase in salaries.

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate BhIR &
Expected rate of salary increase TR ERFr &I ANLL =
Turnover rate A=

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in respect of the
defined benefit scheme are as follows:

BB AR TSR A
AR R E

Current service cost
Interest on obligation

Components of defined benefits
recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurement on defined benefit
scheme recognised in other
comprehensive income:

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes

(Wez) /51

in financial assumptions

Total @

Annual Report 2021
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37.

KB 5 HERR Y E B4R A BP0

TAEL b 22 T R a5 T AR O TE 2R
wAFEIEHEE

M RRNE I E LIRS

BARBEADRE @

7E 3R R FIET 8

A DA F A A AR 1995 4 BT A Z S H
BAAMEBEETEREASERN o B HAR
RAME BB F S BRI FH - ARE LA
AT AR B BASE -

RIEZA S BEERFESRFHRETFIRMEA
BERRSHNRBEN T HREHFL25% £40% F
BERRE - AEBIWERHEREMRKEESN - &
MR EREBAARRERBERETIN20214F3
AHBYAEAREEGHEMESHRIHERA
RIS ) RAETENED AT - BENE
DR B AR S E(TEEFFE 1935 B HN
RKE221#% - HEEARSASENREZTIME
K RARFHR  BEX  RTXRFSHOARE -

FREMMEZRERRNAT :

2021 2020
1.3% 0.6%
0.8% 2.5%
0.0% 0.0%

HREBEENF NGB EM ks ki’
REFKIELT

2021 2020

HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEER
2.3 4.0

3.5 1.5

5.8 5.8

(18.1) 24.0
(12.3) 29.5
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37.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

The current service costs and interest on obligation for the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 are included in “selling
and distribution costs” and “general and administrative
expenses” depending on the respective employee’s function.

The remeasurement of the defined benefit scheme for the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 is included in other
comprehensive income.

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations are as follows:

At 1 April
Service costs

R4RA1H

AR PR
B

BE (), &'
EEENEER

Interest costs
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Benefits paid

At 31 March M3 HA31AH

Defined contribution scheme

The Group participates in defined contribution schemes
which are registered under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of independent trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of
the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the
ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents contributions payable to the funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there
are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution
is matched by the employee. The maximum monthly amount of
contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per employee.

Financials
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HZE2021F K% 20204 3 A31 B IEFERIFRR
TERAR RAFEENFBIES B MEBBAEFT A [
ERDHEEA] R [—RITHEAY | E -

B ZE2021F % 20203 A31 B ILFEMNFERRE
Mt BB EFF AR M2 E MK -

ERBNAEREZSMNT

2021 2020

HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
260.2 238.8

2.3 4.0

35 15

(18.1) 24.0
(9.1) (8.1)
238.8 260.2

E 5 R ET 2

AEE D2 EREF B ERAKENRG A
E 58 it ﬁﬁﬂwﬁﬁL%+%Mﬂﬁ§D&m
2000 12 B R1R & 7 o8 il 1 A & & 1§55 37 89
&M AT J%Uﬁﬁiﬁﬂn ZETEE
ERASENEESHAEE - Eﬁix?ATﬂ
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RIRGTENRAIFT B EE TR BRERABRER
REtEEHIFT Bl E R Eest & mAER
2000612 A1 Bk 2B MAR KB/ E & 8
B2 MBELETE -

B4R & 8 N E A 2 4R R A0 R B9 R R AR FURK

RIEREEZTERVEENL RN TESH
B o iR 8RN 2 BUH SRR 8 ATR B SR RET
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37.

38.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

Defined contribution scheme (continued)

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China and Macau are members of pension
schemes operated by local government of Mainland China
and the Macau government, respectively. The subsidiaries in
Mainland China are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant cost of the payroll of these
employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The
subsidiary in Macau is required to pay a monthly fixed
contribution to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contribution under the schemes.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution which were passed on 17 November
2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme"”) for the purpose of attracting skilled
and experienced personnel, to incentivise them to remain
with the Group and to motivate them to strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them
with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the
Company. Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company may grant options to directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the subsidiaries and
the employees of the Group and any other persons (including
consultants or advisers) who the directors of the Company
consider, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group (the “Participants”).
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continueb)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 17 November 2011. An
offer of the grant of an option shall be made to a Participant
by a notice of grant requiring the Participant to undertake to
hold the option on the terms on which it is to be granted
(which may include a minimum period for which the option
must be held before it can be exercised and a performance
target that must be reached before the option can be
exercised in whole or in part) and to be bound by the terms
of the Share Option Scheme. An offer of the grant of an
option is deemed to be accepted by the Participant (the
"Grantee”) when the Company receives from the Grantee
the duplicate notice of grant duly signed by the Grantee. An
offer may be accepted or deemed to have been accepted in
respect of less than the number of shares in respect of
which it is offered, provided that it is accepted in respect of a
board lot or an integral multiple thereof. No amount is
payable by the Grantee upon acceptance of an offer of an
option. The offer shall remain open for acceptance for such
time to be determined by the directors of the Company,
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the expiry of the Share Option Scheme or after the
termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with
its terms or after the Participant to whom the offer is made
has ceased to be a Participant. To the extent that the offer is
not accepted within the time period and in the manner
specified in the offer, the offer will be deemed to have been
irrevocably declined.

The exercise price shall be determined by the directors of
the Company, and shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company's share on the date of grant.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no share
options were granted by the Company nor were there any
share options of the Company outstanding.

The Company issued to the directors and certain employees
share appreciation rights (the “SARs"”) that the Company
would pay the intrinsic value of the SARs in cash to the
directors and certain employees as part of the discretionary
bonus. The Group recorded a total expense of HK$127.2 million
during the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$8.3 million).

Financials
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Accounting Policy

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

o consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity

interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a gain on acquisition of subsidiaries.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (conTinuep) 39. ¥HEHw

(a) Summary of acquisition (a) WrREHIE
In December 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the MN2019F 128 - AEERBEEYEE
issued share capital of ENZO Jewelry Inc. (“ENZO"), A IRE R ENZO Jewelry Inc. ([ENZOJ)
a luxury coloured gem jeweller. The acquisition has #1100% B BITIRA - LIEKRHEEE TR
enriched the Group's brand portfolio to meet SEMREES  WIABEENEHE -

customer expectations.

Details of the purchase consideration and the net WHERBFEREKENEEFENT :
assets acquired were as follows:

HK$ million
BEBT
Purchase consideration (refer to (b) below): WK E (2B T2 (b)) :
Cash paid BfIRE 189.3
Total purchase consideration KRR E 189.3
The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the WHEEERRBRNEERBEBNT :
acquisition were as follows:
Fair value
ARE
HK$ million
BEBT
Cash btk 5.1
Inventories TE 189.4
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 18.1
Other receivables H th e W 5K TE 35.0
Investment properties TR 17.8
Plant and equipment B K i 25 17.9
Bank loan RITER (11.1)
Trade payables =) NS (31.3)
Other payables &~ 518 (33.6)
Net identifiable assets acquired TR R E EFE 207.3
Less: total purchase consideration B W ARE (189.3)
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries U BE B B A B M e 18.0
(included in other gains and losses) (FrAE AUz R EBA)
There were no acquisitions in the year ended 31 HZE2021F3A3THIEFELHETI
March 2021. FESEIE -
2 54 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (conTinuep)

(a) Summary of acquisition (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Acquired receivables

The fair value and gross contractual amount of
acquired trade receivables is HK$18.1 million.

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of
HK$37.7 million and net loss of HK$35.0 million to the
Group for the period from 1 December 2019 to 31
March 2020.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2019,
consolidated pro-forma* revenue and profit for the year
ended 31 March 2020 would have been HK$56,928.8
million and HK$2,976.4 million respectively. The
negative impact on the consolidated pro-forma profit
for the year was mainly due to the depreciation impact
arising from the acquired properties which
management decided to dispose subsequently.

These amounts have been calculated using the
subsidiaries’ results and adjusting them for:

e differences in the accounting policies between the
Group and the subsidiaries, and

e the additional depreciation that would have been
charged assuming the fair value adjustments to
investment properties had applied from 1 April
2019, together with the consequential tax effects.

*  The pro-forma information is for illustrative purposes only
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (conTinuep)

(a)

Summary of acquisition (continued)

(ili) Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries

(b)

Financials

B %

The gain on acquisition of subsidiaries of HK$18.0
million was recognised in other gains and losses (note
6), which was arising from the difference between (a)
the fair value of the shares in ENZO representing the
aggregate of the consideration transferred of HK$189.3
million; and (b) the fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired of HK$207.3 million, comprising the
investment properties at fair value with reference to
valuation performed by an independent valuer with
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant market and the fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities, which approximate to their
carrying amounts.

Purchase consideration — cash
outflow

Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary,
net of cash acquired

Cash consideration HeRE

Less: Balances acquired
Cash RE

Net outflow of cash — investing activities

Acquisition-related costs

Acquisition-related costs of HK$4.7 million were
included in general and administrative expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and in
operating cash flows in the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

WE M B A RIHIR &t
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Recurring transactions

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had entered into the following related party
transactions during the year:

40. FAEEA X 5

(a)

HEHERXS
BEAMBREALEETREHRSR
&850 - ARBERE NI TSIME S
%5

2021 2020
Relationship Nature of transactions HK$ million HK$ million
& RHMHEE HEBT HEBT
Entities in which certain Advertising expenses 29 6.4
directors* of the Company BEHX
have beneficial interests Concessionaire fees in department stores 56.4 57.4
RARETES*HEER BERAIFEESK
HEmr B Right-of-use assets 179.9 82.8
EREEE
Lease expenses 14.9 0.8
HERMX
Purchase of goods and commission 0.2 -
expenses
BEEmRAERAX
Non-controlling shareholders Concessionaire fees in department stores 45 6.0
of subsidiaries BERAAEESK
Bt /8 B FEERR AR R Franchise sales 78.9 19.9
hnga g
Entities in which a close Engineering services fee 7.6 4.3
family member of certain TRR®EE
directors* of the Company Lease payments - 27.3
has control BEX
RARETES*NIIHREB Purchase of equipment 323 415
REBEIEHIENER BERE
Marking fee 18.7 44.7
EERE =]
*  The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company. *  ERNEEAQANERER -

Apart from the aforementioned transactions, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest at any time during the year.

Key management compensation
Remuneration paid for key management personnel
includes the directors and the chief executives of the
Company as disclosed in note 10.

The remuneration of the directors and the chief
executives of the Company is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Annual Report 2021

2021 £

(b)

B bt 32 o0 - ARR R A F E A E A
M YERITEMARAESTEEPEER
LHEZFAERNGEZLEEZRS  BH K
BH -

IEEEASME
LN FEBERABHMEQERE 108
BOAATEFREBIUAL -

ARAEZERRSTRAESNHERER
FHEZEESRBENALTHRERTSB
EMEE -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBMAME

257



COMPANY

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

41.

Details of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries at the end of

the reporting period are set out below:

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/registered

KABEEMELE

TERRIMEMRARF EEWMBLRR ZFHI5

Proportion of
ownership interest held

establishment capital/quota capital by the Company
Name of subsidiaries R AR S, R 3L 4t 2 ERTRERRE KATFEHEERE Principal activities
HEAR AR RBH TMELR BEEX LB TEEH
2021 2020
Highrise Achiever Limited* BVI Share 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRAERRA 20 June 2011 Us$1 REER
REARRES (EEN
20114%6H20H 17T
Bentley Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of diamond
BHEZERDA 10 January 2008 HK$10,000 EBRES
B TmARA
20081 A10H 10,000 % 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 6 March 1961 HK$350,000,000 KEEMBE
BABHRELITERAR BE TERA
196143 A6H 350,000,000 7T
CTF Watch (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales of watches
BAREER (FR)BRAA 7 February 2011 HK$1 EIRIHE
& TmARA
2011%2AR78 1787T
Techni Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Procurement of gemstones,
Investment Limited 26 May 2005 HK$5,000,000 sales of jewellery products
ENBERREERAA B LRRA and investment holding
200545 F 26 H 5,000,000 7T KEER KEED
SHE N IR E ZRR
World Smart International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products
EEERARAR 21 March 2018 HK$1 and provision of services
B8 TmiR A to franchisees
20183 AH21H 1787T HKEBEDIHNE RIEMH
R T o0 R 7
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery and Watch Macau Quota capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company (Macau) Limited 17 March 2009 MOP5,000,000 KEEMHEE
BARBHRE ERCRF) BERAH A [REEE- W
200943 A17H 5,000,0002F 7T
Hearts On Fire Company, LLC The United States Capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products
of America US$74,468,737 KEEMHE
14 May 2001 2N
E35 74,468,737 % T
200145 H148
Beijing Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 13 November 2006 US$30,000,000 and provision of services
IRAREHRERTARAR " FMEAR to franchisees
2006411 A13H 30,000,000 KEEMHEE RRME
PR#% T InEE S
Chongaing Chow Tai Fook Watch PRC- Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of watches
Marketing Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB10,000,000 BERIHE
EERABERHEERRAR R~ GaliE=e
2008412 A 258 AR#10,000,0007T
Chongaing Flamingo Watches PRC- Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of watches
Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB1,000,000 BERIHE
EEEARERERAA - &R
2008412 A 25H AR #1,000,0007T
Chongging Meida Watch PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 21 May 2013 RMB1,000,000 KEEMHEE
EEREBRERANA - ailif-%
2013%5H21H AR 1,000,0007T
Chongging Xinhuang Watch PRC* Registered capital 51% 51%  Sales of watches
Company Limited 2 August 2013 RMB10,000,000 HEIRHE
EEMEEERERARA ol & AR
2013F8H2H AR#10,000,0007T
2 58 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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COMPANY (conTinuED)

Name of subsidiaries

WEARAE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
(Chongging) Company Limited
AREHREST (ER)ERAR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenyang)
Company Limited
AAEHKELT RS BRAH

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenzhen)
Company Limited
AREHREST (ORI BRAR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Suzhou)
Company Limited
ARBHRE ST (BHM)ERAR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Wuhan)
Company Limited
BAREHRELT(HE)ERAF

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Culture
Industrial Park (Wuhan)
Company Limited

BARBKRE XL EXE (RE)
BRARA

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Zhangjiagang Baoshui
Company Limited

BAARBHRE TR ERT R
BRAR

Foshan Shunde Yuda Jewellery
Manufacturing Company Limited

HILTIRE R ERE B RE
BRARA

Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and
Diamond Company Limited

BLBIEEEHEEERAR

Guangdong Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Company Limited
BREAAGBHESTARRAA

Guangdong Shunde Chow Tai
Fook Jewellery Manufacturing
Company Limited

ERIEEAAEHEREARAR

Jinan Fudonglin Jewellery
Company Limited
EERREAESTARRA
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment
AL R 3 B
kBEH

PRC"
23 December 2008
N
2008412 A 23H

PRC~
2 January 2014
B~
2014%1 A28

PRC"

2 April 2002
HE"
200254 R 2H

PRC"
11 January 2006
Ll
2006F1A11H

PRC"
29 January 2008
el
200841 A29H

PRC"

16 August 2012
R

20124 8H16H

PRC"

21 April 2010
-
20104 4218

PRC"

14 March 2007
"
200743 R 148

PRC"
9 November 1988
R
1988411 A9H

PRC"
10 December 2007
"
20074128108

PRC-

30 July 2014
-
201447 H30H

PRC~

2 September 2005
-
200549AH2H

41. KABETEMBAS @

Issued and fully paid
share capital/registered
capital/quota capital
BRTRBERE
HEfER MEEX

Registered capital
US$30,000,000
ST E A
30,000,000

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000
& A

AK# 20,000,000

Registered capital
US$100,000,000
Gaiiif=%
100,000,000 37T

Registered capital
US$30,000,000
& AR
30,000,000 %7T

Registered capital
US$30,000,000
B A
30,000,000 7T

Registered capital
US$140,000,000
GaliE=e
140,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB65,723,500
GaliE=E
AR¥65,723,5007TC

Registered capital
US$10,639,400
ailif= %
10,639,400 T

Registered capital
US$18,000,000
GaliE=EN
18,000,000 % T

Registered capital
US$30,000,000
& AR
30,000,000 T

Registered capital
RMB60,000,000
A& A
AR#60,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB2,000,000
GaliE=E

AR 2,000,0007T

Proportion of

ownership interest held

by the Company
ARRFEHEEE
 $:3:41]

2021 2020
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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Principal activities

FERK

Sales of jewellery products
and provision of services
to franchisees

KEEMHEER
REIRTS TN

Sales of jewellery products
and provision of services
to franchisees

KEEMHEER
RALRTS T B2 R

Manufacturing and sales of
jewellery products

REERLERHEE

Sales of jewellery products
and provision of services
to franchisees

KEEMHEER
RELRTS T B2

Sales of jewellery products
and provision of services
to franchisees

KEEMHER
RELRTS T B2y

Manufacturing of jewellery
products

KREEmLE

Sales of jewellery products

REERHE

Manufacturing of jewellery
products

RBEEMEE

Manufacturing of jewellery
products

REEMEE

Sales of jewellery products
and provision of services
to franchisees

KEEMHER
RALRTS T B2 R

Manufacturing of jewellery
products

REEMEE

Sales of jewellery products
and provision of services
to franchisees

KREEMEE RIRMH
R T o0 R 7

259



41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (conTinuED)

Name of subsidiaries

WEAR BB

Shanghai Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Company Limited
FERARBHREEHERAR

Shanghai Fulong Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Company Limited

LERERAEHREARAA

Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Company Limited

AIBEAARBHRELTARRT

Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Manufacturing Company Limited
AT AR BREREER A

Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Online
Media Company Limited
RYNBARBEREEERRA

Shenzhen CTF Watch
Company Limited
RNEREEERER AR

Shenzhen Shenfu Jewellery
Company Limited
RITREBREETERAR

Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery
Company Limited
REERKBERTERAR

Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dade Xinfu
Jewellery Company Limited
RRBRBGEABINBHRE ST

BRARA
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dehui

Jewellery Company Limited
RRARVEEBRESTERAA

Zhangjiagang Baoshui Zhaofu
Jewellery Company Limited
REARVEERRELTERAA

* Directly held by the Company.

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment
AL R 3 B
kBEH

PRC"
26 February 2013
N
201342F26H

PRC*
5 January 2000
B
20001 A5H

PRC"

31 October 2016
R
201646108318

PRC~

5 March 2012
el
201243 A5H

PRC-
5 January 2017
FE -
201741 A5H

PRC"

27 June 2011
R
2011466 A27R

PRC*

19 April 2007
R
20074 A 19A

PRC*
26 November 2003
R
20034118268

PRC*
3 December 2010
R
2010612 A3H

PRC~

24 September 2012
el

20124 9FR 248

PRC*
17 November 2011
2l
2011411 A17H

41.

Issued and fully paid
share capital/registered
capital/quota capital
BRTRBERE
HEfER MEEX

Registered capital
HK$60,000,000
ST E A
60,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000
& A
AK#10,000,0007T

Registered capital
US$10,000,000
GaliE=e
10,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB50,000,000
S E 2
AR#50,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB5,000,000
B A
AR#5,000,0007C

Registered capital
HK$300,000,000
A&
300,000,000 7% 7T

Registered capital
RMB8,000,000
& AR

AR 8,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB90,000,000
& A

AK# 90,000,000

Registered capital
RMB3,000,000
GaliE=EN

AR 3,000,000

Registered capital
RMB94,567,500
Faii- VN
AR#94,567,500 7T

Registered capital
RMB70,000,000
B A

AR# 70,000,000 7T

& Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into among shareholders of these entities,
the Group has power to direct the relevant activities of these entities since their
respective date of establishment/acquisition, and hence these entities are classified as

subsidiaries of the Company.

M Being a co-operative joint venture establishment in the PRC.

Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

Being a wholly owned enterprise in the PRC.

Note:

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries which
are mainly inactive or engaged in investment holding would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.
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KA EEMELAT @

Proportion of
ownership interest held

by the Company
AARFEHEERE Principal activities
R Bl TEEYK
2021 2020
100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products
and provision of services
to franchisees
KEEMHEER
REIRTS TN
60% 60%  Sales of jewellery products
KEEMEE
100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products
KEEMHEE
100% 100%  Manufacturing of jewellery
products
KEEMEE
100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products
KEBERHE
100% 100%  Sales of watches
FEERIHE
50%* 50%*  Sales of jewellery products
KEEMEE
70% 70%  Sales of jewellery products
KEEMHEE
50%* 50%*  Sales of jewellery products
KEEMHEE
100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products
KEERHE
51% 51%  Sales of jewellery products

REERHEE

o ORAREERA -

o RBRSFERORRZMIZOBRGE  AREELSERS
BRI/ RERBMUARERESZSRENEMED  EititS
EEFEREAARANMERF -

© o RTBERINEERELE -

S RIEERLHK -

- RTBERINBESE -

P 5E
ERIIHESRABTEVEAREANEAKXEENRARANBAR -

B HEMIBEELEXRUFRERRNMBARZFE  EFRR
REEYFBERTE -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAXRXEHREEEEGR QA



42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42. KASIHBIRRARREEES
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEER

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EH B AR ZRE 15,387.3 15,387.3
Amount due from a subsidiary JE U — R B BB A R ZRIA 1,798.9 897.5
17,186.2 16,284.8

Current assets mENEE
Amount due from a subsidiary el —REFT B A B2k IE 6,920.3 13,736.0
Taxation recoverable AT U [ % 1H 0.5 0.6
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 274.2 4.5
7,195.0 13,7411
Current liabilities MEERE

Other payables H fth FE A 3B 229 24.9
Bank borrowings RITER 4,619.0 10,5633.0
Gold loans =5eEE 2,432.7 3,067.7
7,074.6 13,625.6
Net current assets MENEEFRE 120.4 115.5
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRSEE 17,306.6 16,400.3

Non-current liability FERBBEE
Bank borrowings RITE R 1,798.9 897.5
15,507.7 15,502.8

Capital and reserves BAR R
Share capital f% A 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves EHE 5,507.7 5,502.8
15,507.7 15,502.8

Annual Report 2021
2021 F %

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42. FASMBRAREFEEEH @
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (conTinuED)

Reserves
]
Share Share Retained Total
capital premium profits

RAE R ERE RERF st

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

HEET HEET HEET BEET

At 31 March 2019 #K201943A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 56.9 15,555.6

Profit and total comprehensive 4 &% FI| | 2 T Y 25 42 28 = = 6,147.2 6,147.2
income for the year

Dividends [[e= - = (6,200.0) (6,200.0)

At 31 March 2020 K 2020F3 A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 4.1 15,502.8

Profit and total comprehensive 4 A% A1l [ 2 Uk 25 42 58 - - 2,804.9 2,804.9
income for the year

Dividends [N - - (2,800.0) (2,800.0)

At 31 March 2021 7K2021F3A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 9.0 15,507.7

262 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

5 Mt 2

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years. The financial

information are extracted from the consolidated financial

statements in the annual reports.

AT RAEERENEMBRFECREAEAREE

HEEHRE - YHERBREFROGEMBEHE -

For the year ended 31 March

BE3ANMBLFE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEETT AEBT BEET BB BEER
Revenue - 51,2455 59,156.4 66,660.9 56,750.8 70,163.8
Gross profit EF 14,962.7 16,213.4 18,601.8 16,096.2 20,074.7
Profit for the year FE R 3,151.1 4,203.3 4,684.0 2,983.1 6,176.1

As at 31 March

M3A31H

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET AEET BAEBT BEAT BEBER
Total assets BERLT 49,401.9 57,569.9 62,237.1 65,243.4 64,308.2
Total liabilities BEER 16,900.4 23,472.3 30,834.1 38,252.6 32,740.6
Net assets BEFH 32,501.5 34,097.6 31,403.0 26,990.8 31,567.6

Annual Report 2021
2021 F %

Financial Summary

BT HLE
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GLOSSARY

THFY
FHER L F

2HFY
FHERE THF

Articles
40 A1

ASP
FHEE

Board
S

CIS
&R EE

Company / Chow Tai Fook

A NCIVNEPN ]

Directors
5%

FY
BT F R

Gem-set Jewellery

IR SR A 5

Gold jewellery and products

B EHHMINER

Group
KB/ REE

Karat gold / K-gold

K&

Listing Rules
AR Al

Mainland China
AR B A,

Additional Information

apill=gas

i 5

the first half of the financial year, six months ending 30 September

MREELFEFE  BHEIAS0ALREA

the second half of the financial year, six months ending 31 March

MREETHE BEIA31ALREA

the articles of association of the Company (as amended or supplemented from time to time)
RARBEBERBA (BTEHERT T

average selling price
T HE B

the board of directors of the Company
RAREEE

counter-in-shop in POS
REERARERNEE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 1929)
AREHRBEEEAR AR (RMHMRSE - 1929)

directors of the Company
KARES

financial year, 1 April of a year to 31 March of the following year
HERER  #H4A1BEZBF3A31H

jewellery products made with diamonds and gemstones
BEEEBEARBANEHER

gold jewellery and products sold by weight or at fixed price. Fixed price gold products
include those with substantial amount of art work, delicate designs and licensed gold
products

REEYETERLENECENIRER ECEECEREETEEENIERMEMN - RiTE
A RBEENESE S

the Company and its subsidiaries
AN ) R EL Y A A

jewellery products made from gold alloy

IAS SRR E B AE @

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEABMER AR ARES LR

the mainland of the People’'s Republic of China
I A R A E A3

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAXRXEHREEEEGR QA



POS
TEH

Retail Sales Value / RSV
TEE

Same Store

(R &

Same Store Sales / SSS
BJEHE

Same Store Sales Growth / SSSG
BEHEER

SFO
&7 KR ()

SIS
&5

Stock Exchange
B 22 FfT

Tier I, 11, 1ll, IV and other cities

—& T8 =R DORREMET

Annual Report 2021
2021 F 3

points of sale

EmETEH

the sales at the ending price (VAT inclusive, if any), in respective functional currencies, of
products sold to customers in the POS network and other channels
REERBRNEMREARRENEESTERBESHEERNEZRTEE(AEEER - 1F)
stE

self-operated POS existing as at the end of the relevant financial period and which have
been operating since the beginning of the prior financial year

BA—EAMBRFENCKEYNEEMBBRRDRAEFNELTER

“Same store sales” for FY2021 is the RSV from the self-operated POS of CHOW TAI FOOK
JEWELLERY existing as at 31 March 2021 and which have been opened prior to 1 April
2019. RSV from franchised POS and other channels are not included

#2021 MBFE [RIEHE | fs - I8REN2019F 4 A1 BAIMAEILR 202143 A31 BIHA
BEHNARNESRBEECZENNTEE  ETRENBZERREMEENTEE

a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular period and sales from comparable
POS in the corresponding period in the previous financial year, measured at constant
exchange rates

AR RIEE L B E B RS E HE E— MR FERBN AT T ERIEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BRERIE 71 EEH R EEEA

shop-in-shop in POS
REEHAREFE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, unless otherwise specified
BRIESEER  BRHEEEHAIIMAERQA

for the list of cities, please refer to the city-tier ranking published by Yicai Global. New first
tier cities were grouped under Tier |l cities in our analysis. Please refer to the ranking
released on 29 May 2020

BB NFER2H(E M) BMORTERFESL - FT—RATREMNITTI RSB/
BT - 55252020 F£5 A29 HAMRIHER

Glossary
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A SNAPSHOT OF
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY GROUP
5PN T < LG

EE Chow Tai Fook

Jewellery Group Website
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=]
E E Our Sustainability
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Investor calendar

FY2021 annual results announcement
8 June 2021

AGM
28 July 2021

Proposed payment of final dividend
on or about 20 August 2021

Closure of register of members (both days inclusive)
For ascertaining attendance and voting right at the AGM
23 to 28 July 2021

For ascertaining entitlement to proposed final dividend
5 August 2021

Share information

Company name

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

Listing
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Stock code
1929

Listing date
15 December 2011

Board lot size
200 shares

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2021
10,000,000,000 shares

Index constituent

Hang Seng Composite Index

Hang Seng Composite LargeCap Index

Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index

Hang Seng Stock Connect Greater Bay Area Composite Index

Hang Seng High Dividend Yield Index

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index
Hang Seng ESG 50 Index

MSCI Hong Kong Index

Annual Report 2021
2021 53§

REER

221 B EEEFEELS
202146 A8H

BREFBFERE
202147 H28H

BEBRRBEAHRE
202148 B 20 B A%

EEREROBFECFE(ERMABEER)
REEHERRBFAGLIRNEG LEF
202147 H23HZ%E28H

HE R B A R AR B R
202148 H5H

DEEHE
AXBAREEERR QA

=]

BB A

B 424X 5%
1929

Nl ls B
2011412 R 15H

BFEEEMN
200 B%

A2021F3 A31HE BTRA
10,000,000,000 fi%

A IR

BARAEH

BARA RBIRIER
BAERE(EFE L) 100352
EERREBANERGAER
BAERKREEEE
BARFAEROEELEREY
B4 ESGL0#E 2

MSCIEEEH

A Snapshot of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group
AREHREEEGHR
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CONTACT US

Shareholder services

For matters relating to your shareholding such as transfer of shares,

change of name or address, and loss of share certificates, please write

to our Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980-1333

Fax: (852) 2810-8185

Shareholders can obtain the annual / interim report of the Company by

writing to our Hong Kong Branch Registrar, or access the electronic
version from our group website.

Investor relations

For more information about the Group, please visit
www.ctfjewellerygroup.com

or contact our Investor Relations and Corporate Communications at
38/F, New World Tower

16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2524-3166

Fax: (852) 25626-9178

e-mail: ir@chowtaifook.com

General information

Headquarters and principal place of business in Hong Kong
33/F, New World Tower
16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Registered office

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Additional Information

apill=gas

ik &% e A"

B3R AR

EH BTHRRER WRMHEE  Eidadini &
BRBRE FAEESTABARMNEERMNELER
DI -

SEEHFELARAA
B

SR ABR 1835
AP0 6418

&5t ¢ (852) 2980-1333
fHH& : (852) 2810-8185

BRAEBEEHABEEMNEERNBEFELSRE
PARRERAR R BB 3R/ RS - SRR B IR0 & E A9 A B8
BEFIR -

REERBIF

FARKEFE  FAE
www.ctfjewellerygroup.com

Sk ER PIRVIR & & R R S E B4
BERERKNEF 16-185%

R KE38E

&5 1 (852) 2524-3166

fH5 : (852) 2526-9178

B : ir@chowtaifook.com

—RER
BERBBETEEEBI
BBERAET 16-185%
T RKE 3312

MR EE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAXRXEHREEEEGR QA



This annual report is printed on FSC™ Certified and other controlled material. Pulps used are chlorine-free and acid-free. The FSC™ logo identifies
products which contain wood from well-managed forests certified in accordance with the rules of the Forest Stewardship Council® .
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